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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of TVS Supply Chain Solutions
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) its associate and joint venture comprising of the consolidated
Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associate and joint venture as at March 31, 2020,
their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted. our audit-of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw aitention to Note 2A of the Consolidated Financial Statements which describes the impact of Covid-
19 pandemic, and its possible consequential implications, on the Group’s operations and financial metrics. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of the matter.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the Directors’ report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its
associate and joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate and joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and
of its associate and joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associate and joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associate and joint venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint
venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate and
joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate and joint venture to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
and its associate and joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associate and joint venture of which we are the independent auditors
and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of six subsidiaries
(which included the financial statements of step-down subsidiaries), whose Ind AS financial statements
include total assets of Rs 401,607.30 lakhs as at March 31, 2020, and total revenues of Rs 4,57,424.35 lakhs
and net cash inflows of Rs 44,050.45 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These Ind AS financial statement
and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other
financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management, Our opinion on
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
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in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion
adjustments made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and
affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

The accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements include unaudited financial statements and
other unaudited financial information in respect of a subsidiary, whose financial statements and other
financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 621,19 lakhs and net liability of Rs. 299.24 lakhs as at March
31, 2020, and total revenues of Rs. 1,571.28 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs. 38.80 lakhs for the year
ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information have
been furnished to us by the management. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the
Group’s share of net profit of Rs. 218.98 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of a joint venture, whose financial statements, other financial
information have not been audited and whose unaudited financial statements, other unaudited financial
information have been furnished to us by the Management. Qur opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statement and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are
not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, associate and joint
venture, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Wef/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;
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(e)
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(h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, associate
and joint venture, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, its associate and joint venture
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, associate and joint venture incorporated in India, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March
31, 2020 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associate and joint venture
incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate and joint venture in its consolidated Ind
AS financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 32 to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associate and joint venture
incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2020.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA1 Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

bomnncte—

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 20210934AAAACP6533
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: August 31, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary companies and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards-on Auditing; both; issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements.

2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company, insofar as it relates to these four subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries and joint venture incorporated
in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

b loarett

- e

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 20210934AAAACP6533
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: August 31, 2020
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logisties Services Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Note As at
31 March 2020

As at

31 March 2019

43,205.00
1,265.22
42,953.66
26,755.63
89,616.20
3.491.07

1,053.78
3,736.38
752.17
6,700.63
5,798.88
288.55

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 36,485.44
Capital work-in-progress 820.64
Goodwill 16 45,442.40
Other intangible assets 16 23,881.62
Right-of-use assets 16B 97,589.11
Equity accounted investees 17 3,715.96
Financial assets
Investments 19 261.51
Deposits and other receivables 20 4,361.96
Other financial assets 21 748.46
Deferred tax assets (net) 14 7,316.19
Non-current tax assets (net) 8,270.46
Other non-current assets 22 719.92
Total non-current assets 2,29,613.67

2,25,617.17

Current Assets

Inventories 23 16,982.18 16,616.22
Financial assels
Invesumenis 19 1,061.29 1,408.24
Trade receivables 24 1,30,727.96 120,850 53
Cash and cash equivalents 25 88.461.28 4748517
Other bank balances 26 26,216.52 2,410.27
Loans 27 -
Deposits and other receivables 20 5,334.80 5.076.46
Cther financial assets 21 24.856.04 23,282.39
Current tax assets (net) 1,118.23 881.99
Other current assets 28 14,292.01 14,288.66
Assets classified as held for disposal 45 6,348 89 8,148.97
Total eurrent assets 3,15,399.20 2,40,448.90
Total assets 5,45,012.87 4,66,066.07
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 29A 3.176.21 3.166.71
Other equiry 29B 4790346 58,787.44
Equity sttributable to owners of the Company 51,079.67 61,954.15
Non-controlling interesis 18 7,982.42 4,039.38
Toial equity 59,062.09 65,993.53




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(4!l amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrawings 30 95,923.94 90,433.75
Lease liability 16B 91,757.66 68,678.57
Other financial liabilities 32 3,629.92 1,144.99
Provisions 33 1,836.74 1,816.65
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 9,151.01 10,575.31
Other non current liabilities 34 155.16 241.00
Total non-current liabilities 2,02,454.43 1,72,890.27
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 30 1,16,265.21 52,811.67
Lease liability 16B 26,485.98 30,295.15
Trade payables 31 1,01,258.21 96,760.50
Other financial liabilities 32 20,973.09 26,873.15
Provisions 33 2,464.92 2,929.84
Current tax liabilities (net) 146.58 520.12
Other current liabilities 35 10,997.75 11,203.19
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 45 4,904.61 5,788.65
Total current liabilities 2,83,496.35 2,27,182.27
Total liabilities 4,85,950.78 4,00,072.54
Total equity and liabilities 5,45,012.87 4,66,066.07
The notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of
Firm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004 TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Chartered Accountants

oAb %_/ i Z R. Dloenld

Bharath N § Suresh Krishna R Dinesh
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No. 210934 DIN: 00046919 DIN: 00363300

@,kl&w&ﬂv | \arclso o

Ravi Viswanathan S Ravichandran
Joint Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
DIN: 08713910 DIN: 01485845

l;nl'.avfl Prakash Bhagavathula PD Kriil;{é;;a/;a’j
¢ irf{mp Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date :31 August 2020 Date :31 August 2020



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise staled)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 5 6,60,454.94 6,77,991.41
Other income 6 18,821.40 5,383.99
Total income 6,72,276.34 6,83.375.40
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 7 2,872 09 946.24
Purchase of stock-in-trade 8 87.956.60 93.871.84
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 9 160.90 (5,451.36)
Cmployee benefils expense 10 1,80,416.05 1,60,971.73
Finance costs 11 23,118.91 14,045.26
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 44,450.15 41.757.01
Other expenses 13 3,64,700.80 3,75,619.66
Total expenses 7,03,675.50 6,81.760.38
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items, share of profit / (24,399.16) 1,615.02
{loss) of equity accounted investees and income tax from
continuing operations
xceptional items (refer note 39) - 690.86
Shate of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees (net of 17 - 218.98 22501
Profii / (loss) before tax frown continuing operations {24,180.18) 2,530.89
Tax expenses-
Current tax 2,635.75 3,312.24
Deferred tax (2,013.10) 761.76
Total tax expenses 14 622.63 4,074.00
Profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing operations (24,802.83) (1,543.11)
Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations before tax expenses 4.35 (1,086.68)
Tax expense of discontinued operations
Current tax 1.62 -
Adjusiments of lax relating 10 prior years - 25.70
Drofit/ (loss) after tax from discontinued operations 273 (1.712.38)
Profit / {loss) for the vear (24.800.10) {3,255.49)
Other compreheasive income
Jtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 146.41 (174.43)
lncome tax relating to above (61.40) 58.63
Net other comprehensive income net to be reclassified 85.01 (115.80)
ftems shat witl be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
zxchange gain/ (loss) in translating financial statements of foreign operations (1,327.89) (281.86)
Income tax relating to above - -
(1,327.89) (281.86)
Effective portion of cash flow hedge - (537.32)
income tax relating to zbove - 96.90
- 1440.42)
Items reclassified s'ulrscquently to profit or loss
Effective portion of cash flow hedge 537.32 -
Income tax relating to above (96.90) -
440.42 -
Net other comprehensive inconte to be reclassified (887.47) 1722.28)
,Otllel"clonlpl;chénsive income for the year, uet of tax (802.46) (838.08)
Total comprebensive income foi the year (25.602.56) (4,093.57)




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Note Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Profit / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income attributable to ;

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to :

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings / (loss) per share (INR) for continuing operations

Basic
Diluted

Earnings / (loss) per share (INR) for discontinued operations

Basic
Diluted

Earnings / (loss) per share (INR) for continning and discontinued operations

Basic
Diluted

The notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
Jor S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Firm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004

Chartered Accountants

Bharath N S
Partner
Membership No. 210934

Place : Chennai
Date :31 August 2020

(19,233.67) (1,349.78)
18 (5,566.43) (1,905.72)
(24,800.10) (3,255.50)
(634.34) (817.57)
18 (168.12) (20.51)
(802.46) (838.08)
(19,868.01) (2,167.35)
18 (5,734.56) (1,926.23)
(25,602.57) (4,093.58)
29E (60.14) 1.14
(60.14) 1.14
29E 0.01 (5.39)
0.01 (5.39)
29E (60.13) (4.25)
(60.13) 4.25)

Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Suresh Krishna
Chairman
DIN: 00046919

EU'M/:&AW”’

Ravi Viswanathan
Joint Managing Director
DIN: 08713910 f

J -
~ /

Rivi 17{'akash Bhagavathula

Giloup/Chief Financial Officer

W

R Dinesh
Managing Director
DIN: 00363300

AN LL-.&&JKW

S Ravichandran
Deputy Managing Director
DIN: 01485845

A

(d Le /\_r"‘-/')
P D Krishna Prasad
Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date :31 August 2020
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logisties Services Limited)
Consolidated Statement of cashflows for the year ended 31st March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

Profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations
Profit / (loss) before tax from discontinued operations
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Provision no longer required written back

Income from mutual funds and net gain on sale of investments
Exceptional item

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Gain on termination of lease contract

Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets measured at
Foreign exchange differences (Gain)/Loss

Bad debts written off

Provision for doubtful financial assets and litigations

Hedge accounting loss

Share of profit of equity accounted investees

Share based payment expenses

Other non-operating income

Change in fair value of forward purchase obligation
(Profit)/loss on sale of property plant and equipment, net
Gain on sale and lease back

Operating profit / (loss) before changes in operating assets

Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) / decrease in other current and non-current, financial and non-financial assets
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Increase / (decrease) in other current and non-current financial and non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net of refunds

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

Investment in bank deposits having an original maturity of more than three months
Payments for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Redemption/(Investment) in mutual funds

Acquisition of subsidiaries. net of cash and cash equivalents

Redemption of debentures carried at amortised cost

Payment of consideration pavable and deferred consiceration

Interest income received

Income from mutual funds

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities

(24,180.18) 2,530.89
435 (1,686.68)
(1,156.57) (1,194.60)
(4,643.46) (1,930.20)
- (142.25)
- (690.86)
23,120.03 14,016.31
44,465.99 41,760.66
(1,010.13) (466.15)
1,209.76 -
461.53 (358.84)
1,763.59 236.36
4,163.85 322225
(218.98) (225.01)
860.61 276.41
- (16.18)
- 1,664.13
621.87 (34.23)
(6,717.55) -
38,744.71 56,962.03
146.74 (3,339.10)
(9,818.12) 14,754.29
(1,682.21) (16.823.16)
736.36 (9,476.62)
(432.53) 128.91
(3,073.39) 627.88
24,621.56 42,834.23
(5,591.30) (5,610.77)
19,030.26 37,223.46
(22,978.92) 67.81
(12,439.81) (14,178.14)
464.25 332.11
1,170.32 (1,167.50)
- (3.611.61)
- 348.11
(3,282.24) (5,947.42)
753.68 586.77
- 25.19
(36,312.72) (23,544.68)



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

Consolidated Statement of cashflows for the year ended 31st March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Finance lease payments

Proceeds from sale and lease back transaction (refer note 16B(e))
Proceeds from compulsorily convertible preference shares, (net)
Proceeds from issue/exercise of share warrants

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests by subsidiaries including Dividend Distribution Tax
Dividends paid by the Company to its shareholders

(Repayment of) / proceeds from short term borrowings, net
Proceeds from long term borrowings, net

Payment of transaction costs related to borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

Less: Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year from continuing operations#
# For detaiis of restricted cash, refer note 25.

The notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Jor S:R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Firm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(37,203.98) (32,729.67)
28,075.81 -
17,143.30 370.50
676.88 225.63
(42.67) -

- (480.53)
63,478.83 14,932.38
95,173.29 23,719.39
(2,893.53) -

(96,110.68) -
(12,644.35) (7,727.33)
55,652.90 (1,689.63)
38,370.44 11,989.15
47,936.80 35,981.50
2,661.06 (33.85)
88,968.30 47,936.80
507.02 451.63
88.461.28 47,485.17

Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

e .

Bharath N § Suresh Krishna
Partner Chairman
Membership No. 210934 DIN: 00046912

/PAL.”&“N#FAKV

Ravi Viswanathan
Joint Managing Director

DIN: 08713910

R#w rakash Bhﬁgavathula
Group Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date :31 August 2020

R Dinesh
Managing Director
DIN: 00363300

PN o4 i

S Ravichandran
Deputy Managing Director
DIN: 01485845

\LAL G

P'D Krishna Prasad
Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date :31 August 2020



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amouns are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited) ("the Company") is a Company domiciled in India
and was incorporated on 16 November 2004. These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to
collectively as the 'Group") and the Group's interest in associates and joint ventures. Refer note 46 for the list of subsidiaries and note 17 for the
list of associates and joint ventures. The Group is primarily involved in providing the entire basket of logistics services including outsourced
supply chain management services, lastmile fulfilment delivery services, intercontinental movement and other related services.

Basis of preparation
A Statement of compliance and going concern assessment

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to comply with the
requirements prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time.

In view of the matters as mentioned in Note 2.F, the Group has assessed the impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic on its
liquidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when they are due.

With the gradual relaxation of lockdown rules, as well as resumption of commercial activities in a majority of geographies in which the Group
operates, management is confident that business will resume albeit likely at a lower level in the initial period but will be more robust from the
second half of the financial year 2020-21. The Group believes the pandemic is not expecied to have any material medium to long term impact to
its business prospects

The Group has made a detailed assessment of its liquidity position and has considered the possible impact of Covid 19 on the financial
projections and commitments using available information, estimates and judgements. In borrowing arrangements, the Group has not defaulted
and there is no breach of any of the debt covenants as at March 31, 2020 (Refer note 30A (ii)). In addition, the Group has received an in-
principle approval for waiver of compliance with certain key financial covenants till March 31, 2021 and has restructured certain key financial
covenants of the existing facility agreements upto March 31, 2023 which would enable it to continue servicing the loans as per the existing
repayment plan and the Group is confident that it would meet the revised commitments with the lenders for periods subsequent to March 31,
2021.

Based on the foregoing and necessary stress (ests considering various scenarios, management believes that the Group will be able to pay its
obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 31 August 2020.
Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated {inancial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees (INR), which 15 also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts
have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

C  Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) Fair value

Contingent consideration in business combination Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit

obligations

D Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financia! statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 3 (K) & 5 - Recognition of revenue

- Note 3 (D), (E) & (G), 15 and 16 - Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives and impairment
- Note 3 (C), 24 & 43 - Allowances for credit losses for trade receivables

-Note 3 (G) (i) & 16A - Impairment testing for goodwill

- Note 3 (H), 36 - Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits

- Note 3 (L), 38 - Lease classification, termination and renewal option of leases

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31
March 2020 is included in the following notes:

- Note 14 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 16A - Impairment testing for goodwill

- Note 36 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 39 — Business combinations; fair value of consideration transferred and fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and

- Note 43 — impairment of financial assets.



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
~otes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

E Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-

liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair v
obtained from the third partics to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements o

hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

financial assets and

The Group repularly reviews significant
es, then the Group assesses the evidence
f1nd AS, including the level in the fair value

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c., as prices) or indirectly

(i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest fevel input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group recognises transfer

between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 39A - Business combinations
- Note 43 — financial instruments

F Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

COVID-19 pandemic (declared as such by the World Health Organisation on March 11, 2020), has contributed to widespread volatility and
decrease in economic activity in, global and Indian markets. This has led to significant disruptions and dislocations for individuals and businesses,

including in respect of the Group, while some subsidiaries were operational subject to local goverment’

s rules and regualtions. However, various

Governments have continued to impose lock downs over a period of time depending on the outbreak and there exists an uncertainty on the Group's

ability to return to full capacity in its operations.

A detail assessment has been camed out by the Group for each business segment with regards to impact on revenue and costs. Impact due to any
extended credit terms, cancelled orders, change in contractual terms, price concession request, onerous obligations etc. were comprehensively

evaluated for any risk due to Covid-19 on revenue recognized and collectability thereof and no material impact has been noted.

In assessing the recoverability of its assets including receivables, property plant and equipment, intangibles, investments, goodwill etc., the Group

has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements including economic forecasts. The Group
has performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Group expects to recover the
carrying amount of these assets. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its

nature and duration. The Group will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditio

the relevant financial period

3 Significant accounting policies

A Basis of consolidation
i. Business combinations

Business combinations (other than common control business combinations) on or afier | January 2011

ns and make any necessary adjustments in

The Group has elected to apply the relevant Ind AS, viz. Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, retrospectively to those business combinations that
oceurred on or after 01 January 2011. In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for these business combinations using the acquisition
method when control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred for the business combination is generally measured at fair value as at
the date the control is acquired (acquisition date), as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for
impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OC and accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear evidence of the

underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain i

capital reserve. Acquisinion reiated costs are expensed as incurred,

s recognised directly in equity as

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are

generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the

definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured subsequently and settlement is accounted fo

r within equity.

Other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are

recognised in profit or loss.

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s cmployees (acquiree’s awards),
then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business
combination. The detenmnation of the amount to be included in consideration transferred is based on the market-based measure of the replacement
awards compared with the market-based measure of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to pre-combination

service.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-

and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCl, as appropriate.

measured at its acquisition date fair value



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs excepl share data and otherwise stated)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
A Basis of consolidation (continued)
Business combinations prior to 1 January 2011

In respect of such business combinations, goodwill represents the amount recognised under the Group’s previous accounting framework under
Indian GAAP.

Common control business combinations

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the Group are
accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the carliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts.

i, Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

iii. Non-controlling interests (NCI)

An entity has a choice on a combination-by-combination basis to measure any NCI that represents present ownership interest in the acquiree at
either fair value or the proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. In respect of business combinations effected so far, the Group
has elected one of the two approaches on a combination by combination basis.

Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

iv. Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other
components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

v. Equity accounted investees

The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates and joint ventures.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or jownt control, over the financial and operating policies. A
joint venture 1s an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its
assets and obhigations for its liabilities.

Interests 1n associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction
costs. Subsequent to imtial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) of equity- accounted investecs until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

vi. Obtaining control over existing investment
The difference between the fair value of the initial interest as the date of obtaining control and its book value has been recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

vi. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and (ransactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the mvestment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

B Foreign currency
i. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencics of the Group companies at the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair valug in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign

cumrency are lranslated af the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements) including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated info INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. 1f the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-
allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a part of its interest in an associate or a jownt venture while retaining significant influence or
joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount 15 reclassified to profit or loss.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
C Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost,

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

~ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classitied as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recogmition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial habilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it 1s classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group ¢
receive the contractual cash ﬂows in a transaction in Whlch subslanllally all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of
the financial asset.

It the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financiat liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate/cross currency swaps etc to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and
as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges, which is recogmsed in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis
adjustmeni 1f a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability (refer note
30A(iii) & 43(v))
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
C Financial instruments (continued)
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
(i) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

(if) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable fo a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

(iii) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the group’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly
effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i} Fair value hedge

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the
remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged
item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged 1tem is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment
15 designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk 1s
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

(i1} Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash tlow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion
1s recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group also may separate forward element and the spot element of a forward contract and designate as the hedging instrument only the change
in the value of the spot element of a forward contract.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial
income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs, When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability. the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

When an entity separates the forward element and the spot elemnent of a forward contract and designates as the hedging instrument oniy the change
m the value of the spot element of the forward contract, such amount is recognised in OCT and accumulated as a separate component of equity under
cost of hedging reserve. These amounts are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss account as a reclassification adjustment in the same period
or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss or when the hedged item is a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised in cost of hedging reserve are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction oceurs or the foreign currency finn commitment is met.

(iii) Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are
accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are
recognised as OCI while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the
foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulared impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease
term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Management estimate of useful

Asset e g

. life (in vears)
Buildings 30to 60
Plant and Machinery 0210 30
Furniture and fixtures 0lto 10
Vehicles 03to 10
Office equipment 031010
Computer equipment 03to 10
Leasehold improvements *

* Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset or the lease period whichever is lower.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical
cvaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets and are different from those prescribed in Schedule II of the Act.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Goodwill and other intangibles

i. Goodwill

For measurement of goodwill that arises on a business combination see note 39A. Subsequent measurement is at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

In respect of business combinations that occurred prior to 1 January 2011, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents the
amounts recorded under previous GAAP,

ii. Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Group in a business combination are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment tosses.

iii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

iv. Amortisation

Goodwill is not amortised and is tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of intangible assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Management estimate of useful

Asset life (in years)
Patents and trademarks 03to 10
Customer relationship and others 031010
Brands 05t0 10
Computer software 03t0 10

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
F Inventories

Inventories consist of packing materials, stores, stock in trade and spare parts and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net reahsable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
‘The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis.

G Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
- financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit -
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12
month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. 12 month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period
considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward - looking mformation

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group 1 full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

FPresentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partialty or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However. financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually.

For impainnent testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination,
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
G Impairment (continued)

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU {or the asset).

The Group's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in
prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determune the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

H Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is generally recognised as an employee benefit
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount
recognised as expense I1s based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and
non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts, The Company and its subsidiaries in various geographies make contributions, generally
determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees in accordance with the local laws and regulations in
the tespective countries which are defined contribution plans. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employes benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

(iv) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit pian is a post-employment benefit pian other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation 15 performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (*the asset ceiling’). In order fo calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCL The Group determines the net interest expense {income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or
‘past service gain®) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the
seftlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs
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Significant accounting pelicies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(v) Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the
fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it
is probable that an outtlow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

i. Onerous contracts

A contract 15 considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liability is disclosed for all:

- possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group (or)

- present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made

In respect of contingent assets for which inflow of economic benefits are probable, the Group discloses a brief description of the nature of the
contingent assets at the end of the year, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.

Revenue

i. Rendering of services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised upon the Company’s
performance of its cantractual obligations and on satisfying all the following conditions:

(1) Parties fo the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations;

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in connection with the transfer of goods or rendering of services
(hereinafter the *“Transfer”),

{3) Such contract contains specific payment terms in relation to the Transfer,

(4) Such contract has a comumercial nature, namely, it will change the risk, time distribution or amount of the Company’s future cash flow;

(5) The Company is likely to recover the consideration it is entitled to for the Transfer to customers.

Revenue is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount recognised as revenue is
exclusive of all indirect taxes and net of retums and discounts.

Performance Obligations:

a) Supply chain management

The Company’s supply chain management segment generates revenue from services to its customers such as providing freight and other
transportation services, warehousing, packaging, kitting, reverse logistics and mventory management contracts ranging from a few months to a few
vears. Certain accessorial services may be provided to customers under their transportation contracts. such as unloading and other incidental
services. The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the
Company’s services. The contracts contain a single performance obligation, as the distinct services provided remain substantially the same over
time and possess the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration specified in the centract with the customer and
contains fixed and variable consideration. In general, the fixed component of a contract represents amounts for facility and equipment costs incurred
to satisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over the term of the contract.

In the case of transportation services, performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract submits a shipment note for
the transport of goods from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satisfied over the period as the shipments move from origin to
destination and revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred. Performance obligations
are short-term, with transit days less than one week. Generally, customers are bitled either upon shipment of the freight or on a monthly basis, and
renit payment according to approved payment terms. The Company recognizes revenue on a net basis when the Company does not control the
specific services.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue (continued)

b) Telecommunication:

Telecommunication contract revenue arises from construction/ erection of towers for some of the Company’s customers in the Telecommunications
segment. These towers are constructed based on specifically negotiated contracts with customers by outsourcing the activities to sub-contractors.
Transaction price includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments, to the
extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. If the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised in profit or loss over the period in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to surveys of work performed (output method). Otherwise, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses as incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract activity. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but not billed. Revenue is measured at fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur.

c) Integrated logistics:

In respect of contracts where the Company provides a significant service of integrating two or more goods or services into a combined output (that is
the specified good or service for which the customer contracted) and the inputs to the combined output is controlled by the Company, the Company
controls that specified good or service before it is transferred to the customer. Revenues from such contracts are recognized upon substantial
fulfilment of obligations under the contract.

d) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of traded goods including telecommunication goods is recognised when the control of the same is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods and it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitled for the exchanged goods.

e) Commission:
When the Company acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction, the revenue recognised is the net amount of revenue
earned by the Company.

Variable consideration:

Generally, the Company’s coutracts contain provisions for adjustments to pricing based on achieving agreed-upon performance metrics, changes in
volumes. services and market conditions. Revenue relating to these pricing adjustments is estimated and included in the consideration if it is
probable that a significant revenue reversal will not oceur in the future. The estimate of variable consideration is determined either by the expected
value or most likely amount method and factors in current, past and forecasted experience with the customer. Customers are billed based on terms
specified in the revenue contract and remit payment according to approved payment terms,

Contract balances:

a) Contract assets:

A contract assel 1s the right 1o consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

b) Contract liabilities:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract Liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Company performs under the contract.

Leases

Group as lessee

‘The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract 1s, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
tdentitied asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a strai ght-line basis over the lease term.

IFownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group al the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are subject to impairement.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(iv) Date of commencement of leases acquired under business combinations

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments as at the acquisition date as if the acquired lease were a
new lease as at that date. The Right-of-use asset is measured at the same amount as the lease liability plus or minus any asset or liability previously
recognised in the original business combination accounting for the favourable or unfavourable lease terms.

(v) Key matters involving significant judgement

(a) Determining the lease term of contracts with termination options — Group as lessee

As per Ind AS 116, termination options are to be considered in determining the non-canceliable period. The period covered by the termination
option is included if the lessee is not reasonably certain to exercise the option. Lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with any
optional periods that the lessee is reasonably certain to use. The non-cancellable period of a lease is any period during which the lessee cannot
terminate the contract. Consequently, any non-cancellable period in effect sets a minimum lease term. This is usually referred as “lock-in period in
the lease contract. Generally, the lease contracts are cancellable once the “lock-in” period is over, and, in most cases, the termination option is
mutually available with minimum notice period requirements under the contract.

In general, since Group has made significant investments in each of the warehouse in the form of leasehold improvements, racking equipment etc,
and the termination would lead to additional expenses (losses) for dismantling and would lead to business disruption, the management in general
has concluded that there 15 economic disincentive for the Group to discontinue / terminate any arrangement. Accordingly, applying Para B34 of Ind
AS 116, except for specific cases, the Group concludes that non-cancellable period generally includes the lease period covered by the option to
terminare.

(b) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options — Group as lessee

As per Ind AS 116, the period covered by extension option is included if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option.

As reasonable certainty is a high threshold, the group believes in most leases where the lease term is greater than 3 years assuming reasonable
certainty on lease commencement date may not be appropriate and must be evaluated on a case to case basis, considering factors such as investment
in the property, renewal lease rates, specific modifications to property to meet customer requirements, importance of the location and impact on
overall business disruption etc.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or 1o the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. [f the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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N Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recogused for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and Joint arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Amendments issued by MCA to existing standards

The Company adopted following amendment issued by MCA effective from financial year beginning April 1, 2019

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

This amendment relates to tax consequence of an item whose tax treatment is uncertain. Tax treatment of an item is considered as uncertain when
there is uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax treatment of that item or not.

if there is uncertainty over tax treatment of an item:

1. An entity should determine an approach or method that predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. Based on the approach, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments.

2. It shall assess whether it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment, assuming that the authority has

full right to examine the treatment and has full knowledge of all related information.

3. If it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the tax treatment, there will be no impact on the amount of taxable profits/losses, tax bases,
unused tax losses/credits and tax rates. In viceversa case, the entity shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment on
amount of related aforesaid items by using either the most likely outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty.

Upon adoption of the Appendix C to Ind AS 12, the Company considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions. The Company determined,
based on its tax compliance, that it is probable that its tax treatments will be accepted by the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date,
10 recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilitics and assets
on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

O Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition
or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

P Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks including short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to ar insignificant risk of changes in value. Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a
matunity period of more than three months are classified as other bank balances.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities
of the Group are segregated.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Key
managerial personnel comprising the Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director assess the financial performance and position of the Group,
and make strategic decisions and have been together identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per equity share and also weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all ditutive potential equity shares.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of such significance and nature that
separate disclosure enables the user of the financial statements to understand the impact in a more meaningful manner.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards and interpretations:

The Group applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard
is described below.

Several other amendments apply for the first time for the year ending 31 March 2020, but do not have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any standards, amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective/notified.

Ind AS 116 Leases

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases under full retrospective approach to each prior reporting period presented with effect from 1st April,
2019. Ind AS 116 primarily requires the Group, as a lessee, to recognize, at the commencement of the lease a right-to-use asset and a lease liability
(representing present value of unpaid lease payments). Such right-to-use assets are subsequently depreciated and the lease liability reduced when
paid, with the interest on the lease liability being recognized as finance cost, subject to certain remeasurement adjustments.

The Group has elected to use the recognition exemptions for short term leases as well as low value assets. On transition to Ind AS 1 16, the Group
elected to apply the following practical expedients:

a) Grandfathering the assessment of which transactions are leases. The Group applied Ind AS 116 only to contracts thai were previously identified
as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under Ind AS 17 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease under Ind AS 116. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under Ind AS 116 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 Aprii 2018.

b) To exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as cither operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.
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4 Segment information
A. Basis for segmentation

The Group is primarily involved in providing the entire basket of logistics services. The information relating to this operating segment is reviewed regularly by the
Group's Key managerial personnel (KMP') (Chief Operating Decision Maker) to make decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance. The
accounting principles used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in the segment, and
are as set out in the significant accounting policies.

The Group has four reportable segments (identified on the geographical basis), as described below. These business units offer different services, and are managed
separately. For each of the reportable segments, the Group's KMP reviews internal management reports on a periodic basis.

B. lnformation about reportable segments

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as included in the
internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group's KMP. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is
most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Year ended 31 March 2020 Reportable segments
India Europe # USA Asta* Total Eliminations Total

reportable

segments
Segment revenue
- External revenue 1,60,864.68 2,77,22890  48,556.56 1,73,804.80 6,60,454.94 6,60,454.94
- [nter-segment revenue 641.93 76.16 359.05 2,828.45 3,905.59 (3,905.59) -
Total segment revenue 1,61,506.61 2,77.305.06  48.915.61 1,76,633.25 6.64,360.53 (3,.905.59) 6,60,454.94
Segment profit/ (loss) before income tax -
Segmenu profit (loss) before income tax includes:
Interest income** 3.648.15 3,716.69 21851 1,699.74 9,283.09 (8,480.62) 802.47
Interest expenses 7,942.28 12,127.93 2,944.98 7,235.19 30,250.38 (7,131.46) 23,118.92
Depreciation and amortisation 12,675.80 13,707.36 4.775.02 13,149.77 44,307.95 142.20 44,450.15
Share of profit (loss) of equity accounted 218.98 - - - 218.98 - 218.98
investees
Segment assets - 2,36,719.57 2,82,901.07  31,618.30 1.13.488.69 6.64,727.63 1,19,714.76) 5,45,012.87
Segment assels include
Discontinued operations 6,348.89 - - - 6,348.89 - 6,348.89
Investments accounted for using equity 3,566.98 148.98 - - 371596 - 3,715.96
method
Capital expenditure during the year 4,159.38 5,714.21 4,112.89 1,879.30 15,865.78 - 15,865.78
Segment liabilities 1.48,917.06 2,46,160.35  37,191.67 1,.27,902.45 5,60,171,53 174.220.75) 4,85,950.78
Segment liabilities include
Discontinued operations (4,904.61) - - - (4,904.61) - (4,904.61)
Year ended 31 March 2019 Rejoriable segments

India Europe # USA Asia* Total Eliminations Total

reportable

segments
Segment revenue
- Bxternal revenue 1,50,409.28 2,70.459.21 5464147 2,02,481.45 6,77,991.41 - 6,77,991.41
- Inter-segment revenue - 435.02 69.33 446,69 673.12 1,624.16 (1,624.16) -
Toral segment revenue 1,50,844.30 2,70,528.54  55,088.16 2,03,154.57 6,79,615.57 1,624.16) 6,77,991.41
Segment profit/ (loss) before income tax 570.64 7,103.10 1,094.03 (6,982.00) 1,785.77 44145 2,227.22
Segment profit (loss) before income tax includes:
Interest income** 1,337.71 1,839.40 52.31 66.30 3,295.72 (2,101.12) 1,194.60
Interest expenses (3,853.12) (6,877.25)  (1,304.83) (5,862.26) (17,897.46) 3,852.20 (14,045.26)
Depreciation and amortisation (11,981.98) (13,257.46)  (3812.12) (12,609.88) (41,661.44) (95.57) (41,757.01)
Share of profit (loss) of equity accounted 225.01 . - - 225.01 225.0!
investees
Sepment assets 1,66,081.00 2,07,906.71 31,310.39 1,21,516.66 5,26,814.76 160,748.72) 4,66,066.04
Segment assels include
Discontinued operations 8,148.97 - - - 8,148.97 - 8,148.97
Investiments accounted for using equity 3,491.07 - - - 3,491.07 - 3.491.07
method
Capital expenditure during the year 4,037.58 531275 1,438.10 1.841.36 12,629.79 - 12,629.79
Segment liabilities 96,436.39 1,7_6,973.35 30,355.63 1,31,295.99 4,35,061.36 (34,988.82) 4,00,072.54
Segment liabilities include
Discontinued ojierations (5,788.65) - - - (5,788.65) - (2,134.83)

* Includes results of TVS Dynamic Global Freight Solutions Luruted, India which is considered as part of Asia in the results reviewed by the CODM.

# Includes results of SPC International India Private Limited, India, SPC International Inc., USA, Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Ltd and Rico Logistics Limited,
Australia which is considered as part of Europe in the results reviewed by the CODM

** Interest income includes all interest ncome recorded under effective interest rate method.
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4 Segment information (continued)
C. Geographical information
The geographical information analyses the Group’s revenues and non-current assets by the Group’s country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting

Revenue 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
India 1,86,802.64 1,77,097.99
UK 2,19,405.53 2,04,800.51
USA 52,516.85 58,955.96
Thailand 12,268.72 10,422.22
Australia 35,887.21 40,831.71
China 9,715.52 16,836.83
Spain 62,935.59 62,997.34
Singapore 36,019.78 25,260.34
New Zealand 4,185.94 6,415.87
Rest of world 40,717.16 74,372.64
6,60,454.94 6,77,991.41
Non-current assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
India 53,889.24 53,347.53
UK 2728172 39,997.67
USA 16,821.87 14,165.25
Singapore 43,583.83 52,683.62
Australia 6,502.88 6,144.44
Spam 51,926.25 34,947.47
Thailand 6,580.96 5,514.75
Rest of world i 2,068.34 774.58
2,08,655.09 2.07,575.31

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, deferred tax assets, non-current tax assets and post-employment benefit assets.

D. Information about services rendered by the Group

Revenues from exteral customers in respect of each caterory of services rendered by the Group are as follows:

Revenue 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Lastmile ful€ilment 1,52,467.88 1,45,792.19
Outsourced supply chain management 3,34,182.27 3,29,718.10
Inter-continental movement 1,72,233.53 2,00,286.34
Others 1,571.26 2,194.78

6.60,454.94 6,77,991.41

Lastnule filfilmeni: Relates to time bound last mile delivery including technology spare parts logistics, express delivery, etc.
Ouisourced supply chain management: Relates to integrated supply chain solutions including transportation, management, warehousing and material management.

Inter-continental movement: Relates to integrated ocean/ air freight services.
(thers: Relates to services rendered other than those mentioned above

E. Major customer

The Group does not have any customer that individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019,



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share duta and otherwise stated)

5

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sale of services (refer note 40)

Income from supply chain management services
Income from clearing and forwarding services
Income from telecom services

Others

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Others

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest method on:
Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposits carried at amortised cost
Investments in debentures carried at amortised cost
Other items in finance income

Income from finance lease

Interest income on income tax refund

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipments, net

Gain on sale and lease back (refer note 16B(e))

Gain on termination of lease contracts

Net gain on sale of investments

Income from mutual funds

Provision no longer required written back

Exchange difference gain net
Other non operating income

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of packing materials at the beginning of the year

Add : Purchases

Less : Inventory of packing materials at the end of the year

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Inventoriss at the beginning of the year

Stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year

Stock-in-trade

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

1,10,570.72 91,458.15
5,10,159.56 5,38,066.21
28,953.42 26,750.48
10,520.43 13,285.28
- 7,652.19
5,49,633.41 5,85,754.16
75.14 112.01
175.67 667.09
250.81 779.10
6,60,454.94 6,77,991.41
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

511.62 231.76
253.00 295.60
30.82 667.24
7.04 -
112.04 16.18
220.96 36.77
- 43.53
6,717.55 -
1,010.13 466.15
85.04 117.06
- 25.19
4,532.59 1,915.20
3,998.19 309.61
1,342.42 1,259.70
18,821.40 5.383.99
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

41.46 61.59
3,112.09 926.11
(281.46) (41.46)
2,872.09 946.24
Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
87,956.60 93,871.84
87.956.60 93.871.84
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

16,205.30 10,917.46
(16,531.48) (16,205.26)
487.08 (163.56)
160.90 (5.451.36)




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

10

12

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans
Expenses related to compensated absences

Share based payments (refer note 36)

Staff welfare expense

Finance costs

Interest expenses

Finance cost relating to finance lease obligations

Costs incurred relating to settlement of erstwhile consortium loan (refer note 30A(i))
Other borrowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of Right of use asset
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

Freight, clearing, forwarding and handling charges
Sub-~contracting costs”

Material handling charges

Casual labour charges

Consumption of stores and spares
Staff transportation charges

Power and fuel

Rent, leasing and hiring charges

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Advertisement and business promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Communication costs

Printing & stationery

Bank charges

Factoring charges

Payment to auditors #

Legal and professional fees

Security expenses

Sales commission expenses

Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations

Bad debts written off (net of adjustment against provision for doubtful debts ¥ 4,980.40 (31 March 2019: ¥

Nil ))

Provision for doubtful financial assets and litigations

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments, net

Loss on changes in fair value of financial instruments measured at FVTPL

Costs incurred relating to settlement of erstwhile consortium loan (refer note 30A(i))
Miscellaneous expenses

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1,49,396.17 1,36,421.66
17,809.98 16,354.01
558.25 474.76
300.96 301.02
860.61 276.41
11,490.08 7,143.87
1,80,416.05 1,60.971.73
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
11,246.01 7,705.73
7,297.05 6,284.56
4,353.72 -
222,13 54.97
23.118.91 14,045.26
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
8,867.89 9,059.11
31,063.23 28,539.06
4,519.03 4,158.85
44,450.15 41,757.01
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1,89,179.82 2,11,712.33
74,112.81 72,488.61
1,555.53 1,448.42
24.604.22 23,122.03
3,501.94 2,437.62
1,436.66 1,778.33
7,502.67 7,353.49
6,321.09 5,526.99
3,966.12 3,472.40
2,205.22 4,453.11
8,958.68 9,673.70
988.73 820.53
4,177.41 4,140.14
2,796.87 2,355.79
1,304.95 1,479.35
552.81 58748
686.94 569.83
193.70 200.59
9,098.03 10,861.52
3,621.72 3,616.73
304.37 195.36
4,373.12 1,804.37
1,763.59 236.36
3,553.54 1,354.91
621.87 9.30
1.209.76 -
2,864.21 -
3,244 .42 3,920.37
3.64,700.80 3.75,619.66

* Includes cost of sub-contracting in respect of services relating to installation and commissioning of telecom towers.



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

13 Other expenses (continued)

# Details of payment to auditors

As auditor
Audit of standalone & subsidiaries’ financial statements
Audit of consolidated financial statements
Tax audit
Review of interim periods
Other audit services (including certifications etc.)
Re-imbursement of expenses

In other capacities
Other services
Re-imbursement of expenses

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

56.70 51.50
108.00 81.00
5.75 5.75

- 15.00
725 1.00
1.00 18.79
15.00 27.50
- 0.05
193.70 200.59
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the lidated fi ial stat for tlie year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs excep! share data and otherwise stated)

17 Equity accounted investees

The Group's interest in equity accounted investees comprises of the following, Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest in joint ventures* A 3,566.98 3,347.99
Interest in associate # 148.98 143.08
3,715.96 3,491.07
The Group's share of profit / (loss) in equity accounted investees arc as follows,
Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Share of profit / (loss) in joint ventures/associate* A 218.98 22501
218.98 225.01

# The investment in Montara Verpacken mit System GmbH is not material and hence the disclosures with respect to summarised financial information has not been
disclosed in the financial statements,
A. Joint ventures
The financial information of the joint ventures and the carrying amount of the Group's interest in joint ventures is as follows :
31 March 2020 TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Total
Limited (Formerly known as TVS
Infrastructure Private Limited)

50%
Non-current assets 57.300.89 57,300.89
Current assets 5,084 64 5,084.64
Non-current liabilities (42,290.64) (42,290.64)
Current liabilities (13,130.75) (13,130.75)
Net assets 6,964 14 6,964.14
Group's share of net assets 3,482.07 3,482.07
Add : Assumed poodwill 84.90 84.90
Carrying amount of interest in joint ventures as at 31 March 2020 3,566.97 3,566.97
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue 5,544 28 5,544.28
Profit 437.96 437.96
Total comprehensive income 437.96 437.96
Group's share of Profit 21898 218.98
Group's share ot OCI ~ -
Group's share of total comJ-re-hensive income 218.98 218,98
31 March 2019 TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Total

Limited (Formerly known as TVS
Infrastructure Private Limited)

. 50%

Non-current assets 38,858.49 38,858.49

Current assets 2,568.95 2,568.95

Non-current liabilities (28,381.85) (28,381.85)
Current liabilities (6,519.42) (6,519.42)
Net assets 6,526.17 6,526.17

Group's share of net assets 3,263.09 3,263.09

Add : Assumed poodwill 84.90 84.90

Carrving amount of interest in joint venture as at 31 March 2019 3.347.99 3,347.99

A. Joint ventures (continued) TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Taotal

Limited (Formerly known as TVS
Infrastructure Private Limited)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Revenue 4,256.20 4,256.20
Profit 450,46 450.46
Other comprehensive income (0.44) (0.44)
Total comprehensive income 450.02 450.02
Group's share of Profit 22523 22523
‘Group's share of OCI 10.22) 10.22)

Group's share of total comjirehensive income 225.01 225.01
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lukhs except share data and otherwise stated)

19 Investments
A. Non-current investments 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Unquoted investment in debentures carried at amortised cost

Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited*** 154.30 100.72
2,300 (31 March 2019: 11,900) Series [ NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-
Convertible Debentures of € 1000 each

Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited*** 107.21 153.06
4,500 (31 March 2019; 20,700) Series [T NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-
Convertible Debentures of T 1000 each

Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited™® - 800.00
80,000 (31 March 2019: 80,000) Optionally Convertibie Debentures of T 1000
each —
261.51 1,053.78

Unquoted investment in preference shares carried at amortised cost

Cargowings Logistics Limited 2,500.00 2,500.00
25,000,000 (31 March 2019 : 25,000,000) redeemable preference shares
("RPS") of T 10 each fully paid up

2,500.00 2,500.00
Provision for decline in fair value of investments
Unquoted investments in preference shares
Cargowings Logistics Limited (2,500.00) (2,500.00)
(2,500.00) (2,500.00)
Total non-current investments N — 261.51 1,053.78
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,761.51 3,553.78
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 2,500.00 2,500.00
B. Current investments 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quoted investment in mutual funds at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
31 March 2020° Nil (31 March 2019, 17,034.78) units of Axis Liquid Direct Growth Fund - 353.22
31 March 2020: Nil (31 March 2019: 10,506.3) units of Tata Direct Growth Plan Fund - 316.79
31 March 2020: Nil (31 March 2019: 50,00,000) units of Tata Ultra TATA Ultra Short Term Direct Growth Plan Fund - 500.31
Others at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) - 3.02
- 1,173.34

Unquoted investment in debentures carried at amortised cost
Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited*** 99.29 135.00
9,600 (31 March 2019: 13,500) Series [ NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-
Convertible Debentures of ¥ 1000 each
Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited*** 162.00 99.90
16,200(31 March 2019. 9,900) Series | NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-
Convertible Debentures of ¥ 1000 each

Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited"" 800.00 -
80,000 (31 March 2019 80,000) Optionally Convertible Debentures of T 1000
each
1,061.29 234.90

Unquoted debt securities at FVTPL - -

Total current investments 1,061.29 1.408.24
Aggrepate value of quoted investments & market value - 1,173.34
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 1,061.29 234.90

**+ Series | NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures and Series Il NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures carries Interest at 0.1% p.a and
redeemable over a period commencing from July 31, 2016 as stated below :

Series I NCD Amount  Series [ NCD Amount
31 July 2020 96.00 30 November 2020 162.00
31 July 2021 23.00 30 November 2021 45.00

119.00 207.00

~~ The Optionally Convertible Debentures ("OCD") which carries minimum 20% IRR, is either redeemable or convertible into equity shares of Prasanna Purple
Mobility Solutions Private Limited as per the terms and conditions set out in the shareholder's agreement between TVS Commutation Solutions Limited and Prasanna
Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited. The redemption/ conversion shall be done in two years from 01 March 2016 (date of issuance). The redemption /
conversion has been extended till December 2020,




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share duta and otherwise stated)

20

21

22

23

Deposits and other receivables

Security deposits

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful security deposits
Unsecured considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful security deposits

Security depaosit to related parties
Unsecured, considered good

Other receivables
Loans and advances to employees

Finance lease receivables (refer note 15)
Receivable from others
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful receivables

L.oans to others

Other financial assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kiud
Unsecured considered good

Unbilled revenue

Margin money deposited with banks

Cross currency interest rate swap

Deposits with banks with more than 12 months maturity
Interest accrued on investments

Others

Other non current assets

Prepaid expenses
Advance for supply of goods and services
Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful receivables

Inventories

{valued at lower of cost cr net realizable value)

Packing materials
Stock-in-trade

Stores and spares

Non-current

Current

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

2,833.65 2,352.53 3.947.92 2,581.40
- - 96.92 117.00
- - (96.92) (117.00)
2,833.65 2,352.53 3,947.92 2,581.40
336.11 305.76 145.94 136.38
336.11 305.76 145,94 136.38
- - 423.20 365.64
1,192.20 1,078.09 275.57 609.60
- - 542.17 1,383.44
- - 180.74 180.74
- - (180.74) (180.74)
1,192.20 1,078.09 1,240.94 2,358.68
4,361.96 3.736.38 5.334.80 5,076.46
Non-current Current

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

- - 185.71 -
- - 185.71 -

- - 24,376.58 23,031.84
132.52 123.69 :

- - - 174.72
10.50 - - .
605.44 605.44 - -

- 23.04 293.75 75.83

748.46 75217 24.,856.04 23.282.39

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

114 1.33
156.80 175.00
156.80 175.00
561.98 112.22
4.20 -
(4.20) -
561.98 112.22
719.92 288,55

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

281.46 4146

16,531.48 16,205.26
169.24 369.50

16.982.18 16.616.22




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (INR} lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

24 Trade receivables

26

27

28

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Gross trade receivables
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 1,30,727.96 1,20,850.53
Doubtful 7,473.38 9,605.46
1,38,201.34 1,30,455.99
Loss allowance
Doubtful (7,473.38) (9,605.46)
(7,473.38) (9,605.46)
Net trade receivables 1,30.727.96 1,20.850.53
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note below) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash on hand 74.58 102.09
Cheques on hand 14.50 1.27
89.08 103.36
Balance with banks
On current accounts 87,878.41 46,376.61
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 493.79 1,005.20
88,372.20 47,381.81
88,461.28 47.485.17
Note:

As per the facility agreement under the refinancing arrangement (refer note 30A(ii)), the Group is required to maintain minimum cash and cash equivalents balance of
USD 20 Million.

Other bank balances
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months less than 12 months 26,216.52 2,410.27
26,216.52 2,410.27
Loans Current

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Loan to others
Unsecured, considered good - -

Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,004.63 1,004.63
Provision for doubtful loans (1,004.63) (1,004.63)
Other current assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance related to supply of goods and services to parties other than related parties

Unsecured, considered good 2,419.76 2,736.29

Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,710.46 1,684.64

Provision for doubtful receivables (1,710.46) (1,684.64)
2,419.76 2,736.29

Balances with statutory authorities

Unsecured, considered good 3,292.95 3281.37
3,292.95 3,281.37

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 8,511.40 8,225.14

Fixed assets held for sale - 4.88

Others 67.90 40.98

14,292.01 14,288.66




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

29A Share capital
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised share capital

34,800,000 (31 March 2019: 34,800,000) equity shares of Z 10 each 3,480.00 3,480.00
1,200,000 (31 March 2019: 1,200,000) preference shares of Z 10 each # 120.00 120.00
1,100,000 (31 March 2019: Nil) preference shares of ¥ 100 each 1,100.00 -
Issued

Equily shares

13,810,401 (31 March 2019: 13,810,401) equity shares of % 10 each at par 1,381.04 1,381.04
5.066.800 (31 March 2019: 5,066,800} equity shares of 2 10 each at a premium of % 185.72 per share 506.68 506.68
3,223,194 (31 March 2019: 3,223,194} equity shares of % 10 each at a premium of % 185 per share 322.32 32232
275,800 (31 March 2019: 275,800) equity shares of ¥ 10 each at a premium of T 65 per share 27.58 27.58
4,456,816 (31 March 2019: 4,456,816) equity shares of T 10 each at a premium of T 424,92 per share 445,68 44568
1,798,607 (31 March 2019 : 1,798,607) equity shares of Z10 each at a premium of T 685 per share 179.86 179.86
3,163,515 (31 March 2019 : 3,163,515) equity shares of %10 each at a premium of Z 940 per share 316.35 316.35
95,000(31 March 2019:Nil) equity shares of 210 each at a premium of Z 940 per share 9.50

Total issued capital 3.189.01 3,179.51

Called, Subscribed and Paid up
Fquity shares

31,730,133 (31 March 2019: 31,635,133) equity shares of Z 10 each 3,173.01 3,163.51
Add: Amount paid up on 160,000 (31 March 2019: 160,000) equity shares forfeited at % 2 each 3.20 320
3.176.21 3,166.71

# 15,351 (31 March 2019: 15,351) 0.0001% cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, participating preference shares have been classified as a financial liability (see
note 30).

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at end of the reporting period

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Nos Tin lakhs Nos % in lakhs
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 3,16,35,133 3,166.71 3,16,35,133 3,166.71
Movement during the year 95,000 - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 3,17,30,133 3.166.71 3.16.35,133 3,166.71

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Companry has one class of equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The Company declares
and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting ("AGM")

c. Terms/rights attached to preference shares#

The preference shares shall be cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, participating preference shares (‘preference shares). The preference shares shall carry a
preferential right to dividends over the Equity Shares. The preference shares shall carry a fixed rate of preferential dividend at the rate of 0.0001% per annum. In
addition to the fixed rate of dividend, the preference shareholders shall, at their discretion, be entitled to additional preferential dividend and carry a preferential right
to dividends over the equity shares . The preference shares shall be redeemed, from time to time as may be required by the preference shareholders at face value plus
the redemption premium payable thereon no later than 20 years from the date of allotment or longer period as may be prescribed by law

‘The holder of preference shares have a right to vote only on resolutions placed before the company which directly affect the rights attached ta preference shares and,
any resolution for the winding up of the company or for the repayment or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and voting right on a poll shall be in
proportion to the share in the paid-up preference share capital of the company. On winding up or repayment of capital, the preference shareholders shall carry a

preferential right of repayment.
ain §,
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwive stated)

29A

29B

Share capital (continued)
d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares shares
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 1,07,27,343 3381% 1,07,27,343 33.91%
CDPQ Private Equity Asia Pte Ltd 1,21,36,892 38.25% 1,21,36,892 38.37%
Dinram Logistics Services LLP 29,82, 464 9.40% 29,82,464 9.43%
Omega Tc Holdings Pte Ltd, Singapore 23,68,865 7.47% 23,68,865 7.49%
0.0001% Cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, participating preference
shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up
Tata International Limited 7,677 50.01% 7,677 50.01%
Tata Industries Limited 7,674 49.99% 7,674 49.99%
0.0001% Non- cumulative, participating, compulsorily convertible preference
shares of ¥ 100 each, fully paid up (Series A)
Mahogany Singapore Company Pte. Ltd 10,23,350 100.00% - -
0.0001% Non- Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulserily Convertible
Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up
David Robbins 39,998 21.05% 39,998 21.05%
MS Krishnan 9,992 5.26% 9,992 5.26%
Suehow Pty Ltd 12,004 6.32% 12,004 6.32%
R Dinesh 2,996 1.58% 2,996 1.58%
Sanjive Sharma 40,002 21.05% 40,002 21.05%
Tarun Khanna 45,006 23.69% 45,006 23.69%
Andrew Jones 40,002 21.05% 40,002 21.05%

Other equity
Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions for the Companies Act, 2013,

Capital reserve
During prior years, the Company had reissued the shares forfeited. The profit on reissue of such forfeited shares has been transferred to capital reserve.

Capital redem ption reserve
The Company has redeemed preference shares issued to Tata International Limited and Tata Industries Limited, out of profits of the Company. A sum equivalent to
the nominal amount of the shares redeemed has been transferred to capital redemption reserve in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Share warrants

On June 8, 2018 and August 22, 2018, the Company issued 30,000 and 65,000 share warrants respectively, at a price of Rs. 950 per share warrant to identified
persons on a preferential basis for a aggregate consideration of Rs. 902.50 lakhs with a right to apply and get allotment of equity shares of the Company ranking pari-
passu with the existing equity shares, in the ratio of 1:1 within a period of 18 months from the date of issue of share warrants or earlier at the option of the Board.
During the previous year, the Company had received Rs. 225.63 lakhs (25% of the issue price as at balance sheet date). During the year, the company has received Rs.
676.87 Lakhs (balance 75% of the issue price) and accordingly the company has alloted 95,000 equity shares at a face value of Rs. 10 per share at Rs. 940 per share
premium.

Share options

The Company has Management Incentive Plan (MIP) scheme under which share options are granted to employees which has been approved by the shareholders of the
company. In accordance with the terms of the plan, eligible employees may be granted options to purchase equity shares of the company if they are in service on
exercise of the grant. Each employee share option converts into one equity share of the company on exercise at the exercise price as per the scheme. The option carry
neither rights to dividend nor voting rights Options can be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date of their expiry.



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
{All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhy except share data and otherwise stated)

29C

29D

29E

Other equity (continued)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares

On June 8, 2018 and August 22, 2018, the Company has allotted 13,340 and 25,660 Non- Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
(“CCPS™) of Rs.10 each respectively, at a premium of Rs.940 each to identified persons on a preferential basis for a consideration of Rs.126.73 lakhs and Rs.243.77
lakhs respectively. CCPS carry a dividend of 0.001% per annum and the dividend rights are non- cumulative. On November 20, 2018, the Company has issued bonus
shares of 151,000 to the shareholders of CCPS in the ratio of 1:3.87 and the securities premium account was utilised to the extent of Rs.15.10 lakhs for the issue of
said bonus shares. The preference shares to be converted into equal number of equity shares ranking pari-passu with the existing equity shares, after the end of four
years from the date of issue or earlier at the option of the Board. In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion of preference shares, the holders of
preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the repayment of capital.

On February 7, 2020, the Company has allotted 10,23,350 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of Rs.100 each, at a premium of
Rs.1610.07 each to Mahogany Singapore Company Pte. Ltd (“CCPS Holder”) on a preferential basis, for a consideration of approx. Rs. 175 Crore. Each CCPS carries
a minimum preferential dividend rate of 0.0001% and in addition to and after payment of such preferential dividend, the CCPS Holder would be entitled to participate
pari-passu in any dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including equity shares) or series on a pro rata, as-if-converted basis. Each CCPS would
be converted into fully paid-up equity shares ranking pari-passu with the existing equity shares, in the ratio of 1:1 (subject to such adjustments as contemplated in the
subscription agreement dated January 22, 2020 executed by and amongst inter alia the Company and the CCPS Holder (“SSA™)), on the earlier of (i) expiry of a period
of 18 (eighteen) months from the closing date (as defined under the SSA) (February 7, 2020); and (ii) the date when a prospective shareholder (as defined under the
SSA) (including such prospective shareholder’s affiliates) acquires equity shares or equity securities convertible into equity shares representing, in the aggregate, at
least 7% (Seven percent) of the then share capital of the Company (on a fully diluted basis) (in one or more transactions).

Other items of OCI

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance (113.03) 2.77

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset) (net of taxes) 85.01 (115.80)
Closing balance (28.02) 1113.03)

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabitity/(asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income).

Capital management
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
The Group monitors capital using a ratio of 'debt' to ‘equity’. For this purpose, debt is defined as total debt, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. Equity comprises all components of equity.
The Group's debt to equity ratio is as follows:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total current and non-current borrowings 2,12,189.15 1,43,245.42
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 6,382.44 8,430.18
Debt 2,18,571.59 1,51,675.60
Total equity 59,062.09 67,933.48
Debt to equity ratio 3.70 2.23

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculations of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes of basic and diluted earnings per
share calculation are as follows:

(i) Profit (loss) attributable to equity shareholders 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the equity holders from continuing operations (19,236.40) 362.60
Profit (loss} for the year, attributable to the equity holders from discontinuing operations 2.73 (1,712.38)
(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 3,16,47,311 3,16,35,133
Add - Number of shares relating to compulsorily convertible preference shares 3,38,190 1,28,395
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 3,19,85,501 3,17,63,528
Adjustments for dilutive effect

- Number of shares relating to Management Incentive Plan 60,728 10,996
- Number of shares relating to share warrants 1,203 9235
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 3,20,47,432 3,17,75,449




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

30 Borrowings

{a) Non-current borrowings

Secured term loans from banks

Unsecured term loans from banks

Secured term loans from financial institutions
Secured long term obligations under finance leases

Total non-current borrowings
(b) Current borrowings

Term loan from financial institution
Secured
Unsecured

Term loan from banks
Unsecured

Cash credit from banks
Secured
Unsecured

Bills discounting
Unsecured

Revolving credit facility
Secured

Loans repayable on demand
Secured
Unsecured

Cemmercial Paper
Unsecured

Redeemable preference shares (unsecured)

Other short term loans
Secured
Unsecured, refated party

Current portion of long term borrowings
Secured term loans from banks

Secured term loans from financial institutions
Secured finance lease obligations

Less: Amount included under 'Other financial liabilities'

Total current borrowings
Information about Group's exposure to interest raie and liquidity risks is included in note 43.

A, Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

94,038.76 85,878.13
- 2,100.00
2.28 636.59
1,882.90 1,819.03
95.923.94 90,433.75
7,020.00 4,220.00
5,080.00 -
1,200.00 -
5,261.96 5,400.90
23.65 1,771.27
4,353.56
45,165.16 30,474.90
10,308.22 2,915.55
35,333.63 6,750.00
- 47.45
891.60 891.60
1,287.43 .
340,00 340.00
1,16,265.21 52,811.67
5,069.23 6,632.90
636.35 863.53
676.86 933.75
6,382.44 8,430.18
1,22,647.65 61,241.85
(6,382.44) (8,430.18)
1.16,265.21 52.811.67

Carrying amount as at

Year of maturity 31 March 2020

31 March 2019

In lakhs of INR Currency Nominal
Interest rate
Secured term loan from banks
Consortium loan arrangement (refer note (i) below) uUSD/ GBP 2.15%+3
months LIBOR
DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard UsSD / GBP 2.1% + | month
Chartered Bank (refer note (i1) & (iii) below) LIBOR
HDFC Bank INR 8.80%
HDFC Bank INR 8.50%-935%
p.a.

2022 - 92,427.76

2022 - 2025 93,874.69 -
Nov 2021 - 15.99
2023 233.30 6730
94,107.99 92,511.05



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All umounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhy except share datu and otherwise stated)

30 Borrowings (continued)

A. Terms and repayment schedule (continued)
Carrving amount as at

In lakhs of INR Currency Nominal _ Year of maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest rate
Unsecured term loan from banks
Axis Bank Limited INR 9.10% 2020 5,000.00 2,100.00
HDFC Bank Limited INR 7.50%-8.35% 2020. 1,200.00 -
' 6,200.00 2,100.00
Secured term loan from financial institutions
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited INR 10.25% 2021 625.01 1,458.33
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited INR 11.50% 2020 7,020.00 -
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited INR 9.80% 2019 - 4,220.00
Sundaram Finance Limited INR 9.75% - 10.96% 2021 13.63 41.78
7,658.64 5,720.11
Unsecured term loan from Financial institutions
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited INR 11.50% 2021 5,080.00 -
5,080.00 -
Secured finance lease obligations
Sundaram Finance Limited INR 10.20% 2021 4.39 837
Asset Alliance Limited GBP 6.6% to 14% 2021 2,047.33 2,484.75
Other banks 508.04 259.65
2,559.76 2,752.77
Secured cash credit facilities from banks
Indian Overseas Bank INR 7.60% 37.58 -
Yes Bank INR MCLR +2.25% 2020 197.99 -
pa.
ANZ Loan AUD 4.04% 5,026.39 5,400.90
5,261.96 5,400.90
Unsecured cash credit facilities from banks
Axis Bank Limited INR 7.5%-7.8% 23.65 -
Sabadelt EURO 0.40% - 1,058.23
BBVA EURO 0.29% - 247.96
B.Popular EURO 0.25% - 206.85
HDFC Bank INR 9.90% - 9.25% - 202.78
Other bank THB - 55.45
23.65 1,771.27
Bill discounting
Axis Bank limited INR 7.95% 3,257.76
Other Bank SGD 2.00% 1,095.80 -
4,353.56 -
Secured revolving credit facility
Consortium loan arrangement (refer note (i) below) USD/ GBP 2% + 3 month - 30,474.90
LIBOR
DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard USD/ GBP 1.80% + 1 month 45,165.16 -
Chartered Bank (refer note (ii) & (iii) below) LIBOR -
45,165.16 30,474.90
Secured loans repayable on demand
IDFC First Bank Limited INR 10.50% 100.00 100.00
Bankia EUR 3.10% 1,181.83 1,188.79
State Bank of India INR 7.48%-8.73% 3,000.00 -
DBS bank INR 7.50%-9.00% 1,000.00 -
Banco Sant.nder EUR 2.00% 309.01 -
Banc Sabadell EUR 2.00% 83.77 -
La Caixa EUR 2.00% 80.05 -
Bankinter EUR 2.00% 626.59 -
[bercaja EUR 2.00% 188.01 -
Others GBP - 1,626.76
6,569.26 2,915.55
Unsecured loans repayable on demand
Standard Chartered Bank INR 7.11%-8.20% 14,000.00
Axis Bank Limited INR 7.78%-8.06% 9,850.00 6,750.00
DBS Bank INR 7.50%-9.00% 4,000.00
HDFC Bank Limited INR 7.50%-8.35% 12,500.00
Others INR 7.80% 10.02 -
40,360.02 6,750.00
Unsecured commercial paper EURO - 4745

47.45
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30 Borrowings (continued)

A. Terms and repayment schedule (continued)
Carrying amount as at
In lakhs of INR Currency Nominal  Year of maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest rate

Redeemable preference shares

Unsecured INR 891.60 891.60
891.60 891.60
Other short term loans (Unsecured)
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited INR 8.10% 340.00 340.00
340.00 340.00
2,18,571.60 1,51,675.59
Note:

i) Under facility arrangement ("FA") as amended on June 29, 2018 arranged by DBS Bank Ltd and Standard Chartered Bank, the subsidiaries outside India have
borrowed term loans / revolving credit (working capital) facilities from consortium of banks/financial institutions. The agreement was closed on March 26, 2020.

ii) On March 26, 2020, the Group has refinanced the existing bank term loan of USD 1,001.61 lakhs & GBP 204.60 lakhs (from a Consortium of Banks/finanical
institutions) with a fresh term loan of USD 300 lakhs and GBP 783.92 lakhs and revolving credit facility of GBP 495.11 lakhs, from DBS, SCB & Axis Bank. The
term loan is repayable between March 2022 and March 2025.

{ii) On refinancing of the existing bank term loan, the Group has closed their hedging contracts, consequent to which hedge accounting has been discontinued and no
outstanding hedges exist as at March 31, 2020 (refer note 43(v) also).

B. Secured loans

Secured term loan from banks

USD / GBP term loan from DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited and its
subsidiaries is secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

USD / GBP term loan from DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Logistics Investments UK Limited and its subsidiaries is
secured by a charge on its shares, its other assets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

USD / GBP term loan from the consortium loan arrangement availed by TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited and its subsidiaries is secured by a charge
on its other assets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited. In addtion to that TLM Logistics share is also secured by way
of pledge

USD / GBP term loan from the consortium loan arrangement availed by TVS Logistics Investments UK Limited and its subsidiaries is secured by a charge on its
other assets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

Warking capital loan from Yes bank is sccured against the present & future current assets of Flexol Packaging (India) Private Limited.

Secured term loan from financial institutions

I Term Loan at 10.25% interesi rate from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited is secured by an exclusive mortgage of immovable property located at Mumbai and
first and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on identified movable fixed assets.

2. Term loan at 9.80% from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited is secured by an exclusive charge on specific movable fixed assets and hypothecation of
recetvables arising out of redemption amount of NCD of Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited

3 Term loans from Sundaram Finance Limited are secured by hypothecation of vehicles and equipments acquired out of the loan.

4 The Term loan of 11.50% is trom Tata Capital Financial Services Limited. The total facility is for Rs.200 crore of which Rs.80 crore is secured against the
company's plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, computer equipements and office equipments.

Finance lease obligations
Finance lease obligations are secured against the respective assets taken on finance lease.

Cash credit facility from banks

Term loans from HDFC Bank Limited are secured by hypothecation of vehicles acquired out of the loan.

Cash credit from ANZ bank availed by TVS Asianics Australia Pty. Limited is secured by fixed and floating charges over all present and future assets, undertaking
(including goodwill) and unpaid or uncalled capital of T.LF Holdings Pty. Limited, corporate guarantee and indemnity unlimited by TVS Asianics Australia Pty.
Limited.

Cash credit from Indian Overseas bank is obtained by SPC International India Private Limited and it's secured agains the fixed deposits

Revolving credit facility

GBP revolving credit facility from DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited and its
subsidiaries is secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

GBP revolving credit facility from DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Logistics Investments UK Limited and its
subsidiaries is secured by a charge on its shares, its other assets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

GBP revolving credit facility from the consortium loan arrangement availed by TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited and its subsidiaries is secured by a
charge on its other assets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited. In addition to that TLM Logistics share is also secured
by way of pledge.

GBP revolving credit facility from the consortium loan arrangement availed by TVS Logistics Investments UK Limited and its subsidiaries is secured by a charge on
its other assets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
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Loans repayable on demand from banks

The term loan from IDEC First Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation charge on entire current assets of TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chains Solution Pvt Ltd.

The overdraft facility from Bankia is availed by Eltec IT Services S.L.U and is secured by the letter of comfort provided by RICO Logistics Limited, UK.

Working capital loan from State Bank of India is secured against the debtors of the company.

Working capital loan from DBS Bank is secured upto Rs. 10 crore against the debtors of the company.

Loan from Banco Santander, Banc Sabadell, La Caixa, Bankinter, Ibercaja are availed against the security of current assets of TVS Logistics Iberia S.L.

*During the previous year, there were certain breaches of the consortium arrangement which in the opinion of the management did not constitute a major breach,
accordingly had no impact on the classification and presentation of such loans on March 31, 2019.

C. Redeemable Preference Shares
The Company has cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, participating preference shares. These preference shares have been classified as a liability. For rights,
preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares attached to these preference shares refer note 29.

Trade payables 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade payables to related parties 119.96 310.14
Other trade payables 1,01,138.25 96,450.36

1,01,258.21 96,760.50
Note.

Trade payables includes bill discounting from Axis Bank Limited amounting to Nil (31 March 2019: ¥7,995.33 lakhs) and is generally payable within 90 days.

Other financial liabilities
Non-current portion Current portion
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Interest rate/Cross currency interest rate swap - 1,123.27 - -
Derivatives - Forward contract payables - - 1,205.60 -
Written put option/ forward obligation liability - - 3,854.41 3,157.60
Amount due to employees - - 5,027.96 5,293.78
Current matunties of long term borrowings - - 5,705.58 7.496.43
Current maturities of finance lease obligations - - 676.86 933.75
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 492.45 84.86
Payable to factor - - 864.47 995.51
Security deposits payable 1,057.09 - - 1,179.71
Deferred consideration® 975.57 - 1,250.94 7,040.65
Capital creditors 1,597.26 - 1.465.94 248.66
Contractually reimbursabie liability - - - -
Others - 21.72 428.88 442.20
3.629.92 1,144.99 20.973.09 26,873.15

* Deferred consideration includes payable towards acquisition of shares in Triage Holdings Limited amounting ¥ Nil lakhs (31 March 2019 ¥452.38 lakhs), in TLM
Logistics Management Co. Ltd. ‘Amounting to ¥ 975.57 lakhs (31 March 2019 % 495.57 lakhs), in Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pte. Ltd. amounting to ¥ Nil lakhs (31
March 2019 % 4,069.14 ),in T.I.F Holdings Pty. Ltd., Australia amounting to ¥ 281.72 (31 March 2019: ¥ 297.20) and Nadal Forwarding S.L, Spain amounting to ¥
969.22 lakhs (31 March 2019: ¥ 1,726.36).

Provisions (refer note 37) Non-current portion Current portion
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provisions for employee benefits
Liability for retirement benefit abligations 804.31 561.07 523.72 895.85
Liability for compensated absences 596.19 487.57 1,662.73 1,104.21

Other provisions

Provision for dilapidation 436.24 536.88 - -
Provision for warranties - - 19.94 -
Provision for onerous contracts - - - 446.42
Provision for litigations - 231.13 258.53 483.36
1,836.74 1.816.65 2.464.92 2.929.84
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Movement in other provisions Dilapidation Onerous contracts Others Total
Balance as at 31 March 2018 650.61 1,002.29 279.50 1,932.40
Assumed in a business combination 0.54 - - 0.54
Provisions made during the period 1.77 - 445.67 447.44
Provisions utilised during the period (122.88) (583.08) (10.68) (716.64)
Foreign exchange adjustments 6.84 27.21 - 34.05
Balance as at 31 March 2019 536.88 446.42 714.49 1,697.79
Provisions made during the period 108.18 - 0.88 109.06
Provisions utilised during the period (220.59) (452.17) (442.23) (1,114.99)
Foreign exchange adjustments 11.77 5.75 5.33 22.85
Balance as at 31 March 2020 436.24 0.00 278.47 714.71

Other non-current liabilities

Deferred rent

Other current liabilities

Deferred revenue
Statutory dues

Advances from custoners
Others

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

155.16

241.00

155.16

241.00

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,974.65 2,778.75
6,217.14 6,018.26
1,152.76 786.77
1,306.70 1,619.41
10.997.75 11,203.19




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

36 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its subsidiaries in various geographies make contributions, generally determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in
respect of qualifying employees in accordance with the local laws and regulations in the respective country which are defined contribution plans. The
Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they
accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards such defined contribution plans for the year aggrepated to ¥ 17,809.98 lakhs (31 March 2019: ¥
16,354.01 lakhs)

Defined benefit plans Non-current Current

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provisions for retirement benefit 804.31 561.07 523.72 895.85
obligations

For details about the related employee benefit expenses, see note 10.

Details of retirement benefit obligations
The Company and its subsidiaries in India have a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (the Plan), governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
Plan entitles employees, who have rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee at the time of retirement, death or
termination of employment. Further, certain entities of the Group in Korea, Thailand and Indonesia have retirement benefit plans in accordance with the
requirements of their respective local laws.

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

A. Funding
The gratuity plans of the Company and certain subsidiaries in India is a funded plan with the Company making periodic contributions to a fund
managed by certain insurance companies. The retirement benefit plans of the overseas subsidiaries noted above are unfunded.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its

components:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,739.17 2,146.39
Benefits paid (385.49) (164.58)
Current service cost 476.47 449.74
Interest cost 135.50 110.54
Past service cost 32.03 -
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (56.40) 37.67
- changes in financial assumptions (27.74) 11479
- experience adjustments (61.31) 48.48
Exchange difterences 185.42 (3.86)
Balance at the end of the year 3,037.66 2,739.17
Recouciliation of the fair value of plan assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,282.24 1,232.98
Contributions paid 726.17 101.80
Benefits paid (385.49) (164.58)
Interest income 85.75 85.52
Acwarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 0.96 26.52
Balance at the end of the year 1,709.63 1,282.24
Net defined benefit (asset} / liability 1,328.03 1,456.93
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Employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

C. Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost
Interest cost

Past service cost
Interest income

Expenses relating to discontinued operations
Expenses relating to continuing operations

D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation
Actuarial (gain}/ loss on plan assets

E. Plan assets
Plan assets comprise of the following:
Insurer managed funds

F. Defined benefit obligation

i. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were:
Discount rate

Future salary growth

Afttrition rate

Expected return on plan assets

ii. Sensitivity analysis

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

476.47 445.74
135.50 110.54
32.03 -
(85.75) (85.52)
558,25 474.76
558.25 474.76
(145.45) 200.95

(0.96) (26.52)
(146.41) 174.43

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,709.63

1,282.24

1,709.63

1,282.24

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

5.00%-7.50%
2%-10%
3%-58%
5.33%-19%

2.55% - 7.79%
7% - 10%

5% -53%
6.5%106.7%

Reasonably possibie changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant acarial assumptions, hoiding other assumptions constant, would have affected

the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (128.87) 140.72
Future salary growth (1% movement) 125.20 (117.25)
Attrition rate (1% movement) (24.08) 31.32

Increase
(87.03)
91.19
(48.88)

Decrease
103.55
(77.42)

18.81

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cashflows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensitivity of the assumptions shown

Share based payments

The company has Management Incentive Plan (MIP) scheme under which share options are granted to employees which has been approved by the
shareholders of the company. In accordance with the terms of the plan, eligible employees may be granted options to purchase equity shares of the
company if they are in service on exercise of the grant. Each employee share option converts into one equity share of the company on exercise at the
exercise price as per the scheme. The option carry neither rights to dividend nor voting rights. Options can be exercised at any time from the date of
vesting to the date of their expiry.

The following share based payment arrangements were in existence during the current year:

Option series (Refer note Fair value at grant

Number Grant date Exercise price
below) date
MIP [ 11,69,791 20-Nov-18 950.00 964.00
MIP 11 - Pool A & Pool B 8,97,008 20-Nov-18 950.00 964.00
MIP I 1,75,000 14-Feb-20 950.00 1,531.50
MIP II - Pool A & Pool B 1,11,984 16-May-19 950.00 1,193.80
MIP 11 - Pool A & Pool B 14,768 01-Jul-19 950.00 1,193.80

Note:
Under MIP I, the vesting of options granted is linked to time.
Under MIP 11 - Pool A & Pool B, shares vest on varying dates with an option life of 5 years after vesting.
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Fair value of share options granted during the year

The weighted average fair value of the stock options granted during the financial year is  650.9 (MIP 1) & % 276.0 (MIP II) (Previous year: T 80.2
(MIP I) & % 107.36 (MIP II)). Options were priced using a Black Scholes option valuation model & Monte Carlo simulation model for MIP I and I
respectively. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best estimate for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations, Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility of guideline

companies in developed and developing countries.

Inputs in to the model;

MIP Ii - Pool A MIP II- Pool A & MIP IL-Pool A &

MIPI & Pool B Pool B Pool B
Grant date share price * 1,531.50 964.00 1,193.80 1,193.80
Grant date 14-Feb-20 20-Nov-18 16-May-19 01-Jul-19
Exercise price 950.00 950.00 950.00 950.00
Expected volatility 35.90% 33.10% 36.23% 36.23%
Option life 1.13 years 3.61 years 3.13 years 3 years
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.15% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk free interest rate 5.10% 7.50% 6.44% 6.44%
* Before adjustment for lack of marketabulity
Movements in share options during the year
Year ended .
March 31, 2020 Weighted . Yegr EadCtiVgreh Weighted average
MIP I average exercise 31, 2019 . A
Number of . , exercise price
. price Number of options
options
Opening at the beginning of the year 11,69,791 950 - -
Granted during the year 1,75,000 950 11,69,791 950
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forteited and expired durning the year 9,908 950 - -
Balance at the end of the vear 13,34,883 950 11,69,791 950
Year ended .
March 31, 2020 Weighted . ¥earended March Weighted average
MIP I average exercise 31,2019 X .
Number of . . exercise price
. price Number of options
options
“Opening at the beginning of the year 939,838 950 . -
Granted during the year 1,29,828 950 9,39,838 950
Exercised during the year - - - .
Forfeited and expired during the year 45,906 950 - -
Balance at the end of the year 10,23,760 950 9,39,838 950

Share options vested but not exercised during the year - Nil

Share options outstanding at the end of the year - MIP I - 13,34,883 & MIP II - 10,23,760
The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average exercise price of T 950 and a weighted average remaining contractual life

of 1.55 years

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account (net of capital advances) and not provided for

Contingent liabilities:

Employee related matters (refer note (ii) below)

Income tax related matters

Bank guarantees issued

Service tax related matters

Sales tax related matters

GST related matters

Claims not acknowledged as debt *

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
883.64 -
2,204.91 17.58
12,51 -
68.52 97.72
815.46 10,160.87
112,15 1,840.16
285.37 -
406.44 13.62

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
1,045.04 -
2,183.59 17.58
0.14 -
248.48 357.64
1,618.06 10,160.87
1.95 2,588.83
32339 13.62
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Capital commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

Note:

From time to time, the Group is involved in claims and legal matters arising in the ordinary course of business. Management is not currently aware of
any matters that will have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the Group.

(i) In respect of certain contingent liabilities of Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited (discontinuing operations), DIESL is entitled to be
compensated by its erstwhile shareholders in the event of an unfavourable outcome as per the terms of the share purchase agreement.

(it) The Company has challenged the demand orders from Provident Fund authorities amounting to Rs 2,183.59 Lakhs for the periods April 2011 to
February 2015 on the grounds that provident fund on certain allowances need not be included for calculation of the Provident Fund contribution, as the
same is not universally paid to all the employees of the Company.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employecs
should be identified for inclusion for the purposes of computation of the Provident Fund contribution. Consequently, the Company has filed a review
petition to Regional Provident Fund Commissioner to review the demand order in the light of the Supreme Court decision. The Company has also
obtained an interim injunction from Honourable High Court of Madras pending disposal of the Company’s petition. Based on legal advice obtained,
the Company is of the view that no provision is required for the dispute in the financials as at March 31, 2020.

(iii) Disputes with minority sharcholders

(a) Arbitration with erstwhile Chief Executive officer and minority shareholder of TVS Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte Limited

TVS Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte Limited ("TVS Asianics") and the Company are part of an ongoing arbitration at Singapore International
Arbitration Centre (SIAC) with a former CEO of TVS Asianics who is also a minority shareholder in relation to amounts payable and other benefits
due under the employment and other related contracts. The Company had terminated the services of the CEO for cause in 2019 and has accrued for
appropriate costs till the date of termination based on internal review and legal advice and believes no further adjustments are considered necessary to
these financial statements pending resolution of the proceedings at SIAC.

(b) T.LF Holdings Pty. Limited ("Transtar group”)

TVS Asianics Group is part of an ongoing litigation with the erstwhile shareholders of the Transtar group with respect to amounts payable for the
acquisition of the balance minority shareholding (45%) computed as per the terms of the share purchase agreement (second completion amounts). The
Company believes that the amounts paid together with the liability accrued in the books fairly represents the amounts payable to the erstwhile
sharcholders under the terms of the shareholders’ agreement and no further material adjustments to these amounts would be required. The dispute is
pending with the Supreme Court of Victoria.

(iv) TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America Inc

TVS Supply Chain NA, is part of an ongoing litigation with an employee of the Company which is currently in its discovery stage. The Company
believes that the liability accrued 1n the books fairly represents the amounts payable, if any, to the employee and believes no further adjustments are
considered necessary to these financial statements.

* Claims against TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited not acknowledged as debts (refer note 17):

(i). Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation (MIDC) has served a notice of claim dated November 6, 2011 for development charges of ¥94.08
lakhs against 6 40 hectares land belonging to the company. The Company has contested the claim as the said land does not fall in purview of MIDC and
has filed a suit no. RCS 26/2007 in the City Civil & Sessions Court at Khed in Pune against MIDC. The Hon’ble court has granted a stay against the
said claim vide its order dated June 11, 2007 Final Disposal of the case is pending. The company has received letter dated July 6, 2010 from MIDC
increasing the claim amount to ¥117.44 lakhs. The company has filed appropriate reply to the said letter and is in the process of modifying the suit
already filed to this extent (Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in P.Y. 3117.44 lakhs)

(ii) A demand of 368.50 lakhs was raised by the Income Tax Department w/s 143(3) during assessment proceedings of the AY 2014-15 against which
Company had preferred an appeal before CIT(A), Mumbai. After giving effect of CIT(A) order dated February 28 ,2018, demand was reduced to
¥327.24 lakhs vide order dated October 24 2018. The said demand was further reduced to ¥209.14 lakhs after considering rectification of apparent
errors and payment of tax under protest of 55 lakhs. The Company further paid T46 lakhs under protest after which demand reduced to 2163.14 lakhs.
Further, refund of AY 2017-18 and AY 2018-19 of 13,31 lakhs and ¥72.49 lakhs respectively, has been determined w/s 143(1) and adjusted w/s 245 of
the Income-tax Act by Income Tax Department - CPC. Therefore, net demand as on March 31, 2020 stands to ¥77.34 lakhs which has also been
adjusted by the Income Tax Department - CPC u/s 245 from the refund due in AY 2019-20 by Intimation dated June 6, 2020 and net tax payable at the
time of resenting the financials 15 Nil. The Company has preferred an appeal before The Income Tax Tribunal (ITAT), Mumbai and is pending.
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38

Leases

Finance leases as lessor

The reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease at the end of the reporting period, and the present value of minimum lease payments
receivable at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (also refer note 15)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Gross investment in the lease 1,962.79 1,732.06
Unearned finance income (495.02) (44.37)
Net investment in the lease 1,467.77 1,687.69

As at 31 March, the gross investment in the lease and the present value of the minimum lease payments receivables under non-cancellable finance
leases are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Gross investment in the lease

Receivable within one year 422.96 623.49
Receivable between one and five years 1,399.73 990.65
Receivable after five years 140.10 117.92
Total 1,962,79 1,732.06

Present value of minimum lease payments receivable

Receivable within one year 275.57 609.60
Receivable between one and five years 1,139.38 960.64
Receivable after five years 52.82 117.45
Total 1,467.77 1,687.69
N
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs excep!t share data and otherwise stated)

39 Business combinations

A. Business combinations during the current year ended 31 March 2020
There is no business combination during the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group had revised the Purchase price allocation (PPA) for Eltec and
Triage which was acquired during the previous financial year.

i. Acquisition of Eltec - Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition based on revised
Purchase price allocation:

In lakhs of INR Revised PPA Original PPA
Net Property, plant & equipment 149.44 149.44
Intangible assets - Others 121.42 121.42
Intangible assets - Client relationship 2,346.73 3,593.65
Intangible assets - Trade name 614.90 793.92
Inventories 113.64 113.64
Trade receivables 2,527.31 2,527.31
Cash and cash equivalents 241.29 241.29
Borrowings (3,967.26) (3,967.26)
Trade payables (4,749.50) (4,749.50)
Deferred tax liabilities (740.21) (1,096.70)
Other current liabilities (156.45) (156.45)
Total net identifiable assets acquired (3,498.69) (2,429.24)
Goodwill

In lakhs of INR Revised PPA Original PPA
Consideration transferred - -
Fair value of net i1dentifiable assets 3,498.69 2,429.24
Goodwill 3,498.69 2,429.24

ii. Acquisition of Triage - Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition based on revised
Purchase price allocation:

In lakhs of INR Revised PPA Original PPA
Net Property, plant & equipment 18.10 18.i0
Intangible assets - Client relationship 908.38 998.85
Intangible assets - Trade name 148.38 148.38
Other non-current assets 462.33 462.33
Inventories 123.95 123.95
Trade receivables 517.52 517.52
Cash and cash equivalents 19.00 19.00
Other current assets 659.57 659.57
Trade payables (283.19) (283.19)
Deferred tax liabilities (277.76) (294.95)
Other current liabilities (403.52) (403.52)
Total net identifiable assets acquired 1,892.76 1,966.04
Goodwill
In lakhs of INR Revised PPA Original PPA
Consideration transferred 2,860.84 2,860.84
Fair value of net identifiable assets (1,892.76) (1,966.04)
Goodwill 968.08 894.80
/
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounis are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

B. Business combinations during the previous year ended 31 March 2019
i. Acquisition of TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited ("TVSTT")

On 1 April 2018, the Company gained control in TVSTT. TVSTT was a joint venture between the Company (60%) and Toyota Tsusho India
Private Limited (TTIPL) (40%). the Company through change in shareholders agreement took over the management control in TVSTT.
Accordingly, the change in control has been classified as business combination.

The transaction was accounted under Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations™ as a business combination with the fair value of TVSTT being allocated
to identifiable assets and liabilities at fair value.

The excess of fair value over the carrying value of the investments in TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited as on 1 April
2018 amounting to ¥ 690.86 lakhs has been recognised as income under exceptional items being significant and non-routine in nature, in the
consolidated financial statements.

A. Consideration transferred
Considering there is no actual purchase consideration in the transaction, the Company estimated the fair value of previous held equity Interest (60%)
and the fair value of non-controlling interest to estimate the total allocable value.

In lakhs of INR Amount
Value of 60% stake held by the Company 1,065.00
Value of 40% non-controlling stake held by TTIPL 711.00
Total consideration for business combination 1,776.00

B. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Property, plant and equipment 29.00
Intangible assets - Customer relationship 440.00
Inventories 46.45
Trade receivables 698.38
Other current & non-current assets 227.63
Trade payable (308.07)
Other current & non-current liabilities (197.39)
Cash and cash equivaients 109.00
Other net assets/(liabilities) 23.00
Deferred tax liability on intangibles identified (152.27)
Less: Fair value of non-controlling interests (711.00)
Total net identifiable assets acquired 204.73
C. Goodwill

In lakhs of INR Amount
Consideration transferred 1,065.00
Fair value of net identifiable assets (204.73)
Goodwill 860.27
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

ii. Acquisition of White Data Systems India Private Limited ("WDS")

On 20 September 2018, the Company entered into an Investment Agreement to subscribe to fresh issue of 21,07,810 shares of WDS. The cash
infusion in WDS in the form of subscription to shares resulted in the Company holding 51% stake in WDS. The transaction was accounted under
Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations” as a business combination with the fair value of WDS being allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities at
fair value. WDS is engaged in the business of providing freight data solutions encompassing technology, certification and financial offering. The

date of acquisition is 01 October 2018 based on the effective date of transfer of control ("Valuation date").

A. Consideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each class of consideration transferred:

In lakhs of INR

Amount

Cash infusion in the form of subscription of shares

4219.85

Total consideration for business combination

4,219.85

B. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

In lakhs of INR

Amount

Net Property, plant & equipment

Intangible assets - Client relationship
Intangible assets - iLoads software platform
Intangible assets - Non-compete agreement
Cash infused by the Company

Trade receivable

Inventories

Other non-current & current assets

Trade payable

Other current liabilities

Cash & cash equivalents

Borrowing

Deferred tax tiabilities

Less: Proportionate share of non-controlling interests

120.00
53.00
845.00
22.00
421985
1,510.22
492
22991
(1,992.20)
(85.86)
76.00
(228.00)
(318.39)
(2,339.00)

Total net identifiable assets acquired

2,117.45

C. Goodwill
In lakhs of INR

Amount

Consideration transferred
Fair value of net identifiable assets

4,219.85
(2,117.45)

Goodwill

2,102.40

(7%
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logisties Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

iii. Acquisition of Eltec

On 8th November 2018, the Group, through its step-down subsidiary Ricochet Spain SL, Spain acquired 100% interest in the equity share capital of
Eltec IT Services SLU, for a consideration of GBP 1. The transaction was accounted under Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations” as a business
combination with the fair value of Eitec IT Services SLU being allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities at fair value. Eltec IT Services SLU is
engaged in the business of delivery of technological services for the management, installation, deployment, support, and maintenance of ICT
infrastructure and hardware. The date of acquisition is 08 November 2018 based on the effective date of transfer of control ("Valuation date").

A. Consideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each class of consideration transferred:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Cash i
Deferred Consideration -
Total consideration for business combination -

B. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Net Property, plant & equipment 149.44
Intangible assets - Others 121.42
Intangible assets - Client relationship 3,593.65
Intangible assets - Trade name 793.92
Inventories 113.64
Trade receivables 2,527.31
Cash and cash equivalents 241.29
Borrowings (3,967.26)
Trade payables (4,749.50)
Deferred tax liabilities (1,096.70)
Other current liabilities (156.45)
Total net identifiable assets acquired (2,429.24)
C. Goodwill

In lakhs of INR Amount
Consideration transferred -
Fair value of net identifiable assets 2,429.24
Goodwill 2,429.24

=
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logisties Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

iv. Acquisition of Triage

On 09 April 2018, the Group, through its step-down subsidiary RICO Logistics Limited, UK acquired 100% interest in share capital of Triage
Holdings Limited. The transaction was accounted under Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations” as a business combination with the fair value of
Triage Holdings Limited being allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities at fair value. Traige Holdings Limited is engaged in the business of
providing IT/ATM equipment life-cycle solutions to OEMs, IT service organisations and end-users comprising repairs, inventory management,
logistics, outsourcing, brokerage and implementation services. The date of acquisition is 09 April 2018 based on the effective date of transfer of
control ("Valuation date").

A. Consideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each class of consideration transferred:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Cash 2,408.46
Deferred Consideration 452.38
Total consideration for business combination 2,860.84

B. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Net Property, plant & equipment 18.10
Intangible assets - Client relationship 998.85
Intangible assets - Trade name 148.38
Other non-current assets 462.33
Inventories 123.95
Trade receivables 517.52
Cash and cash equivalents 19.00
Other current assets 659.57
Trade payables (283.19)
Deferred tax liabilities (294.95)
Other current liabilities (403.52)
Total net identifiable assets acquired 1,966.04
C. Goodwill

In lakhs of INR Amount
Consideration transferred 2,860.84
Fair value of net identifiable assets (1,966.04)

Goodwill 894.80




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

v. Acquisition of TLM Logistics Management Co. Ltd.

On 8 May 2018, the Group through its step-down subsidiary TVS Asianics (Thailand) Limited, Thailand acquired 100% of the voting shares of
TLM Logistics Management Co Ltd, a warehousing and distribution solutions provider., The transaction was accounted under Ind AS 103
“Business Combinations” as a business combination with the fair value of TLM Logistics Management Co. Ltd being allocated to identifiable assets
and liabilities at fair value. TLM Logistics Management Co. Ltd are engaged in the business of provision of logistics management services, which
include, amongst others land transport, goods storage etc. The date of acquisition is 08 May 2018 based on the effective date of transfer of control
("Valuation date").

A. Consideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each class of consideration transferred:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Cash 1,764.92
Deferred Consideration 495.30
Total consideration for business combination 2,260.20

B. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

In lakhs of INR Amount
Net Property, plant & equipment 517.13
Intangible assets - Others 1,285.98
Other non-current assets 9.18
Trade receivables 1,089.69
Cash and cash equivalents 116.47
Other current assets 375.70
Borrowings (2,472.91)
Trade payables (1,154.86)
Deferred tax liabilities (187.45)
Other non-current liabilities (90.61)
Other current liabilities (1,036.96)
Total net identifiable assets acquired (1,548.62)
C. Goodwill

In lakhs of INR Amount
Consideration iransferred 2,260.20
Fair value of net identifiable assets 1,548.62

Goodwill 3,808.82




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

40 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™:
A. Disaggregated revenue information

Segment 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

India Qutside India Total India Qutside India Total
Type of goods or service
Revenue from supply chain management services 1,60,864.68 4,99,590.25 6,60,454.93 1,50,409.28 5,27,582.13 6,77,991.41
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,60,864.68 4,99,590.25 6,60,454.93 1,50,409.28 5,27,582.13 6,77,991.41

Revenues from external customers in respect of each category of services rendered by the Group are as follows:

Revenue 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Lastmile fulfilment 1,52,467.88 1,45,792.19
Outsourced supply chain management 3,34,182.27 3,29,718.10
Inter-continental movement 1,72,233.53 2,00,286.34
Others 1,571.26 2,194.78
6,60,454.94 6,77,991.41
C. Summary of contract balances
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Trade Recelvables 1,38,201.34 1,30,455.99
Contract assets {Refer note (a) below) 24,376.58 23,031.84
Advance from Customers 1,152.76 786.77
Note:

a. Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from supply chain management services as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful

completion. Upon completion and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

D. Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products/services with the contracted price

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Revenue as per contracted price 6,61,318.52 6,78,971.82

Less. Trade discounts, volume rebates etc. 863.58 980.41
6,77,991.41

Revenue as per statement of profit and loss 6,60,454.94




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

41 Transfer pricing

The Company and its subsidiaries each have international and domestic transactions with related parties. The management confirms that it maintains
documents as prescribed by the respective laws and regulations of the various jurisdictions in which the Group operates to prove that the international and
domestic transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid laws and regulations will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the
amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

42 Related party disclosures

A. Enterprise having significant influence

B. Subsidiaries of T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons
Private Limited

C. Joint Ventures

D. Associates

T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited
CDPQ Private Equity Asia PTE. LTD.

TVS Motor Company Limited

Sundaram Clayton Limited

Lucas-TVS Limited

Sundaram Industries Private Limited
Lucas Indian Service Limited

Sundaram Auto Components Limited

TVS Automobile Solutions Private Limited
Sundram Fasteners Limited

TVS Electronics Limited

Sundram Precision Components Limited
TVS Training and Services Limited

TVS Distribution & Services Middle East FZE

TVS Infrastructure Private Limited
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited (upto 31 March 2018) (Subsidiary from |
April 2018)
Subsidiaries of T&T One Asia Limited
China Network Logistics Limited, China
Shanghai Hurrytop Warehouse and Delivery Co., Lid.
Shanghai Feipeng Logistics Co., Lid., China
Shanghai Hurrytop E-commerce Delivery Co. Limited.
Shanghai Hurrytop Supply Chain Management Co. Limited.
Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Limited, Australia

MontaraVerpacken mit System GmbH,Germany
Subsidiaries of MontaraVerpacken mitSystem GmbH,Germany
Montara North America Corporation, USA




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(Al amounts are in Indiun rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

42 Related party disclosures (continued)
E. Joint ventures of A SI Airsprings Private Limited (formerly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited)

F. Key management personnel (KMP) Mr. R. Dinesh, Managing director
Mr.Ravi Viswanathan,Joint Managing Director
Mr. S. Ravichandran, Deputy managing director

G. Entities controlled by KMP / relatives of KMP of the Company Dinram Logistics Services LLP

DRSR Advisory Services LLP
TVS Srichakra Limited

Transactions during the year Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income from logistics services
Lucas-TVS Limited 1,394.34 1,847.04
Sundaram Auto Components Limited - 2.25
Sundaram Clayton Limited 221.12 433.45
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 140.76 150.96
Sundram Fasteners Limited 127.94 117.62
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 961.80 56.39
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 1.82 -
TVS Motor Company Limited 7,442.65 9,485.34
TVS Srichakra Limited 6,091.55 2,009.15
TVS Training And Services Limited 42,59 42.54
S1 Airsprings Private Limited (formerly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited) 5433 102.97
Lucas Indian Service Limited 62.95 47.56

Other income

TVS Training and Services Limited - 0.55
TVS Srichakra Limited - 25.00
Lucas TVS Limited - 14.46
Sundaram Industries Private Limited - 0.35

Reimbursement of expenses from
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 3.10 26.48
Sundaram Industries Private Limited - 0.12

Purchase of spares, fuel, others

T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 3.69 37.58
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 45.19 50.63
Lucas Indian Service Limited - 6.33
Sundram Fasteners Limited 0.11 7.83
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 0.22 20.38

Freight, packing and forwarding expenses
TVS Motor Company Limited 243 6.51
TVS Electronics Limited 0.6% 1.74




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

42 Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions during the year (continued) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Rent

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 893.14 701.17

T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 176.45 150.53

Lucas-TVS Limited 1.80 1.80

Repairs and maintenance
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 4.93 1.50
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 6.25 9.70

Expenses incurred by and reimbursed to
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 246.02 16.60

Other expenses

Montara [ndia Private Limited - 836
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 7322 231.00
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 3270 -

Purchase of fixed assets

T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited - 297.34
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) - -
TVS Motor Company Limited 14.82 12.09
Sundaram Fasteners Limited 1.57 -
Lucas India Service Limited 6.27 -

Purchase of Leasehold Improvement
TVS Industriat & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 40.58 169.92

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel

Salaries, wages and bonus to deputy managing director (including contribution to provident and other 565.26 481.40
funds)

Salaries, wages and bonus to joint managing director (including contribution to provident and other 348.05 -
funds) (w.e.f. 14th Feb 2020)

Remuneration to managing director 463.34 426.13

As the future liabilities of gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to the KMP
i3 not ascertainable separately and therefore not included above.



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise siated)

42 Related party disclosures (continued)

Year end balances: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Receivables

Lucas Indian Service Limited 21.89 10.86

Lucas-TVS Limited 122.93 384.99
Sundaram Clayton Limited 30.84 63.11

Sundaram Industries Private Limited 82.05 90.56
Sundram Fasteners Limited 28.71 91.48
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 370.01 3327
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) - 42.79
TVS Motor Company Limited 833.08 621.99

TVS Srichakra Limited 750.94 606.97

TVS Training And Services Limited 29.37 33.19
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) - 30.72

SI Airsprings Private Limited (formerly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited) 6.90 30.71

Sundaram Fasteners Limited 26.09 -

Other receivables - Unbilled revenue

Lucas TVS Limited 23.43 5.86
Lucas Indian Service Limited 3.81 4.53
Sundaram Clayton Limited 8.00 5.17
Sundaram Fastners Limited 2.55 2.23
T V Sundaram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 118,56 34,22
TVS Motor Company Limited 19.76 416.30
TVS Srichakra Limited 131.60 733.48

Security deposits (based on transaction value, not discounted)
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 762.83 735.65

Advance for Supply of Goods & Services

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 2845 -

T V Sundaram fyengar & Sons Private Limited 21.23 42.79
Payables

Lucas-TVS Limited 0.16 0.34
Lucas Indian Service Limited 1.06 -
Montara India Pvt Limited - -
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 14.03 0.77
Sundram Fasteners Limited 2.19 1.11
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 35.21 281.24
TVS Motor Company Limited - 7.68
TVS Srichakra Ltd 56.97

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 10.34 19.00

Payable to Key Managerial Personnel

Salaries, wages and bonus to Deputy managing director 250.00 250.00
Salaries, wages and bonus to Joint managing director 180.00 -
Commission to Managing director 400.00 200.00
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(4l amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

D. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- market risk

i. Risk management framework
The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The board of
directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers; loans and investments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its
estimate of incurred losses in respect of the Group’s trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets are as follows:

Carrying amount
31 March 2020 31 March 2012

Trade receivables 1,30,727.96 1,20,850.53
Investments 1,322.80 2,462.02
Cash and cash equivalents 88,461.28 47,485.17
Other bank balances 26,216.52 2,410.27
Deposits and other receivables 9,696,76 8,816.98
Other financial assets 25,604.51 24,034.56
Total 2,82,029.83 2,06,059.53

Trade and other recervables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individuai characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the custemer, including
the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer aperates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Group to determine incurred and expected credit losses. The
impairment loss at the reporting dates relates to several customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Group and are not expected to be able to
pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The Group determines credit risk based on a variety of factors including but not limited to the age of the receivables, cash flow projections and available
information about customers from internal/external sources. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected
losses in respect of trade receivables.



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(Al amnounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

43 Financial instroments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

D. Financial risk management (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents and other hank balances
The Group holds cash and bank balances of INR 1,14,677.79 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: INR 49,895.44 lakhs). The credit worthiness of
such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Deposits and other receivables, Investments and other financial assets
The Group holds deposits and other receivables, investments and other financial assets of INR 36,624.04 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: INR
35,309.43 lakhs). The credit worthiness of such parties are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

D. Financial risk management (continued)

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation.

Exposure to hquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements:

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 year or less 1-5 years More than §
amount years

31 March 2020
Non derivative financial liabilities
Current and non-current borrowings
Secured term loans from banks (refer note 2A) 94,107.99 94,107.99 5,069.23 89,038.76 -
Unsecured term loans from banks 6,200.00 6,200.00 6,200.00 - -
Secured term loans from financial institutions 7,658.64 7.691.75 7,687.88 3.59 0.28
Unsecured term loan from Financial institutions 5,080.00 5,080.00 5,080.00
Secured long term obligations under finance leases 2,559.76 2,559.76 676.86 1,882.90 -
Secured cash credit from banks 526196 5,261.96 5,261.96 - -
Unsecured cash credit from banks 23.65 2365 23.65 - -
Secured revolving credit facility 45,165.16 45,165.16 45,165.16 - -
Secured loans repayable on demand 6,569.26 6,569.26 6,569.26 - .
Unsecured bills discounting 4,353.56 4,353.56 4,353.56 - -
Unsecured loans repayable on demand 40,360.02 40,360.02 40,360.02 - -
Redeemable preference shares 891.60 891.60 891.60 - -
Unsecured other short term loans 340.00 340.00 340.00 - -
Others
Trade payables 1,01,258.21  1,01,258.21 1,01,258.21 - -
Lease liability 1,18,243.64  1,32,503.09 30,122.96 78,727.64 23,652.49
Other financial liabilities 18,220.56 18,220.56 14,590.64 3,629.92 -

4,56,294,01  4,70,586.57 2,73,650.99 1,73,282.81 23,652.77

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 yearor less 1-5 years More than §
amount vears

31 March 2019
Non derivative financial liabilities
Currenl and non-current borrowings
Secured term loans from banks 92,511.05 92,511.05 6,632.90 85,878.15 -
Unsecured term loans from banks 2,100.00 2,100.00 - 2,100.00 -
Secured term loans from financial institutions 5,720.11 5,720.11 5,083.53 636.58 -
Secured long term obligations under finance leases 2,752.77 2,752.77 93375 1,819.02 -
Secured cash credit from banks 5,400.90 5,400.90 5,400.90 - -
Unsecured cash credit from banks 1,771.27 1,771.27 1,771.27 - -
Secured revolving credit facility 30,474.90 30,474.90 30,474.90 - -
Secured loans repayable on demand 2,915.55 291555 291555 - -
Unsecured bills discounting - - - - -
Unsecured loans repayable on demand 6,750.00 6,750.00 6,750.00 - -
Unsecured commercial paper 47.45 47.45 47.45 - -
Redeemable preference shares 891.60 891.60 891.60 - -
Unsecured other short term loans 340.00 340.00 340.00 - -
Others —
Trade payables 99,180.94 99,180.94 99,180.94 - - /
Lease liability 98973.72  135,586.95 32,974.07 88,017.04 14,595.84 / T 0
Other financial liabilities 19,587.96 19,587.96 18,442.97 1,144.99 - !

3,69,418.22  4,06,031.45 2,11,839.83 1,79,595.78 14,595.84 [




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs excep! share data and otherwise stated)

43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Group's income or the value of it's
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters
and optimising the return.
Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which revenues, payables, receivables, etc. are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currency of each of the entities in the Group. The Group does not hedge its foreign
currency risk in general except in case of certain payables and receivables denominated in foreign currency which are hedged through the use of foreign
currency swaps and forwards. Refer note 43 (v) for further details on hedging activities and derivatives.

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the ¥ against the respective currencies noted below at 31 March would have affected the

measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or (loss) Equity, net of tax
Weakening  Strengthening Weakening  Strengthening

31 March 2020

United States Dollar (1% movement) (31.08) 31.08 - -
Euro (1% movement) . 11.45 (11.45) - -
Great Britain Pounds (1% movement) (480.69) 480.69 - -
Australian Dollar (1% movement) 3731 (3731 - -
Singapore Dallar (1% movement) (9.39) 9.39 - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement) (1.21) 1.21 - -
Others (1% movement)* 466.43 (466.43) - -
31 March 2019

United States Dollar (1% movement) (432.10) 432.10 - -
Euro (1% movement) 128.26 (128.26) - -
Great Britain Pounds (1% movement) 149.15 (149.15) - -
Australian Dollar (1% movement) 4.52 (4.52} - -
Singapore Dollar {1% movement) 9.82 (9.82) - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement) 13.50 (13.50) - -
Others (1% movement)* 45.08 (45.08) - -

The above table also includes sensitivity analysis on inter group receivables/ payables which are denominated in a foreign currency. Such inter-group
receivables and payables, though eliminated on consolidation give rise to currency risk and hence, the same has been disclosed.

*QOthers mainly include currencies such as Malaysian ringgit, Hong Kong dollar, Indonesian rupiah, South Korean won, New Taiwan dollar, Canadian
dollar and New Zealand dollar.
Interest rate risk
The Group has only two types of variable rate instrument i.c. cash credit facility being used for cash management purposes and certain working capital
demand loans.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities

- Term loans from banks 95,074.69 92,443.74
- Cash credit from banks 5,285.62 5,456.35
- Revolving credit facility 45,165.16 30,474.90
- Loans repayable on demand 39,350.00 -
- Bills discounting 4.353.56 -



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

- Deposits with banks 26,853.32 3,539.15
Financial liabilities

- Term loans from banks 5,233.30 2,167.30
- Term loans from financial institutions 12,738.64 5,720.11
- Finance lease obligations 2,559.76 2,752.77
-~ Cash credit from banks - 1,715.82
- Loans repayable on demand 7,579.28 9,665.55
- Commercial Paper - 4745
- Redeemable preference shares 891.60 891.60
- Other short term loans 340.00 340.00

iv. Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

Faur value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would not have any impact on the reported profit or loss or equity
as these fixed rate instruments (deposits with banks) are carried at amortised cost, any changes in interest rates are not considered for subsequent
measurement.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

(Profit) or loss Equity
100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase

31 March 2020

Financial liabilities

- Term loans from banks (950.75) 950.75 - -
- Cash credit from banks (52.86) 52.86 - -
- Revolving credit facility (451.65) 451.65 - -
- Loans repayable on demand (393.50) 393.50 - -
- Bills discounting (43.54) 43.54 - -
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1,892.29) 1,892.29 - -

31 March 2019

Financial liabilities

- Term loans from banks (924.44) 924 .44 - -
- Cash credit from banks (54.56) 54.56 - -
- Revolving credit facility (304.75) 304.75 - -

Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1,283.75) 1,283.75 - -




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
v. Hedging activities and derivatives

The Group is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The company has entered into forward contracts with HDFC bank for the loans given by the company to its wholly owned subsidiary and these are not
designated as hedges. The company has recognized a loss of Rs. 1205.60 as at March 31, 2020 and carries the same in the balance sheet as derivative
liability under current portion of other financial liabilities.(Refer note :32)

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Cash flow hedges
The group is exposed to interest rate risks and foreign currency risks for its certain borrowing arrangement at LIBOR plus margin rates in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk:

Variability in interest paid on the loan attributable to movements in floating interest rate. To hedge changes in the LIBOR interest rate while making interest
payments on quarterly basis, the Group had entered into Interest rate swaps (IRS)/Cross currency Interest rate swaps (CCIRS) in the previous year ended 31
March 2019. The hedge results in fixed interest cash flows. These hedging instruments were fully settled on 24 March 2020 and no hedge exists as at 31
March 2020 (refer note 30A(iii)).

Foreign currency risk:

Variability in interest and principal paid on the loan attributable to movements in foreign currency exchange rate. To hedge changes in the foreign currency
exchange rate while making interest on quarterly basis and principal repayments, the Company had entered into CCIRS in the previous year ended 31 March
2019, The hedge results in fixed cash flows. These hedging instruments were fully settled on 24 March 2020 and no hedge exists as at 31 March 2020 (refer
note 30Aii)).

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the critical terms of the hedged item are closely aligned with the
hedging instrument from the inception of the hedge till termination. The Group has assessed hedge effectiveness and established an economic relationship at
the inception of the hedge and across the tenor of the hedging relationship

The Group held the following foreign exchange forward contracts as at 31 March 2019 :

1to 6 Months 6 to 12 Months More than 12 Total
Months
Interest rate swap
Notional principal amount {In INR Lakhs) - 1,428.39 18,977.15 20,405.54
Cross currency interest rate swap
Notional principal amount (In INR Lakhs) - 1,563.48 20,771.93 22,335.41
Average Forward Rate (SGD/USD) - 1.38 1.38 1.38

The impact of hedging instruments on the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2019 was as follows:

Notional amount Carrying amount Line item in the Change in fair
statement of  value used for
financial position measuring
ineffectiveness
for the period

Interest rate swap 20,405.53 38751 Other financial 38751
liabilities

Cross currency interest rate swap 22,335.41 735.75 Other financial 735.75
liabilities

The impact of hedged item & cash flow hedge reserve on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019 was as follows:

Change in fair Cash flow
value used for hedge
measuring reserve
ineffectiveness
Interest rate swap 283.56 387.51
Cross currency interest rate swap 735.75 735.75

The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income was, as follows:

Total hedging  Ineffectiveness  Cost of hedging Amount Line item in the
gain/(loss) recognised in  recognise in OCI reclassified from statement of
recognised in profit or loss OCI to profitor  profit or loss
0CI loss

Year ended 31 March 2019
Interest rate swap (421.10) 104.66 - 138.25 Finance costs
Cross currency interest rate swap (664.19) 306.57 - 235.01 Finance costs
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

45 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 105 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations":

A. The group has following non-current assets/disposal group recognised as held for sale as on 31 March 2020

Asset/Disposal group Reportable segment

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited India
B. The proposed sale is expected to be completed within 1 year from the respective reporting dates
C. Financial performance and cash flow information

The results of Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited for the year are presented below:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total Revenues (includes other income) 1,515.89 3,086.30
Expense 1,55%.40 4,772.98
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation (43.51) (1,686.68)
Tax (expenses)/income:

Tax relating to earlier periods 9.99 25.70
Profit/(loss) for the year from a discontinued operation (53.50) (1,712.38)

Earnings per share:

Basic (0.17) (5.97)
Diluted - (5.97)
The net cash flows incurred by Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited are, as follows:

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 605.74 75927
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (550.36) 194.92
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - (592.75)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash generated from discontinued operation §5.38 361.44

D. The major classes of assets and liabilities of Drive India Enterprises Solutions Limited classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2020 are, as
follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Group(s) of assets classified as held for sale:

Property, plant and equipment 2.18 310
Other intangible assets 218.90 218.92
Other financial assets - Non-current 466.57 25.59
Non-current tax assets (net) 87.08 293.96
Other non-current assets 692.76 538.95
Inventories 102.02 124.27
Trade receivables (Non-current & current) 3,485.81 3,881.87
Cash and cash equivalents 507.02 451.63
Other bank balances - 3.99
Deposits & other receivables - current 1.17 -
Other financial assets - Current 342.47 838.77
Other current assets 44291 1,767.92
6,348.89 8,148.97

Liabilities associated with group(s) of assets classified as held for sale:

Provisions - Non-current 2.63 4,71
Borrowings - Current 492.87 492.87
Trade payables (Non-current & current) 3,554.51 4,389.41
Other non-current liabilities 314.73 -

Other financial liabilities - Current 71.49 243.09
Provisions - current 1.15 1.72
Deferred tax liabilities 65.69 65.69
Other current liabilities 401.54 591.16

4,904.61 5,788.65




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly lmown as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs excepl share data and otherwise stated)

46 List of subsidiaries Ownership interest
Country of
incorporation 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Name of direct subsidiaries of the Company
TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited India 85.00% 85.00%
TVS Aviation Logistics Limited (Removed from Registrar of Companies) India 0.00% 0.00%
Drive India Enterprises Solutions Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited India 67.55% 67.55%
TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
SPC Intemnational India Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Logistics SIAM Limited Thailand 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc. USA 100.00% 100.00%
TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited, Singapore Singapore 93.31% 66.44%
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited (from 01 April 2018) India 60.00% 60.00%
White Data Systems India Pvt. Ltd (from 01 Octaber 2018) India 51.00% 51.00%
Name of step-down subsidiaries
Subsidiaries of TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK
MSys Software Solutions Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
Multipart Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
Peter Thomas & Co (Refurbishing) Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Logistics Iberia S.L., Spain Spain 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Autoserv GmbH, Germany Germany 51.00% 51.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions GmbH, Germany Germany 100.00% 100.00%
Rico Logistics Limited, UK United Kingdom 97.47% 97.47%
Subsidiaries of Rico Logistics Limited, UK
Ricochet Spain S.L, Spain Spain 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of Ricochet Spain S.1, Spain
Eltec IT Services S.L.U 100.00% 100.00%
Rico Logistique, France France 100.00% 100.00%
Rico Logistics Limited, Australia Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Circle Express Limited, UK United Kingdom 95.00% 85.00%
Tri - Tec Computer Support Limited, Northern Ireland Northern Ireland 100.00% 100.00%
Tri - Tec Support Limited, Ireland Ireland 100.00% 100.00%
TVS SCS Rico Italia SRL Italy 160.00% 100.00%
Triage Holdings Limited United Kingdom 80.00% 80.00%
Subsidiaries of Triage Holdings Limited
Triage Service Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
OrderLogic Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
SPC International Limited, UK United Kingdom 63.06% 63.06%
Subsidiaries of SPC International Limited, UK
SPCINT Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
SPC International (Engineering) Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
Pitcomp 171 Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
SPC EBT Trustees Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
SPC International Inc., USA USA 100.00% 100.00%
SPC Intermational s.a.s, France France 100.00% 100.00%
SPC Intemnational s.r.0., Slovakia Slovakia 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc.
TVS America Inc., USA USA 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America Inc., USA USA 100.00% 100.00%
(formerly known as Wainwright Industries Inc. USA)
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America Inc., USA
Waintrans LLC, USA USA 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions De Mexico S.A de C.V., Mexico Mexico 99.00% 99.00%
TVS Packaging Solutions Inc. US USA 100.00% 100.00%



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

(All amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs excepl share data and otherwise stated)

46 List of subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries of TVS Asianics Supply Chain Selutions Pte. Ltd

Nadal Forwarding 8.L, Spain Spain 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of Nadal Forwarding 5.1, Spain
Lineas Regulares XXI, S.L Spain 99.75% 99.75%
Pan Asia Logistics International Pte. Ltd Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pte. Ltd Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pte. Lid
Pan Asia Logistics Limited, Shanghai China 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Logistics [nternational (Korea) Ltd Korea 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Logistics (Thailand) Ltd Thailand 49.00% 49.00%
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Container Line Pte Ltd, Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Logistics Deutschland GmbH Germany 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Logistics Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Logistics Vietam Company Ltd Viemam 95.00% 95.00%
PT Pan Asia Logistics Indonesia Indonesia 90.00% 90.00%
Pan Asia Logistics Taiwan Ltd Taiwan 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics India Pyt Ltd India 99.99% 99.99%
TVS Asianics, Thailand (from April 2018) Thailand 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of TVS Asianics, Thailand
TLM Logistics Management Co., Ltd Thailand 100.00% 100.00%
TVS-Asianics Australia Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of TVS-Astanics Austrafia Holdings Poy 4
T.LF Holdings Pty. Ltd., Australia Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Subsidiaries of T.1.F Holdings Piy. Ltd., Ausiralia
Transtar International Freight (Aust) Pty Ltd, Australia Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight Limited, New Zealand New Zealand 100.00% 100.00%
KAHN Nominees Pty Ltd, Australia Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight Limited, Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight (Singapore) Pte. Limited, Singapore Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight (Shanghai) Limited, China China 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight (Thailand) Limited, Thailand Thailand 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight (Malaysia) SD Bhd, Malaysia Malaysia 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar International Freight (USA) LLC, USA Usa NA NA
TIF Hoidings (USA) LLC. USA Usa NA NA

47 Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of these consolidated financial statements other than the
below.
i) ‘The Group has received an in-principle approval for waiver of compliance with certain key financial covenants till March 31, 2021 and has restructured
certain key financial covenants of the existing facility agreernents upto March 31, 2023 which would enable it to continue servicing the loang as per the existing
repayment plan (refer note 2A).
ii) The Group had settlement of disputes with certain minority shareholders of TVS Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte Limited and the liability for the same is
fully provided for in the financial statements.

48 Prior year comparatives
To conform to this year’s classificarion, certain previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Standalone Balance sheei as at 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are in Indan rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 13,248.31 12,283.33
Capital work-in-progress 191.77 143.77
Goodwill 13A 5,287.90 5,287.90
Other intangible assets 138 748,99 1,085.35
Right-ul-use assets 130 25,141 86 19,786.03
Financial assets
Investments 14 41.457.00 26,854.11
Deposits and other receivables i6 3,502.08 7.213.06
(nher financial assets 17 61594 605 44
Deflerred tax assets (net) 11 3,629.30 5,105.%6
Man-current tax assels (net) 6,572.95 533560
Oyther non-current asscts 18 716.98 28722
Total non-current assets 1,03,113.14 83,987.77
Current asscts
Inventories 19 130.51 129.51
Financial assets
Investments 14 1,058.00 234.90
Trade receivables 20 39,582 86 27,771.38
Cash and cash equivalents 21 8,013.14 7.847.47
Other bank halances 22 249 40 266.73
LLoans 15 44, 596.27 TAB8 16
Deposits and other receivables 16 15.461.26 15,205 56
Other financial assets 17 6,362.12 898052
Oither current asscts 23 4,350.22 4,256.74
Assets held for sale 144 - -
Total current assets 1,19,803.78 71,880.97
Total assels 2,22,916.92 1,55,808.74
EOQUITY AMD LIABILTTIES
Equity
Share capital 24A 3,176.21 3,166,71
Orher equity 241 749,37%.13 62,163.55
Total equity 82,555.36 65,331.26




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited}
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are 1n Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)}

Nute As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Liabitities
Non-current labilities
Financial Labilities

Borrowings 25 166.35 2,784.68
Lease lahility 13C 20,761 85 13,444.41
Other financial liabilitics 27 49 80 4,064.72
Provisions 28 431.62 62041
Total non-corrent liabilities 21,409.62 20,914.22

Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

Borrowings 25 63,225.92 12,878.20
Leuse lability 13C 6,249.30 8.780.25
Trade payables 26
Dues ta micro, small and medium enterprises 251007 608.17
Dues 1o creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 31,162.85 35,864.95
Cther financial liabilities 27 12,662.02 6,953.20
Provisions 28 846.76 1,203.63
Cither current hiablines 29 218502 3,333.85
Total current liabilities 1,18,951.94 69,622.26
Total liabilities 1,40,361.56 91,536.48
Total equity and liabilities 2,22,916.92 1,55,868.74

The notes from | to 38 form an mtegral part of the standalone financial statements.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED {Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited}

Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Al amounis are in fndian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations 5 1,49,400.09 1,42,546.24
(Jiher income &} 12,529.05 837819
Total income 1,61,929.14 1,50,924.43
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 11.821.00 -
Emplovee benefits expense 7 40,004.96 37,803.93
Finance costs 8 7,571.97 3,741.87
Depreciation and amortisation expense g 11,526.03 11,649.45
Onher expenses 10 92,778.06 97.850.12
Total expenses 1,64,102.02 1,51,045.37
Profit before tax (2,172.88) (120.94)
Income tax expense 11
Current tax - 0.75
Deferred tax (388.77) (75.68)
Income fax expense (588.77) (4.93)
Profit/(loss) for the year (1,584.11) {116.01})
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profir or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans |87.06 (162.14)
Income tax relating (o these ilems (6537 56.66
Met other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit 121.69 {105.48)
or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 121.69 {105.48)
Tutal comprehensive income for the year (1.462.42) (221.49)
Earnings per share {INR) 24E
Hasic {4.95} (037)
Lhluted (495 (0.37;

The notes from | to 38 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amauns are i Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise siaied)

A Equity Share Capital Nete Amount
Balance as a2t 31 March 2018 316671
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2018-19 244 R
Balance as at 31 March 2019 3.166.71
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2009-20 244 950
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3,176.21

B Other equity Reserves and surplus Items of OCI Total

Securitics Capital Capital Share Share Compulsorily Retained
premium reserve  redemption warrints options convertible earnings
reserve preference shares
Balance at 01 April 2018 69,275.88 0.82 0.46 - - - (5,504.64) 7.28 63,779.77
Impact on first time adaption of Ind AS [16 . - - - - - (1,784.74) - (1,784.74)

Total comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Profiv{luss) tor the year - - - - - - [AREEREAR - {(11adl)
Cther comprehensive income {net of tax} - - - - - - - {105 48) (105 48)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - (116,01} (105.48) (221.49)

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity

Cantributions by and distribution to owners

Destritutien of dividends 10 owners of equity - - - - - - {398 60) - (398 60)
Dividend distribution rax - - - - - - (&1 93) - (51.83)
Recogniton of share based payvments - - - - 27641 - - - 276 41
Issue of share warrants during the year - - - 22563 - - - 22563
Issue of compulsorily convertible preference shares duning the vear 366 40 - = B - 360 - - 370 50
Bonus issue of compulsortly converuble preference shares during the year (1510 - - - - 1510 - -
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 35150 - - 21563 176.41 19.00 (480.53) - 392.01

Balance at 31 March 2019 69.627.58 0.82 .46 125.63 276.41 19.00 (7.885.92) (98.23) 62,105.55




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as T'VS Logistics Services Limited)
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amonnts are i Indusn rupees (INR) lakhy excepr share data and otheraise stated)

B Other equity {continued) Reserves and surplus [tems of OCT Totul
Securities Capital Capital Share Share Compulsorily Retained
premioim reserve  redemption warrants options convertible earnings
reserve preference shares

Balanee at 01 April 2019 69,627.34 0.82 0.46 125.63 276.41 19,00 7,885.92) (98.23) 61,165.55
Profic{loss) for the vear - - - - - - (158411 . (158411}
Orther comprehensive income (nel of Tax) - - - - - 121.649 121.69
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - (1,584.11) 121.069 (1,462.42)
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Issue of convertible preference shares 1647605 - - - - 1,023 35 - - 17,500 00
Expense directly in relation (o ssue of convertible preference shares - - - - - {336.70) - - (356,70}
Recognitton of share based payments - - - - 86534 - - - 865 34
Issue of cquity shares persuant to exercise of share warrants 893 01 - - {225.63) - - - - 66738
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 17,369,606 - - (225,63) 865,34 GO6.65 - - 18,676.02
Balanmce at 31 March 2020 86,9970 .82 .46 - 1,141.75 685,65 (9,470.03) 23.46 79,379.15

The notes from | to 38 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Standalone statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(AN amounts are i Indian rupees (INR) lakhys except share data and othervise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for;

Interest icome under the effective mterest method on:
Cash and cash equivaients
Security deposits carried al amortised cost
Invesiments in debentures carried at amortised cost
Loan o subsidiaries and joint ventures
Amortisation of financial guarantee liability
Provision no longer required writlen back
Provision for doubtful debis no longer required written hack
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Income from mutual funds
Share based payments
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain on termination of lease contract
Interest income under income tax refund
Unrealised foreign exchange differences
Had debts written off
Provision for doubtfu] debis
Lass on changes in fair value of financizl assets measured at f2ir value through P&L
Provision lor doubtful security deposits
Provision for doubtiul loans and advances
(Cain)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net

Operating protit before chunges in operating assets and

Change in operating assets and liabilities

{Increase) / decresse ininventaries

iIncrease) ! decrease in trade receivables

Unereasey S decrease i other current and nen-current, financial and non-financial assets
ficrease { (decrease) in wrade payables

Increass { (decrease; in othe:

tand non-cutrent. financial and non-financiai fiabiluiss

Inerease { (decrease) i provisions

Cash generated from eperations
Income taxes pard, net of refunds

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Investment in bank depostts having an eriginal maturity of more than three months
Payments for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Loans given o subsidiaries

Redemption of debentures carried at amortised cost

Payment of consideration payable and deferred consideration

Imerest received

Dividend imcome from subsidiaries

Income from mutwal funds

[ntezest income from debentures carred at amortised cost

Net cash flow used in investing activities

(2,172.91) (120.93)
(113 83) {4135}
(241,71} {188.86)

30.82) (667.24)

{1,567.11) (294,90}

(1,744 48) (1,629.18)
(64031} {2.00)

- (196 54)
{102.00) -

- (25.19)
641.43 18312

7157197 1.741 87

11,926.03 11,649 46
{914 48) (460.45)
{21086} -

(2.139.96) {376.00)

10,10 86,84
200538 13438
1,209 76 -
- (000
- 6.89
1645 {16.02)
13,502.67 11.483.90
(100 15.82
(13,826.97) 1559
9.588.88 (10,999 80)
{2,159.85}) 8.719.04
(6,333.40) 2Ui268
(258.60) 517.67
509.67 11,764.89
1,237 3%) (1,965.13)
(727.68) 9,799.74
£.82 (64.28)
{3.970.12) {4,250,52)
7823 23400
{15,395 16) (4219.84)
(33.486.25) (862.27)
- ME 1]

- (891 1)
326.12 1,670.03

10200 -

- 2519

- 61,80
(54.138.35) {7.948.88)




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

Standalone statement of cash fows for the vear ended 31 March 2020
FAW anowus are in Indion rupees (INR) lakhs except share dara and otherwise stated)

Cash flows from/{used in} financing activities

Proceeds from compulsorily convertible preference shares, (net)
Proceeds [rom ssue of share warrants

Dividends paid

Froceeds fromfArepayment) of shor-term borrowings, net
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repavment of leng-term horrowings

[nterest paid

Payment of lzase Labilitics

Net cash flow from/ (used in} Ninancing activities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
The notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Firm Registration Number @ 10 1049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

17,143,530 370.50
676.88 22563

- (480.55)
50,347.72 6,066.70
3,015.98 75495
(811.47}) (BY3.04)
(5,013.36) (1,597.36)
(10,327.35) (9,540.43)
55,031.70 (5,772.60)
165.67 (3.921.74)
7.847.47 11,769.21
8,013,14 7,847.47

Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
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Partner
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Place : Chennal
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Joint Managing [Jirector
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Managing Director
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)
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Naotes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(¢t amounis ave in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share dara and otherwise stated)

D

Reporting entity

TVS Supply Chain Solwtiens Limited (formerly known as TVS Logistes Services Limated) (the Compary') was incorporated on 16 November
2004 and 15 in the business of providing logisties services The Company has been providing the entire basket of logistics services including
attermarket warchouse, in-plant warehouse, global supply chain management services, domestic supgly chain management services, material
handling services and services relating to mnstallation and commiissioning of telecom towers including managed services for elecom networks
and associated supply chain management of the logistics activities for telecom service prowiders and OEMs

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance and going concern assessment

These standalene financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) 1o comply with the
requirements preseribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rudes, 2015 as amended from time to time

n Note 2.F (COVID Mote). the company has assessed the impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandernic on its hawdity and abalsty to repay its obligations as and when they are due

In view ot the matters as mentia

With the gradual relaxation of lockdown rules, as well as resumption of commercial acuvities in 4 mayonty of geographies in which the
company operates, management 15 confident that business will resume albeit Iikely at a lower level in the smitial penod but will be more robust
fram the second half of the financial vear 2020-21  The company believes the pandemic s not expected to have any material mediem to long
ess prospects.

term impaet Lo 145 by

The company has made a detailed assessment of 1ts liquidity position and has considered the possible impact of Covid 19 on the financal
projections and commuments using available information, estimates and judgements In borrowing arrangements, the company has not
defaulted on any of the borrowings as at March 31, 2020 (Refer note 25)

Based on the regoing and necessary stress tests considering vanous scenanos, management beheves that the company will be able 1o pav its
obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable future, Accordingly, the siandalone financial statements have been prepared on a
poing concern basis

The standulone financs:
Detands of the Company s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

staterments were authonsed for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 31 August, 2020

Functienal and presentation currency

These stendalone financial statements are presented 0 Indian Rupees (INR), which 15 also the Company's functional currency. All amounts
have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except for ine lollowing tems

ltems Measurement basis

Centain financial  assets and  Liabilites  (including  Fair value
derivative instruments}
Net defined benelit (assel) / lability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benelit obligations

Use of estimates and judgements
I preparing these standalone [inancial stalements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the appiication of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, Labilities income and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates
Lstimales and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recogrused prospectively

Judgements

Infermation about judgements made 1 applying accounting pohicies that have the most significant etfects on the amounts recogmised in the
standalone Cnancial statements is included in the following notes:

- Nate 3 (Kp& 5 - Recognition of revenue

=WMote 3Dy & (), 12 ang 13 - Property, plant and equipment and itangible assets — useful ives and impairment

-Mote 3 (B) 20 & 37 - Allowances for credit losses for trade recervables

- MNaote 3 (H), 30 - Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits

- Mote 3 (L), 130, 31 - Lease accounting

Assumptions and estimation uncertaintics

Information aboul assumptliens and estimation uncertainties that have a signilicant risk of resulting 10 & materal adjustment in the year ended
3 March 2023 15 ineluded inthe following notes

-WNote 3 (Ny [ & 1] = recogmition of deferred tax assets. availabilary of future taxable profit agamst winch tax losses carned forward can be
used

- Mate 30— measurement of defined benefit obhgations: key actuaral assumpuions
- INate 37~ unpaitment of financial assets




TVSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)}
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Al amicunts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation (continued)
E Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement ol Tair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and lizhilities

The Cempany has an established control framework with respeet 1o the measurement of fair values. The Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Tf third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence
ubtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuation meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value
hierareny in which the valuations should be classilied.

Fair values are categonsed into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows

- Level | quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets ar Liabiliies.

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices mcluded in Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or lighility, either directly (ie, as prices) or
indirectly {i ¢, denved from prices)

- Level 3 mputs for the asset o habihty that are not based on observable market data (unohservable inputs)

When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the Comoany uses observable market data as far as possinle. If the inputs used to measure
the fair value of an asset or a habihty fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categonsed in (s
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 15 s1znificant to the entire measurement

The Company recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end o' the reporting perind duning which the change has
occurred

Further information about the ussumptions made i measuring far values 15 included i the fallowing notes

- Note 37 = financial imstruments

F Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-1%
COVID-19 pandemie (declared as such by the World Health Organisation on March 11, 2020), has contributed to widespread volatility and
decrease m economic actvity m, global and Indian markets On March 24, 2020, the Indian government announced a striet lockdown in [ndia o
contain the spread of the virus, which has led to sigmficant disruptions and dislacations for individuals and businesses, including in respect of the
Cuompany. Subsequent to relaxations to the said lockdown, the Company has commenced operations in May 2020 and currently operating on a
limited capacity However, various State governments in India have continued to impose lock downs over a period of time depending on the
outbreax and there exists an uncertainty on the Company’s ability to return to Qull capacily in it operations,

A Cetarl assessmant has been carried out by the Company for each business segment with regards to impact on revenue and costs. Impact due fo
any extended credit terms, cancelled orders, change in contractual lerms, price concession request, onerous obligations et were comprehensively
evaluated for any nisk due 10 Covid- 19 on revenue recognized and collectabiliy thereol and no material 1mpact has been noted.

_ cing the 1s hili
Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these
The Cempany nas performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company
exneels o recover the carrying amount of these assets. However, the impact assessment of COVID=19 15 a continung process given the
uncertainties associated with s nature and duration, The Company witl continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions
and make any necessary ad ustments in the relevan: financial perod

recetvahles, prope




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(AN amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Significant accounting palices
Foreign currency
Foreign currency fransactions

Transaclions 1n foreign currencies are translated into the functional curtency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
or an average rate 1] the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and Labililies denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into the functional currency at ihe exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monctary assets and habilities that are measured 21 fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabiliies that are measured based on hisiorical cost in a foreipn
currency are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transact:on. Exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial imstruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated All other Ninancial assets and financial labilities are
inttially recogrised when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument

& financial asset or financial lability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to 1ts acquisition or ssue.

ii. Classificarion and subsequent

Financial assets

Cimy izl recogamion. a financial asset 1s classified as measured at

— amortised cost,

- FVTPL

Finuneizl assets are not reclassified subsequent to their imilial recogaition, except if and n the perind the Company changes its business moedel for
managing financial assets

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost 1110 meets both of the following conditiens and 1s not designated as at FVTFL

the asset is held within a business model whose objective 15 1o hold assets 1o collecl contractual cash fows, and

— the conwaclual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prineipal and interest on the
prineipal amount ou

tanding

All finuncial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVIPL This includes all denvative tinancial
assels On ntial recognition, tie Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset thel otherwise meets the requirernents to be measured at
amonised cost as at FVTPL f dumg so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismateh that would otherwise arise

Finonciol aysefs: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Financeal assels al amortised cost These assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amuortised cost s reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recogrised i statement of profit and loss Any gain or loss on derecognition 1s
recopnised o profit or loss

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

F:nancial lizbilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL (f it 18 classified as held-
for- tragi
gains and losses, Inc
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method  Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised 1n profit o
Inss Anv gamn or loss on derecegninion 1s also recognised in profit or loss

g, of it i5 a derivative or il 15 designated as such on initial recogmition. Financial lizbilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net

uding any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial labihities are subsequently

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

“The Company derecognises a financial assel when the contraciual rights o the cash flows fiom the Tinancial asset expire, or 11 transfers the rights
Ty all of the nisks and rewards of ownership of the {inancial asset are

1o receve the contracwal cash flows in a transaction in which substant
transferred of in which the Company neither transfers nor retams substantially all of the risks and rewards of awnership and does not retain control
uf the financial asset

17 the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on 1ts balance sheet, but retains either al! or substanually all of the
nsks and rewards of the transterred assets, the tansferred assets are not derecopnised




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTTONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(A amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Significant accounting polices (continued)

Financial instruments {conlinued)

il Derecognition (continued)

Financial habilities

The Company derecognises a financial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire,

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different In this caze, a new financial liability based on the medified wnns 1s recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
ol the financial hability extinguished and the new financial hamility with modified terms 15 recognised in profit or loss,

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when. the Company currently
has s legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle (hem on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the ability
sunultancously

Business combinations

i, Business combinations {other than common contrel business combinations) on or after 01 January 2011

Tne Company has elected to apply the relevant Ind AS, viz, Ind AS 103, Buyiness Combinations, retrospectively 1o those business combinations
that occurred on or after 01 Janvary 2011, In accordance with Ind A5 103, the Company accounts for these business combinations using the
seqguisition method when contrel is transferred to the Company. The consideration transferred for the husiness combination 1s generally measured
al fair value s at the dale the control 1s acquired (acquisition date). as are the net wenbifiable assets acquired Any goodwill that arises 1s tesied
annually for wmpsirment. Anyv gain on a bargain purchase 15 recogrised in OCT and accumulated m equity as capial reserve if there exists clear
cvidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase, otherwise the gam 15 recognised
direetly in equity as capital reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred

ii, Business combinations prior to 01 January 2011
Tr respect of such busimess combinations, goodwill represents the amount recogmised under the Company’s previous accounting framework under
Indian GAAP

i, Common control business combinations

Business combinations ansing from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the sharcholder that contros the Group are
aceounted for as 1 the acowsinion had occurred at the begmming of the earfiest comparauve period presented or, 1f later, at the date that commeon
control was sstabl ired are recogrised at their carmying amounts

ted, for thiz purpose comparatives are revised. The assetz and habililies acquit

Property, plant and equipment

i. Regogniticn and measurement

ltems of property, planl and equipment are measured at cost, wi includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumalated depreciation and

acedmulated imparment losses, o 2ny

Cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase price. including import duties, 1f any and nen-refundable purchase taxes,

after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
cstimaled costs of dismanthing and removing the item and restormg the site on which il

caled.
If significant parts of an nem of property, plant and equipment have different wseful Lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major
companents) of property, plant and equipment

Any gainor less on disposal of an item of property. plant and squipment 15 recognised in profi or loss

il. Subsequent expenditure

Subseguent expenditure 15 capitalised only 1€ it 15 probable that the future zconomic benefits associated with the expenditure will tlow to the
Company

s
A

me——

\x-‘__
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes 1o the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
fllamonais are i Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise siated)

3 Significant sceounting polices (continued)

D Property, plant and equipment (continued)
iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated an cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method, and is generally recogmised in the statement of profit and loss Freehold fand 15 not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative peniods are as follows:

Asset Management estimate of useful
life (in years)

Butldings 30-60

Plant and equipment 43-10

Furmiture and fixtures 01-10

Vehicles 08-10

Office equipnent 3

Computer equipment 03-06

Leasehald improvements *

* Leaschold improvements are amortised on a straight Line basis over the useful life of the asset or the lease period whichever s lower

Depreciation methed, useful lives and restdual velues are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted it appropriate. Based on technical
evaluation and consequent acvice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects Lo use these assels and are different from those prescribed in Schedule [T of the Act.

Deprecialion on additions (disposals) is provided on a pre-rata basis 1e Tom (upto) the date on which asset 5 ready for use (disposed of)

E Goodwill and other intangibles

i. Goodwill

Goedwill is recognised and 15 measured as the excess of the sum of tre consideration translerred, the amount of any non-contralling mterest in the
acgpairee and the far value of the Company's previously held equity shares in Lhe acquires, over the net of the consideration date amounts of the
wdentifiable assets asequired and the liabilities assumed

ii. COther intangible assets

Other inangible assets including those acquired by the Company mn a business combination are initially megsured at cost Such intangible assets
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated smortisation and any accumulated inpairment losses

bsequent expenditure

b expenditure is capitalised only when 1t inereases the future cconomic benefits embodied m the specific asset to which it relates. All

other expendiicre 15 recogmised 1n statement of profit and oss as and when incurred

. Amortisation

Goodwill 15 not amortised and 15 tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line methed, and 15 included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss,

I'ne estimated useful lives of items of intangible assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Management estimate of useful
life
(in vears)
Rrand 03
Customer relationship 07
Computer seftware 03-10

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed zt the end of cach (inancial year and adjusted if approprate
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Significant accounting polices (continued)
[uventorics

Inventories consist of stares and spare parts and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventories is based on the
first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquining the inventorics and other costs meurred 1n bringing them to their present
location and condition

Nelrealisable velue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ol business, less the estmared costs of completion and selling expenses.
The comparison of cost and net reahsable value is made on an item by atem basis

lmpairment

i. linpairment of financial instruments

Ihe Compuny recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on-
- financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether linancial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset 1s ‘credit -
impatred” when one or more events that have a detrimental impect on the estimated future cash Aows of the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset

credit-impaired includes the [ollowing ohservable data:
- significant financial dirficulty of the borrewer or issuer
- abreach of contract such as a default,
- the restrucluning of a lean or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise:
- itis probabie that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappeerance of ar active market lor a security because of financial difficulties
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal 1o lifietime expested credit losses, except for the followang, which are measured as 12
morth expected credit losses:
dent securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, and
- other debt secunities and bank halances for which credit nisk {i¢ the risk of default aceurning over the expected hife of the financial instrument)
has not ineredsed significantly sinee initiai recognition

Loss ailowances for rade recervables are always measured at an amount equal to ifetime expected credit losses

Litetime expected credil losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
msirument. 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events thet are possible within 12
months afler the reporting dale (or a shorter period if the expected life of'the instrument is less than |2 months) In all cases, the maximum period
considered when estimating expecled credit losses is the maximum conteastual period over which the Company is exposed io credit risk,

When determiming whether the credit sk of @ financial asset has increased significantly since nitial recognition and when estimating expected
credit lesses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that 1s relevant and available without undue cnst or effart This
ncludes both guantiative and quslitative information and analysis. based on the Company's histoncal experience and mformed credit assessment
and includ ing torward- looking information.

The Company considers ¢ financial asset 1o be in default when the borrower is unlikely 1o pay 1ts credit obligations to the Company n full, without
recourse by the Company Lo actions such as realising security (if any is held)

Measwemeni of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of ere sses. Credil losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (1Le
the difference between the cash flows due 1o the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive]

Fresentation of allowance for expecied credit lusses in the balance sheer

Loss allowances for financial assets nmeasured at amortised cost are deducted fram e gross carrving amount of the assets

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recavery
Thus 15 generelly the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of meome that could generate sufficient
cash flows Lo repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order o comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Significant accounting polices (continued)
Impairment {continued)

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Compary's non-financial assels, other than inventories and deferree tax assets, are reviewed al each reporting date 1o determine whether there
15 any indication of impairment. [ any such indication exasts, then the assel’s recoveranle amount is estimated Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually.

Forimpairment testing, assets that do not generate independent eash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflaws of other assets or CGUs

Goadw:|] arising [rom a business combination is allecated o CGUs or groups of CGLUs that are expected to benelit [rom the synergies of the
combination.

The recoverable amount of 2 CGU for an individual asset) 1s the higher of its value in use and 115 fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
ot the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current mackel assessments of the
ume value of money and the risks specifie to the CGU {or the assct)

‘The Company's corporate assels do not generate independent eash inflows. To determine impairment of a corperate asset, recoverahle amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporale asset belongs

An tmpairment loss 1s recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount Impasrment losses are
recogrused n the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respeet of a CGU s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goedwill allocated to the CGUL and then to reduce the carrving amounts of the other assets of the CGU (eor group of CGLUs) on a prorata basis

An impainnent loss i respeet of goodwill s not subsequently reversed, In respect of other assets for which impairment lnss has been recognised in
praor penads, the Company reviews at each reperting date whether there 15 any indication that the oss has decreased or no longer exists. An
irpairment loss s reversed 17 there has been a change i the estimates used 10 determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the ussel’s carrying amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amarlisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised

For disclosures relating to Goodwill impairment, refer to Note 16A ot the Cansolidated Financial Statements of the Cuompany,

Employee benefits & Share based payment arrangements

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 15 provided A hability 15
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e g, under short-term cash bonus, i the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to

pay this amount as a result of pasi service provided by the employee. and the amount of abligation can be estimated reliably

ii. Defined contribution plans

A deflined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separzte entity gnd will have
no legal or constructive obligation fo pay further amounts The Company makes specified maonthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme, Employees State Insurance Scheme and an superannuation fund to Life Insurance Corporation {LIC)
Oblgations for contributions to defined contnbution plans are recognised as an emplovee henefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the
periods during which re.ated services are rendered by emplovees Prepaid contributions are recogmised as an asset 10 the extent that a cash
refund or areduction in futore payiients is available

tit. Defined benefit plans

A defined benelit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan ather than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation i respect of
defined benefit plans is culculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have samed in the current
and prior periods, discounting that minount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a quahfied actuary using the projecied unit credit method. When the
caleulation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is hmited to the present vaive of economic benefils available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 1o the plan (‘the asset cerng’) In order o caleulate the present
value of economie benefits, consideration 1s given to any mimimum fuading requirements

Remeusurements of the net defined benelit habuity, which comprise aciuanial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (1 any, excluding
interesl), are recognised in OCL The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liabil ity for the pernod by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit oblipation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benelit
liabilizy, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit Liability during the period s 2 result 0f contributions and henefft payments
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

When the benelits of a plan are changed or when a plan 15 curtailed, the resulting change m henefit that relates 1o past service (“past service cost’
r "pasl service gain’) or the gain or loss on cunatment is recogrised immediately i stalement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains

and [usses on the seitlement of a delined benefit plan when the seutlement oceurs
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Significant accounting polices (continued)

iv. Share based payment arrangements

The share upions granted 10 employees pursuant Lo the company's Managemen: Incentive Plan (MIP] scheme, are measured at the far value of
the cptions at the grant date. The fair value of the options 15 treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting
pertod an & straight line basis, The amount recognised as expense in cach year 15 arnved at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a
grant lapses alter the vesting period, the cumuiative discount recognised as expense tn respect of such grant is transferred Lo the general reserve
within equity

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised (1, as a result of & past event, the Company has 2 present legal or censtructive obligation that can be estimated relizbly,
and 1t s prodable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash Nows (representing the besl estunate of the expenditure reguired tw settle the present obligation al the balance sheet date) at &
pre-tax rate that reflects current marketl assessments of the tme value of money and the nisks specific 1o the hability. The unwinding of the
discount s recognesed as finance cost, Expected future aperating losses are not provided for

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent Liability ts disclosed for all:

- posstble obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conlirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one of more
unzertain future events not wholly within the control ef the Company {or}

= present o2ligations arising from past events where it 15 not probable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be reguired
Lo setde the obligaton or g sulficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made

in respect of contingent assets for which inflow of economie henefis are probuble, the Company discloses @ briel descriplion of the nature of the
nt assets al the end of the vear, and, where practicable, an estimate of their finaneial effect

conting
Revenue

1. Rendering of servives

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contral of the services are transterred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company cxpects to be entitled in exchange for those services Such revenue is recognised upen the Company's
perfnrmance of its contractual obhgations and on satisfying all the following conditions

{17 Pares 1o the contract have approved the contract and underiaken to perform their respective obligations:
(2} such costeact has specilied the respeciive rights and obligations of the partics in connection with the tansfer of gouds un jendering of services
{hereinatier the “Transter™;

(3} Such contract contains spectfi

¢ payment terms (n relation to the Transter,
{4} Such contract has a commercial nature, namely, it will change the risk, time distribution or amount of the Company's futurs cash flow,
(%} The Company ts likely to recover the consideration it is entitled to for the Transfer w0 customers.

Performance Obligations:

a) Supply chain management

The Company's supply chain manegement segment generates revenue {rom services Lo its customers such as providing freight and other
wanspertation services, warchousing, packaging, kitting, reverse logistics and inventony management contracis ranging from a few months to a
Few vears: Certan accessorial services may be previded w customers under their transportation contracts, such as unloading and other incidental
services  The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the
Company's services. The cantracts contain a single performance abligation, as the distinet services provided remain substannally the same over
time and possess the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration specified 0 the contract wath the customer and
comtains fixed and variable consideration. In general, the fixed compenent of & contract represents amounts for ety and equipment cosis
incurted Lo satisfy the performance obligation and 15 recognized over the werm of the contract

In the case of transportabion services, performance obhigation 1s created when a customer under a lrunspur‘l.—;lfr.:n contract submits a shipmem nate
for ihe vansport ol geods from ongin o destination. These periormanece obligations are satesTied over the pened as the shipments move fram
origin to destination and revenue s recognized proportionally as 2 shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as ineurred. Perlormance
onligations are shorl-term, with transit days less than one week Generally, cusiomers are billed either upon shipment of the freight or on a menthly
hasis, and remit payment according o approved payment terms. The Company recogmizes revenue on a net basis when the Company does not
control the specitic services.
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Significant accounting policics (continued)

b} Telecommunication:

Teleccommunication contract revenue arises {tom  construction! ecrection of towers for seme of the Company’s customers in the
Telecommunications segment. These towers are constructed based on specifically negotiated contracts with customers by outsourcing the activitics
Lo sup-contractors

Transaction price includes the inltial amount agreed in the contract plus any variztions in contract work, claims and incentive payments, ta the
extent that it s probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. If the oulcome of a contract can be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss over the period in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is
assessed by reference Lo surveys of work performed (cutput method), Otherwise, confract revenug is recognised enly to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely 1o be recoverable

Contract costs are reeogmised as expenses as incurred unless they create an asset related to future confract activity. An expected loss on a contract
18 reengnised immediately in profic or loss

¢} Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of traded goods including relecommunication goods is recognised when the control of the same is transferred 1o the customer,
generaliv on delivery of the goods and 1t 1s probable that the Company will collect the consideration W which 1t is entitled for the exchanged
goods

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but not billed. Revenue is measured at fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on hehalf of the
government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience 15 used to estimate the pravision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue
15 only recognised (o the extent that it 15 highly probable a significant reversal will not ocour

Variable consideration:

Generallv the Company's contracts contain provisions for adjustments o pricing hased on achieving agreed-upon performance metrics, changes
10 volumes, services and market conditions. Revenue relating to these pricing acjusiments 15 estimated ang included in the consideraticn if it is
probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur i the future The estimate of vaniable consideration 1s determined either by the expected
valug or must lhely amount method and factors in current, past and forecasted experience with the customer Customers are billed based on terms
specified in the revenue contract and remil payment according 1o approved payment terms

Contract balances:

a} Contract assels

A contract asset 15 the night to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer 1f the Company performs by
transleming poods or services 1o a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment 15 due, 2 contract asset is recognised for the
carned consideration that 1s condibional

o) Contract habihties

A contract lizbility 15 the obhigation to transfer goods or services o a custemer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount
of consilerstion 15 dug) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or serviees to the customer, a
contract lability is secognised when the payment is made or the payment 18 due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases under full retrospective approach o each prior reporting period presented with effect from It
Apel, 2018 Ind AS 115 primanily requires the Company, us a lessee, o recognize, at the commencement of the lease a night-to-use asset and a
lease nabihity (representing present value of unpaid lease pavments) Such right-lo-use assels are subsequently depreciated and the lease hability
reduced whuen paid, with the interest on the lease habihity being recognized as finznce cost, subject to certam remeasurement adjustments.

The Company has elected to use the recogmition exemptions for short term leases as well as low value assets On transition to Ind AS [16. the
Company elected to apply the following practical expedients:

a) Granclathening the assessment of which transactiens are leases The Company epphed Ind AS 116 only ta contracts that were previously
identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under Ind AS |7 were not reassessed [or whether there 15 a lease under Ind AS 116
Uheretore, the detimition of a lease under Ind AS 116 was apphed only to contracts entered into ar changed on or after 1 April 2018

b] To exclude imtizl direct costs trom the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

Reter note 13074 for teansition nnpact
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Significant accounting polices (continued)

Leases (continued)

Company as lessee

The Cumpany assesses al contract inception whether a contract (s, or contains, a lease. Thal 15, 1 the eantract conveys the nght to control the use
ot an dentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consiceration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets The Company recogmses lease habihties 1o make lease payments and right-of:
Lse assels representing the right w use the underlyving assets

(i} Right-of-use assets

Trhe Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset 1s avaulable for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-ofiuse assels includes the amount of lease Labilities recopnised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease pavments made
at o7 before the commencement date less any lease incentives received Right-oftuse assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
Lerm

depreciation 1s caleulated us

D ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease lerm or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase oplion,
g the estimated useful life of the asset The night-of-use assets are subject to impairement.

(1) Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the [ease, the Company recognises lease liabilities meascred at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expeeted to be paid under residual value guarantees The lease payments also
mclude the exercise price of a purchase uption reasanably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penaltics for terminating the
lease, 171he lease term reflects the Company exercising the oplion to terminate. Variable lease pavments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to praduce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
vreurs

In cateulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its imeremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate umphieit in the lease 15 not readily determinable After the commencement date, the amount of lease liablities is increased to reflect the
accreton of interest and reduced for the lease paymenis made. {n addmion. the carrying amount of lease fabilities 15 remeasured (f there is a
madifization, a change in the lsase term, a change in the lease payments {c g, changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used o determine such lease payments) or a change i the assessment of an option Lo purchase the underlying asset The Company's lease
habilittes are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrewings. (see note 25)

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
Lease pavments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recogillsed as expense on actual basis over the lease term

(iv) Date of commencement of leases acquired under business combinations

Ihe Company measures the lease hability at the present value of the remaining lease payments as at the acquisttion date as 1f the acquired lease
were @ new lease as at that date. The Right-nt-use asset is meas

previausly recognis

i the original busin

{v) Key matters involving significan. judgement

() Determining the lease term of contracts with termination vptions — Company s lessee

As per Ind AS 116, termination options are to be censidered n determining the non-cancellable period The period covered by the termination
option 15 ncluded if the lessee 15 not reasonably certain to exercise the oplion Lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
any aplional pernods that the lessee s reasonably certain w use. The non-cancellable period of a lease is any period during which the lessee cannot
terminate the contiact, Consequently, any non-cancellable period in cffect sets a minimum lease term. This 1s usually referred as “lock-in™ period
in L lease contract. Generally, the lease contracts are cancellable once the “lock-in™ peried is over, and, in most cases, the termination wplion 1§
mutually avazlable with mintmum notice period requirements under the contract

In general, since Company hes made sigmificant mvestmenis in cach of the warehouse i the Torm of leasehuld improvements, racking equipment
nit the terminztion would lead to additional expenses (losses) for dismantling and would lead 10 business disruplion, the management in
general has concluded that there 1s econorue disincentive for the Company to discontinue / lerminate any arrangement. Accordingly. applying
Para B34 of Ind A3 116, except for specific cases, the Company concludes that non-cancellable period generatly includes the lease periad covered
oy the ophion Lo terminale

cle, a

(b) Determining the lease term af contracts with repewal options — Company as lessee

As per Ind AS 116, the period covered by extension option 15 included if the lessec is reasonably cerlain to exercise the aption

As reasonahie certainty is a high threshold, the Company believes in mast leases where the lease lerm 15 greater than 3 yedrs assuming reasonable
certainty on lease commencement date may not be appropriate and must be evaluated on a case to case basis, considering factors such as
investment i e property, renewal lease rates, specific modifications (o properly o meet eustemar requirements, importance of the location and
impact on overatl business disruplion ete
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3 Significant accounting polices (continued)
M Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income 15 recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s night t receive payment is established
Interest imcome or expense 1s recognised using the effective interest method.
The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of eceipls through the expected life of the financial
Instrutent Lo

- the gross carmy

ing amount of the financial asset, or
= lhe amortised cost of the financial hability

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate 1s applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset 15 not
credit-impaired} or to the amortised cost of the liabiity However, for financial assets that have became credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is caleulated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. [ the asset is no longer
credit-impatred, then the caleulation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

N Imcome tax

Income tax compnses current and deferred tax It (s recognised in statement of profit and loss excepl to the cxtent that it relates to a business
combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income
i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss o the vear and any adjustment 1o the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous vears. The amount of current tax reflects the hest estmate of the tax amount expected o be paid or received afler
considenng the uncertainty, i€ any, related to income taxes Tt is measured using lax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date

Current tax assels and current tax habilities are offset only if there is a legally enforce
imtended o realise the asset and settle the hability on a net basis ar simultaneously
ii. Deferred tax

e right to set off the recognised amounts, and 1t

Delerred tax 15 recogmsed in respect of temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilites for financial reporting
purposes and the correspond ing amaounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred wx s also recognised i respeet of carted forward tax losses and tax
credis, Deferred tax s not recogrised for

- temperary differences arismg on the inmtal recognition of assets or habilities n a transaction that 1§ not 2 business combination and that atfects
ne:ther accounting nor taxable profit or loss al the time of the transaction,

- temporary differences related 1o investments in subsidianes, associates and joint arrangenents to the extent that the company 15 able to control
the timing of' the reversal of the temporary differences and (1 is probzable that they will not reverse in the foresecable [ulure, and

1he Cromnp fonied iy
Appendix C to Ind AS 12
This amendment relates to tax consequence of an item whosce tax treatment 15 uncertain. Tax treatment of an ttem 15 considered as uncertzin when
there 15 uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax treatment of thal item or not

from finan

[ there 1s uncertainly over tax treatment of an item:

IoAn entity should deteomine an approach or method that predicis the resolution of the uncertainty. Based on the approach, the entity shall
detennine whether to consider each uncerlain tax treatment separately er tgether with one or more other uneertain tax treatments

2 It shall assess whether 1t 1s probable that the taxation authoriy will accept the uncerain tax weatment, assuming that the authonity has

tull might to examine the treatrmem and has full knowledge of all related imformation

3 1st s probacle that the tavauon authorty will ageept the tax treatment. there will be no umpact on the amount of taxable profilsilosses, tax
bases, unused lax lusses/credils and tax rates In viceversa case, the entity shall shuw the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertzin tax treatment

o amount of reialed atoresaid items by wsing either the most bkely outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty

Upon adoption of the Appendix C 10 Ind AS 12, the Company considered whether 1t has any uncerlain tax positions, The Company determined,
based on its tax compliance, that it is probable that its tax treatments will be accepted by the taxation authorilies.

Deferred tux assets are recopnised to the extent that 1t s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets - unreeognised or recognised are reviewed et each reporting date and are recognised? reduced to the extent that it 15 probahle/
no Torper probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax 15 measured a

¢ lax rates that are expected to apply o the period when the asset s realised or the hability is settled, based on the
[ows that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of deterred tax retlects the tax consequences that would fallow from the manier m which the Company expects, at the reporling
date, Lo recover or settle the carrying amount of 1is assels and labilites.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are oflset if there 15 a legally enferceable right 1o affset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate o income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, bt they intend 1o settle current tax liabilities and
assels on 2 net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simulraneously
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Significant accounting polices (continued)

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are Interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating 10 foreign currency borrowings 10 the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustmentl to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of an assel which necessarily take a substantal peried of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part
of tae ¢osl of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 17 the period in which they are incurred

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalent camprise of cash on hand and at banks including short-term deposits wath an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes m value. Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a
rmalurity period of mare than three manths are classified as other bank balances.

Earnings per share

Basic eaming per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit aurtbutable to the equity helders of the Cempany vy the weighted average
number of equity shares owistanding during the period. Diluted earmings per share are computed hy dividing the net profit atrnbutable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighled average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic carmings per equity share and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equily shares

Cash flows

t method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non cash nature and any
tng, financing and investing activities

Cash flows are reported using the indirec
deferrals or aecruzals of past or future cash receipts or payments The cash Hows frem regular revenue aer
ol the Company are segregated




TVESUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited})
MNuotes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
iAl amounis are in {ndian rupees (INR) lukhs except share data and othervise stated)

4

Operating segment

In secordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, segment information has been given in the conselidated financial statements of TVS Supply Chain
Solutions Limited and therefore no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these standalone [inancial statements.

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sale of services
Income from supply chain managemen! services
Inceme from telecom services

Uther operating revenue
Serap sales

Other income

Interest income under the effcclive interest method on:
Cash and cash equivalents
Secunty deposits carried at amortised cost
Invesiments in debentures carned at amortised cost
Loans o subsidiaries
Amurtisation of financal guarantee hability

Irterest income on meome tax refund

[ncome frem finance lease

Dividend income from subsidiaries

Gain on sale of PPL, net

unds

Exchange difference gain net

Provision no longer required written back

Income from mutual §

Provision for deablul debts no longer required written back

Camin o L lease

{3ther non a

Emplayee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus*

Contnbunion o provident and other funds

Share based payment costs**

Lxpenses related 1o post-employement defined benefit plans
Expenses related o compensated absences

Stafl weltare expenses

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

13,136.44

1,25,683.57
10,520 43

128,504, 18
13,931.67

1.36,204.00

1,42,440.85

59,635 105.39
59.65 105.3%
1,49,400.09 1,42,546.24

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

11382
24171
30.82
1,567.11
I, 744 48
210.86
11204
10200

41135
288.86
66724
294 90
A58
35.54
1618
16.02
2519
30335
200
196.54
d6G 45

“ A o

12,529.05

8.378.19

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

32.946.01 31,158.29
2,778.03 246371
b4l 43 18312
45333 448.03
276,97 17220
250919 3,278.58
40,004.96 37,803.93

*Net of reimbursement of T NIl (31 March 2019 T 66 lakhs) in respect of corporate payvroll costs recharged to Drive India Enterprise Soluttons Limited.

T*Net ol 223 91 Jakhs (31 March 2019 2 93 20 lakhs) in respect of share options 1ssued to the company’s subsidiaries.

Finance costs

Interest expenses
Finarce cost ol finance lease obligations

Other borrowing costs

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

498537 1.561.%4

2,364 47 212494

22213 5497

7.571L.97 3.741.87
— i
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9 Depreciation and amortisation expense Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,507 88 2,505.45
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 888370 849914
Amortization of (ntangible assets 534 43 Hh44 86
11,926.03 11,649.45

1 (Mher expenses Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Irenght charges 49,295.39 5412875
Sub-contracting costs® 979361 11,644 83
Staff transportation charges 1,390.45 1.579.63
Material handling charges 000,53 1,083.69
Casual labour charges 1317777 12,809.70
Consumptuon of stores and spares TOE OS5 826473
Power and fuel G675y 66361
Rent 1,594.29 223219
Rates and taxes 327 14 31275
Insurance 241.81 21717

Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery 7592 47
Buildings 246 72 PHED
Others 1,693 57 1,6U7.03
Advertisement and business promotion 153 20 1590 8%
Feavelling and consvevance 1,232 81 1,170 84
Communcation costs 41501 44579
Printing and stationeny 58166 474 78
Factoring charges 49315 569 83
Bank charges L1643 61.25
Legal and professiona. fees 3,137.01 422515
Security expenses 2,547.38 240517
Payment 1o auditors {refer note (a) below) 160,25 17829
Bad debts written off (net of adjusiment against provision for doubtful debts 2650 77 (31 Maich 2019 ¥ 1010 86 84
Nil 1)
Provision for doubiiul debis/advances 2005 38 13438
Hxpenditure on corparate social resnansthility (refer note (%) below) 46.95 6917
[ass on sale of property plant and equipment, net lo.45
LLoss on changes in fair value of financial instruments measured at farr value through P&L 1,208.76 -
Nhseellareous expenses 44928 37171
92,778.06 97.850.12
* Represents cost of sub-contraciing i respect of services relating (o instailation and compussioning of telecom towers
1) Other expenses (continued)
fai Details of pavment to auditors Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As auditer
Auditof standalone financial statements 37.00 34.00
Audit of conselidated inancial statements 98.00 21,00
Tax audil 2.00 2.00
Review of interim periods - 15.00
Other audit services (including cerafications eic ) 7.25 1.00
Re-tbursement of expensss 1.00 17.74
fn other capacities
Other services 15.00 27.50
Re-imbursement of expenses 0.05
160.25 17%
(b} Corporate social responsibility expenditure Year ended Year ended
31 Muarch 2020 31 March 2019
Amount reguired to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 42 68 6231
Amount spent diving the yeor on
[0} Construction/acquisition ol an asset . .

oy O purpose other than {1) sbove on
&) Rent 46 95




TVSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED {Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

CAll ameiunts are i ldian rapees (INRG Lakhs except share data and oilierwise vieied)

Il Ineome tax expense

A, Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Current tux (a}
Current tax

Deferred tax (b)
Autnibuiasle w ongination and reversal of temparary differences
MAT credin utilisation’ (entitlement)
Taxes attibutaible to prior years

Tax expense (a+h}

B. Income tax recognised in ather comprehensive income

- 70,75

- 70,75

(588.77) (57937
) 194.63
. 309 06

(588.77) {75.68)

(588.77) (4.93)

Year ended 31 March 2020

Year ended 31 March 2019

Tax (expense) /

Tax (expense) /

Before tax X Netof tax Before tax X Met of tax
benefit benefit
Remeasurement ol delined benefit hability / {asset) 187.06 163 37 121.69 (162.14) 36 66 (105.48)
187.06 (65.37) 121.69 (162.14) 56.66 (105.48)
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit hefare tax (2,172 88) (120,94
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate® 30.94% (759.30) 3d.61% 41.86)
Lffects of
Permanent disallowances -1% 2274 =20% 23.68
Income not subject ta tax -1G% 344955 30% (43.73)
Tax ineentives 7% C14968] 137% (les58)
Tltems an which deferrad tax assets have not been set up ¥ 0% -
Income taxable at special rates 0% 0% -
Recegnition of DTA previously unrecognized m prior years 0% -19 091
Deferred wxes utilization peraining o prior years 0% -255% 308.63
Change o unrecognised temporary differences 0% 1% -
Uthers 2%, (52.13) 72% (B7.00)
Effective tax rate 27% (S88.77) &% (4.93)

* The Company has presently, decided not to opt for the New Tax Regime inseried as seciion 115BAA of the Income-tax Act 1961 and enacted by the Taxaton Laws
iAmendment) Crdinance, 2009 {'the Ordinance’) which 1s applicable from Financial Year beginming April [, 2019, The Company has zccordingly applied the existing tax

rates m the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020,




TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(AN amenonis ave o bacan rupees (INR) lakhs except shave data and otherwie duved)

1T Imcome tax expense (continued)
D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

a. Deferred tax assets and Linbilities arc attributable to the following :

Deferred tax assets (net) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deferred tax asset

Employee benciits 145810 897.43
Provisien for dimination in financial assets, net 231646 2,552 48
Tax meentives 30 310
Cairied forward tax losses 93 55 9555
MAT credit D.0G 0.00
Depraciation and amortisation 751.15 514,53
Right of use asset and lease Lability 1,005.04 1040 85
Net Deferred tax asset 5,629.36 5, 105.96

b. Movement in deferrved tax assets

Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in - Balance as at Reeognised in - Recognised in - Balance as at 31

31 March 2018 Profit & Loss oCl 31 March 2019 Profit & Loss ocCl March 2020
Lmployee benefits 963 96 (123 1% ih A6 897 43 626,04 (6537 | 458,10
Provision for dinunution in financial ass 2,106,52 445 96 - 255248 {236.02) - 231646
Tax incentives 81.51 (7641} - 510 (2.04) - 3.06
Carried furward tax losses 582 4973 - §5.5% - - 9535
MAT credit 5G3.69 (301,69} - .00 - - o0
Depreciation and amortisasion 35148 16107 - 514 535 236,60 - EET RS
Right of use asset and lease liability 958 64 8221 - 1,040 835 (15 8]) - 1,005.04
Net Deferred lax asset 4,973.62 75.68 56.66 5,105.%946 588,77 (65.37) 5,629.36

E. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Buring the year, the company has recognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it 15 probable that furcre taxable profits will be available apainst which they can be used

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
. Unrecognised Unrecognised
Particulars Gross amounl ) oF0 Gross amount nrecog
tax effect tax effect

Dedienble temperary differences = =

F. Tax losses carried forward

Tax losses far which no deferred tax asset was recognised is NIL.




TVSSUPFLY CHAIN SCLUTIONS LIMITED (Yormerty known ss TVS Logisties Services | imited!
Netes io the standatlone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{4l amawniy are i fadion rupees (INRy lakbs excepd vhare dota and oiie e se stutcdi

12 Properiy, plant and syuipment

iand Building ~* Plant and Fuinirure and Vehicles  Office equipment Compuler Total #
cyuipment fixtures cquipment

Gress carrying amount
Balance at 01 Apnil 2018 2446 22 280371 SANGTR 308.59 T51.04 105941 1705373
Additions - e as 54 78 26540 18208 340620
Disposals/adjustmeits » (2,i18.40) (79.74) {126.28) (62.83) {3,042 46}
Balance at 31 March 2619 209622 2.803.71 445773 283.38 89016 1,379.24 17,417.53
Balance at 01 April 2019 200622 2,803 71 5,506 89 445773 28358 894014 1.370.24 17.417.51
Additions - 1,242 00 149511 199.48 263.03 536.94 3,736.56
Dlisposais®** (290.33) (92 20) {7152 (10.67) (253 1492.02)
Adjustments - - 72.70 175,12 - 12.52 2501 2535
Balance at 31 March 2020 2,1#96.22 2.803.71 6,531.26 6,035.76 409.54 1,155.04 1.915.89 20,947.42
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses
Balance at 00 April 2018 . 0412 1,421 .68 1.573.68 7337 12326 482 57 1973 68
Depreciation fur the vear - 5414 1037.59 848.26 37737 17304 35375 150545
Disposalsfadjusimenis*** - - (384.19) (8018 496) {26 36) {79 90) {1532y (1,344 93
Ralance ai 31 March 2019 o . 15326 2,075.08 1,612.98 84.58 417.30 791,00 5,134.20
Balance at 01 Apntl 2019 - 153 36 207508 1612 Uy 84 58 41730 79100 513420
Depreciation for the year - 54 14 1,048 50 871 40 4334 16065 32755 250788
Disposals® =+ . " (41.38%) (1588 (2885} (6.07) (18.12) {108 30}
Adjustmicnts - - 5138 B3 50 1011 1826 163555
Balance at 31 March 2020 T T T 3,13336 2.556.30 101.07 582.29 1118.69 7.699.11
Carrying amounts {net}
At 31 March 2019 2.096.22 265045 3.431.81 2,844.75 199.00 472,86 558.24 12,283.33
At 3 March 2020 ] 2,096.22 996,31 3,397.90 3.479.46 308.47 572.75 797.20 13,248.31

“% The Company 15 stll w the process of registering the title deeds of mumovable properties comprising buildings acquired during the year ended March 31, 2016, from demerger of the third party logistics services business (‘Service
Business'Demerged undertaking} of Drive India Fnterprise Solutions Linuted ('DIESLY amounting 19 a gross book value 0f T 2 857 lakhs,

“** Includes cortam assets procured exclusively for customers (net carrving amount of 2 29125 L (Previous year - | 481,69 L), which have been assessed to be finance lease in which the company is a lessor and accordingly
reclassified.

# Excludes assets held for sale classified under ather current assets. Refer note 23




FYSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formesly inown as TV Logistics Serviees Limited)
MNotes 1o the standalone [inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2620
LAl atmownts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhis except share data and athersisc stased)

12 Property, plant and eguipment (continued)

B Plant and equipment and vehicles held under finance [ease

The Company has acquired certam plam and cquipment and vetucles under [hanoe jease arrangemenits, Hhe eross andd oel carrving amounts of such asscts acqgunured under leases included i the above reconciliation are as [ollows:
pramn) 4 I’ B 2 ¥

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Costy Deemed cost 20607 LBE %0

Accumulated depreciation (163 83) (15039

Met carrying amount 41.24 38.60
C  Security

For details of property, plant and equipment pledged provided as security agamst borrowings, refer nowe 25



TVSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes 1o the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounis are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share data and otherwise siared)

LiA Goodwill

Recanciliation of carrying amount

- Goodwill Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance &t 01 Aprii 2018 5,287 90 5,287 90
Acquisitions through business combinations - -
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2019 5,287.90 5,287.90
Balance at U1 April 2019 528790 528790
Acquisitions throagh business combinaiions - -
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2026 5,287.90 3,287.90
Accumulated impairment loss
Balance at 01 Apri! 2015 - -
Impairment for the vear - -
Dizposals - -
Enlance at 31 March 2019 = -
Balance as at 01 April 2018 - -
hpairment for the year - -
[hsposals - -
Halunce at 31 Mareh 2020 - =
Currying amounts {nel)
AL3i March 2019 5,287.90 5,287.90
Atd] Muarch 2020 5,287.90 5,287.90
136 Other otangible assets
Reconeiliation of carrying amount
Customer Brand Computer I'otal
. ) relationship software
Gross carrying amount
Balance at U5 Aprl 2018 69 35 67663 1249179 257777
Acquisttions threagh business combinations - - - -
Additiens : - 287.13 287.13
Digposalsietirement - - {3.26) (3.26)
Bakauee ae 31 ¥arch 2619 64,35 676.63 1,575.66 21,5861.64
Falance at 0l Aprd 2019 60v.35 676,63 1,575.06 2861 64
Aecquisttions tuougl business combinations - . - - -
Additons - ‘ - 19958 195 58
Dhisposals retirement - - {1.49) (149}
Balance at 31 Miarch 2020 609.35 676.63 1,773.75 3,059.73
Accumelated amortisation and impairment loss
Balaogce as at Gl Apnl 2018 a7.97 i06.40 TSR U 1,132 56
Amortisation for the year - §7.U5 153.20 404.6! 6dd 86
Dnsposalsicetirement - - ANEY] (1134
Latince st 31 March 2019 1550 459060 1,161.67 1,776.29
Balance as at 01 Apris 2019 15502 459 60 Llele7 177629
Armcrtisation fur the year 8705 13520 2542 53445
Digpusals.retirement - - -
Balanee at 31 March 2020 242.07 612.50 1,455.87 2,310.74

Carrving amounts (nzl}
RA) N‘i:_l:r_c_l:t 1019 45433 217.03 413.99 1,085.35
AUIT March 202 - 367.28 63.83 317.88 748.99




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Naotes 1o the standaloue financizl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (INR) lakhs except share duta ang otherwise stated)

E3C Tight of use assets
a The lease of buildings primerily consists of warehouses and nffice premuses tken on lease for more than 12 months

b Serout below are the carrying amounts of right of uve assers recogttised and the movements during the period

Building Furniture and Total
lixtures

Net carrying amount
Balance as at 1st April 2018 {Kestated) 2143007 - 2143007
Additions 9.016.87 18.58 9,035.45
Reversuls fless) (2,180.33) - (2,180.35)
Amartisation Jess) (8,497,39) {1.75) (8.499.14)
Ralance as at 31st March 2019 (Restated ) 19.769.20 16.81 19,786.03
Addinons 1802853 - 18,028.53
Reversals (less) (3,789 .00y - [3.789.00)
Amorlisation {fess) (8,877.58) 1642 (8,883 70)
Balance as at 31st March 2020 25,131.15 10,71 25 141.86

¢ Set out helow are the carrying amounes of lease liabitities and the movement during the period 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Bulance af the beginning of the year 22,224 66 23,339.67
Additione 17,452 83 8,024 65
Accrenion of mterest 2,364 47 2,124.94
Fuvmgnts (106,327.3%) (9523 44)
Reversals (4,703 46) (2,641 16)
Balance af the end of the year 2701115 2222466
Cwrrent 6,249 30 878025
Non - Current 20,761.85 L3444 41
d The fallawing are recongnised in the statement af profic and loss 31 March 202¢ 31 March 2019
dmatiation expenses of vighi of use assals EHEITO0 #4909 14
anfzrest gxpenses on fease fiabudittes 236447 212494
Lxgences relaiing 10 shori terui leases 1,382.27 164989

Fotad wrnowim recognised in profit or loss 12,630 44 12273497




TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Ail amannts e i fndian rupees (INR) lakhs except share daia and otherwise steted)

130 Right of use assets (continued)

#

Fransition impaci
The eifect of adoption of Tnd AS 116 is as follows:

Impact oa standalone balance sheet (increase / (deerease)):
Assets

Right-of-use assets

Prepayments

Deterred tax assets

Total assels

Lquity
Retained earnings
Total equity

Liabilities
Lease habilities
L ease liabilities

Trade and other pH_\.r:ll'}ii,'j

Total labilities

[mp;itt on statement of profit and loss (inercase/(decrease) in profit)
Deprectation and amortisation

Other expenses

Finange cost

Chaln an ternation ot lease

Incorme tax expense

"vulit/(loss) for the period

Actrbuzable o

- Bguiyy holders of the parent

Intpact on statement of cash flows {increase/(decrease)
Profilf loss) before tax
Adinsiraents

Lreprecialion and anwrtisation

rinance cost

Giain on termination of lease

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Dacrease in other asselsTinbilities

Net cash flow from/ {used in) operating activities

Payment of principal portion of lease Habilities

Fayment of interest portion of lease liabilities

Net cash flow fromd (used in) financing activities

31 March 2020

J1 March 2019

1 April 2018

25,141 86 19,786.03 21,430 07
(111573 (678 15) (860.63)
1,005 04 1,040.85 958 64
25,031.17 20,148.73 21,528.08
(1,979.98) (1937 80) (1,784.74)
(1,979.98) (1,937.80) (1,784.74)
2701115 22,224.66 23,339.67
27,011.15 22,224.66 23,339.67

- {138.13} (26.85)
27,011.15 22,086.53 23,312.82

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(8,883.70) (5,499 14}

10,327 35 9928 3n

(2,364.47) {2,124 94)
914,46 460 43
(3581 82721
{42.18) (153.06)
(42.18) (153.06)

31 March 2620

31 March 2019

(6.37) (23527
BEE3TO 3499 14
236447 2.124.94

{914 .46) (460.43)
10,327.34 9,928.36
{404 923
10,327.34 9,523.44
(7.962.88) (7,398 51)
(2,364.47) {2.124.94)

(10.327.34)

{9,523.44)




FYSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Nates to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(A camamniy cve i ledront vupees (INR dokis except share duter cned stheraise siafed)

T4 Imvestments
A Non-current investments

Linguoted investments in equity instruments

Investnenis in subsidiaries

TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limuted
0719890 (31 Mareh 2019 1,019,999 equity shares of 2 10 cach fully
pain up

TWS Lopstes SIAM Lamited, Thaiiaed
(R March 2G18 1000000 ardinary shares of 100 Baht each
fully paid up

TWS Ainenica lne
<031 March 2019 0 450) skares of no par value

WS Logistics lovestrent Usl Limited
G135 6%8 (31 March 2019 - 0, 195.658) ordinary shares of | GBP each
fully pard up

TWE Logastics [nvestments USA Inc.
ELST3E M
FLEXCOL
F20: 10 031 March 2019 320416) equity shares of T 10 sach tuily paid

[HH)

cho 2004 - 61 3100 shares of no par value

ging (Inda) Limited

SPC hmematonal {india) Privawe Limited
SLOGO 3] March 2019 0 51,0001 equity shares of 7 100 each fully paid
up
TWS Packaging Solutions Private Limitsd
WOC0UTIL March 2019 0 10,0000 equity shares of T 10 each fully pud
Llr'l
| b Asanies Supply Chan Salusens Pte. Lrdd
AR 04 (3 Mareh 2009 43500

tully paic up

Al eguity shares of 3G 1 eack

TVS Tuyeta Tsusho '5;|ppl',' Chan Selutions Limited*
POV R March 2019 | 200,000) equity shares of € 10 each fully paid v
Welute Diaa Svetens Indis Pyt Lid
JLOTEIT 3T March 2005 21 678100 equity shares of T 10 gach iully
pad un

Lovestrments in imint ventares

s Provate Limited

whisiraal & Lomstics P

SA00 ks 3 Mar

I equiry shares of 10 eack rlly
1 up

Unquinied invesiment in preference shares carried at amorticed cogt
istics Linmited

et 3D March 2009 35 .000,000) redeemable preference shares
3ol T 10 cack rully paid up

Unguoted snvestment in debentures carried af amortised cost
Pragiiing Purple Mobiy Selutions Private Limited***
CAGN Marek 200G 1] 9000 Series | NCD, 00§% Unsecurad Non-
Clonvenibie Debeatuses of 2 1000 eagh

Prasanna Purple Mobitity Solutions Private Linited**=
G Mareh 2009 20,7003 Senes (1 NCD, 001% Unsecured Non-
Convertizle Debentares of € 1000 each
Prazarna Purple Mobiley Solutions Private Limited™
BOL030 (31 March 2019 80,000 Opuonally Convertible Debantures of
# 1000 each

31 March 2020

31 Mareh 20019

6,800 00 680000
18843 18843
i i a5 04
5066 44 S 166 44
3,666 60 3,666.60
936 31 538 31
561 49 56149
1.00 1 6o
18,266 16 2.86520
120 06 120 00
4219 84 4219 84
39,910.53 2451547
137500 137300
1,375.00 1,375.00
2,500 00 2,500 00
2,500.00 2,500,640
154 30 100,72
10721 153 06

- 800 00
261,51 1.053.78




TVSSLPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2020
(A wmounms are i fndicn rupees (INR) fakhs except share data and othervse St

14 Investments {continued)
A Non-current investments {continued)
Provision for decline in fair value of investments

Unguoted investments in equity instruments/ preference shares
TVSE Aemerica Ine (G004 [80.04)

Cargowimgs Logisties Lonited (2 500 00) (2,500.00)
{2,590.04) {2,590.04)
f'otal nen-curvent investmenis 41,457.00 26,854.11
Aggregate amount of unguoted i estments 44,047.04 29, 444,15
Ageregaie amount of impairment in the value of investinents 2,590.04 2,590.04

* By virtue of changes w shareholding agreement with effect fiom April | 2018, TVS Toyota Tsusha is a subsidiary of the company from April 1, 2018,

* The Company and TV Asiavics Supply Chain Solutions Pre Limited ("TVS Asianies’) are part of an ongoing Ltigation with certam mvinonty shareholders of
W Asianics, the oueome of which is unlikely w impact the carrying value of the investment. Also refer note 3700 of the consolidated financial statements of
e company.

B Current investments 31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019

Unquated investment in debentures carried at amortised cost

Prasanna Purple Mobiity Solutions Private Limited***
DGO (3] March 20019 13,5000 Series T NCD, 0.1%% Unsecured Note G600 L3500
wonvertisle Debentures of ¥ 1000 each

at

nia Parple Moy Solutiaas Provate Lamitad***
MR March 20049 4 5 h PHCTY, 1% Unsecured Non- i62.00 9980
artbde Lehentares of * 1000 cach

"Mobility Solutions Private Lumpred™™"
i 200 % RO Q006; Opuonally Convemble Debentures of 800.00 -

wna Purple
SOLD6G ()
A 000 cach

Tutal cuiren: investments . 1,058,600 234.90
Aggregate aimount of vngeoted investments 1,058.00 234,90
Agpregale amount of mpairment in the value of investments R .

T Senies | NGO WY Unseeured Non-Convertible Debentares and Seres I8 NCE, 0,i% Unsecured NoreCoavertible Debentures carrics Interest at 0 1% pa

ind redeemalne g sated below

Series I N Amount  Series [TNCD Amount
31 Luly 20200 9600 20 November 2020 LR2.00
3ty 2021 23,00 30 November 2021

i 119.00

" The Optinnally Convertible Dabentures {"OCD"s which canies minimum 20% [RE, is eltner redeemable of convertible into equity shares of Prasanna Purple
Motalisy Salutosy Private Livined as per the terms and conditiens set aut in the shareholder's agreement benweer: TVS Cemmulation Solutions Limited and
aabiaty Batunons Frivate Limied: The redematiosy conversion shall be dore i two vears from 01 March 20H8 {dete of issuancer The

+ has been evtended 111l December 2020

Frazanna 'w

'|'.['.'IJ[JI':‘En'1\.-‘r-...

T4 Assers bebi Tor sale 31 March 2020 31 March 201%
Investmicar in cyuity instrumenis
Provve Indhin bmerprizse Solutions Linnted 202143 4,021 43
22000 Mareh 2019 2.210.000) equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid up
Less Prowasien tar dectine in fair value of investments {4.021.43) (4.021.43)

Unguaied pmvestment in preference shires carried at atnortised cost

LIrwe India Enterprise Solutions Limited - 220052 220052
PR 000 (3L Maren 2019 1084 000) 0 0001% cumulative, redesmatle, non-convenible, pasticipating preference

shares of € 14 ench®*

Lesst Provision rer decling in fair value of mvestmeats (2,200 52) (220052,

accordance with lad AS 105 ""Jon i".l" ent Assews held for Sale and Discontinued ..)p..'atmns al I:J-\.u of its carnving amount and [ae value less cost to sell The
cenipany expects o complewe the sale in financial year 2020-21

“The prete are cumulative, redezmable, non-converiible, parucipat elerene shares 'pl"l;'r\:r-uc shares’s The prefereace shares shall carrv a
preferennal nght w divadends over the cquity Shaces. The preferspee sngres shall o a fixed nite of prerer dividend at the rate of ©.00G01% per annum. The
pielerinee shares shall be redecmed on demand by the sharehoider in aceardance with applicable p:ov.sm-_u: of the Companes Act 2003 witlin a maxumum

period of 20years frony the date of allotment of the preference shares ar issue price of INR 203 per share,




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

Nutes fo the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3

1 March 2020

(Al cmeants e in Dncdion rupees (INR lakdis except s hare data and otherwise stated)

15

16

17

Laans

Loans to related parties
Unsecured, considered good

Loans to others
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Pravision far goubtful loans w ethers

Deposits and other receivables

Security deposits

Unsecured, considered pood
Unseeured, consdered doubttial
Prowision for deabtful securiny deposits

Security deposut from related
parties
Unsceared. considered good

(ther receivables
Advances 1o employees

Finance lease recervables (reter note 123
R

Recervabie fram subsidiares (refor note 341

Considerad good
Cansidered doubtful
Provision for doubtiul

Cther tinancial assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured. considered good

[rierest acerued on fixed deposits

Deposits with hanks with more than 12 months matarity

Interest accrued on investiments

Uinknlied revenue

Non-current

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

44,596 27 718816
44,596.27 7,188.16
1,004,613 1.004.63
11,004 63) {1,004 63}
44,596.27 7.188.16

Current

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 Mareh 2019

1,973.77 1,890.07 1,584 18 1,524.05

- 96.92 117.00

- - (9692 {117.00)

1,973,717 1.890.07 1,584.18 1,534.05

336101 30576 1445 94 136 38

336.11 30576 145.94 136,38

. 19198 33894

[ REe el 1.078.09 27557 605 &0

- 191914 13,063 5% 12.516.63

- B - 69 96

- - VRO TS 180,74

- - (180.74% [180.74)

1,192.20 50723 13,731.14 13.535.13

3,502.08 7,213.06 15,461,126 18, 2015.56
Mon-current Current

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

For other financial asssts secured against borrawings, see note 25

- - 21.63 -
- - 1493 136
10,50 ’ . .
505 44 605 44 : .
- 6348 54 5577 16
61594 605,44 6,362.12 §,980,52
/
\
\ o\
\
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Other non-current assets

Capital advances

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Unsecured considered good 56198 112.22

Unsecured considered doubiful 4.20 -

Proviston for unsecured doubtful (4 207 -
561.98 112.22

Advance for supply of geods and services

Unsecured considered good 153300 17300
155.00 175.00
716.98 287.22

19 Inventories 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Stores and spares 13051 129.51

130.51 129.51

For inventories secured apainst borrowings, see note 25.

200 Trade receivables 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, considered goca 39,582 80 2777138
Credit impaired 393314 4,618.63
less, Allowance for expected credit loss (3933 14) 461863
Less Allowance for credit nisk

39,582.86 27,771.38
The Company's expasure to sredit and curency risks, and loss allowanues related 1o trade receivables are disclesed in note 37

21 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ash or hand 1043 13.37
Ralance with banks

O current accounts 789291 7430 83
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 105 8D 403 27
§8,013.14 7.847.47

11 Other bank balances 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Depostls wih arigimal maturity of more than three manths less than 12 months 249.40 26673
249.40 266.73
23 Other current assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance related to supply of goods and services to parties other than
related parties

Unsecured considered good 1.593 41 1,670 88
IInsecured considered doubtful 17146 1,684 64
Proviston for decbtiul advances £1.710 46) (1,684 64)
1,593.41 1,670.88
Advance for supply of goods and services to related parties
Unsecured, considered good 4967 .
49.67 -
OMher current assels
Prepaid expenses 33503 91509
Frxed assets held lorsale ™ - 488
Balances with government authoritics 2,167.23 1,650.59
Unhers 488 1520
2,707.14 1,585.86
4,350.22 4,256.74

* Fixed assets held for sale have been measured at the lower of carrying ameunt and fzir value less costs 1o sell Alse. refer nowe 12

Zor other current gssets secured apainst borrowings, see note 23
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144 Share capatal

Authorised share capital 31 March 2020 31 March 201%
34,800,000 (31 March 2014 34, 800,0000 equity shares of & 10 gach 3.480.00 3 48000
1,200,000 (31 March 2019 1,2000.000) preference shares of ¥ 10 cach # 120.00 120.00
110000631 March 2019, Nilj preference shares of ¥ 100 each 1,100.00 -
lssmed
Jigieity xhares
13,810,401 (31 March 2019 13,810,401 equity shares of T 10} each at par 1,381 04 1,381.04
5,066,800 (31 March 2005 5,066,8007 equity shares of T 10 each at a premium of ¥ 18572 506 68 06 68
per share
3,223,194 (31 March 2019: 3,223,194} equity shares of % 10 each at a premuum of 2 185 per 32232 32232
share
275,800 (31 March 2019 275.800) equity shares of 7 10 each at a premium of T &5 per share 2758 2758
4450800 (31 March 2009 44368160 eguiy shares of ¥ 10 cach a1 & premum of T 424 91 44568 445 68
per share
1,798 607 (31 March 2019 1,798 607} equity shares of 10 each at a premium of T 685 per 179 86 179.80
share
3,163,515 (31 March 2019 3,163,515} equity shares of F10 each al a premium of T 940 per 31635 316.35
share
95000031 March 2019 N1} equity shares of 210 each ata premium of T 940 per share 9,50 -
Total wsued capital 3,189.01 3,179.51
Called, Subscribed and Paid up
Lepindin sl
31,730,033 (31 March 2019 31,675,133 equity shares of 2 10 cach 3,173 316351
Add Amount paid up on 160000 (31 March 2019; 160,000} equity shares forfeited a1 T 2 3 3.20
cach

3.17&.2;‘ 3,166.71

415381 (3] March 2019: 15.331) 0.0001% cumalative, redeemable, non-converaible. partleipating preference shares have been classified as & financeal liability
(52E 0B 25)

. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and al end of e repoeiing peiied

3 March 2020 31 March 2019
Nos % in lakhs Nos % in lakhs
Equity shares
Al the beginning of the vear 31635135 316671 3,16,33133 366 T]
Shares issued during the year 53,000 5 50 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 3,17,30,133 3,176.21 3,16,35,133 3,166.71

b, Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has ane class of equity shares having face value of T 10 per share Eack holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vole per share. The Company
deciares and pays dividend i Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

¢. Terms/rights attached to preference shares

The preference shares shail be cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, participating preference shares {'preference shates'). The preference shares shail carry &
preferential right to dividends over the Eauity Shares. The preference shares shall cagry & fixed rate of preferential dividend at the rate of 0.0001% per annum. In
addition to the fixed rawe of dividend, the preference shareholders shall. at their discretion, be entitled 10 additional preferential dividend and carry 2 preferential
Heht 1o dividends over the equity shares The prefzrence shares shail be redeemed from Lime 1o time as may be required by the preference shareholders al face
value plus the redemption premium pat able thereon no later than 20 years [rom the date of wilotment of longer period as may be prescribed by law

The holder of prefersnce shares nave a right to vole anly on resalutions placed before the company which directly affect the rights attachad te preference shares
and, any resciution for the winding up of the company ot for the repayment or reduction of s sguity or preference share capital and voling right on o poll shall be
in propartion te the share in the paid-up preference share capital of the company On winding up or repayment of capital, the preference shareholders shall carry
preferential nght of repayment.
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24A Sharerupital(l:untiuued}
4. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of # class of shares in the company

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number of % halding Number of shures %o holding
shares
Fquity shares of ¥ 10 each, ully paid up
T % Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 1.07.27 343 33 81% |07,27,343 3391%
COPO Private Equity Asia Ple Lid 1,21,36,892 13.25% 1,21,36.5892 3BT
Dinzam Logistics Services LLP 29 58,214 G33% 20,82 464 G434
Omega Te Holdings Pte Lid, Singapors 23 68 803 7 47% 23,6886 7 49%
¢.0001% Cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, participating
preference shares of T 10 each, fully paid up
Tata Internaticnal Limited 7.677 50.01% 7,077 50.01%
Tata Industries Limited 1674 49.99% 7,674 499024
0.0001% Non- cumulative, participating, compulsorily convertible
preference shares of T 100 each, fuily paid up (Series A)
Mahopany Singapore Company Pre, Lid 10,23 550 100 (0% - -
0.0001% Non- Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulsarily
Convertible Preference Shares of 3 10 each, fully paid up
David Robbins 19,598 21 05% 19998 21.05%
tAS Krishnan 9.992 5.26% 0,992 5.260%
Sueehow Pry Liud 12 004 6 32% 12,004 6.32%
R [Dinesh 245490 1 38% 2,596 1.58%
Sanpive Sharma 40,002 21 03% 40,002 21.05%
Tarun Khanna 45,006 23.69% 45,006 23 69%
Andrew Jones 40,002 21.05% 40,002 21.05%

248 Other Equity
Securities premium

Securities premium (5 ased 1o record the premium teceived on issue of shares IUis utilised n acvordance with the provisions for the Companies Act, 2003

Capmtal i

P arie years, the Company find reissuad the shares foifeited Uhe profit on reissue of such farlated shares has been transerred 1o capital reserve

Capital redemplion reserve

ant

During the year ended 31 hasch 2018, ihe Company had redeemed preference shares issued to Tata Internasional Limited and Tata Indusiries Limited, out of
orofits of the Company. A sum equivalent to the nominal amount of the shares redeemed had been transferred to capital redemplion reserve in accerdance wiih
Ie provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Sharc warrants

O June 8 2008 and Aupust 2
persens on a preferential pas!

118, the Company issued 30,000 and 63,000 shase warrants respectively, at a price of Rs. 950 per share warrank to dentified
4 apgrepate consideration of Rs. 902 50 Takhs witl a right woapply and get allotment of eguity shares of the Company ranking
pari-passu with the exisung equily shares in the ratio of 11 within a pered of 18 moenths (rom the date ol issue of share warrants or earbier at the aption of the
Board During the previous year, the Comgpany had recerved Rs 225 63 lakhs (25% of the ssue price as at sulance sheet dated. Duning the year, the company has
recervad s 676 87 Lakhs (balance 75% of the issue price} and accordingly the company has alloted 95,000 equity shares a1 a face value of Rs. 10 per share at
Fos. 940 per share premiem.

Share options

“The company has Management Incentive Plan {MIF) scheme under which share options arg granied o employees which has been approved by the shareholders
of the company. In accordance wilh the terms of the plan, clipible empleyees may be granted options te purchase squity shares of the company il they are in
service an exercise of the prant Each employee share option converts inin one equity share ol the company on exeraise at the exercise price as per the scheme
The opton carry neilher nghts to dividend nor voting nghts. Options can be exgretsed at any time from the dale of vesting 10 the date of thewr expiry
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Other Equity (continued)

Compulsorily convertible preference shares

O bune 8, 201% and Aupust 22, 2018, the Company has allotied 13,340 and 23,660 Nan- Cumulative, Non-Participatng, Compulsortiy Convertible Preference
Sharee (“COPS™ of T 10 each respectively, at a premium of € 940 cach 1o idenuified persons on a preferential basis for a consideration of 2 12673 lakhs and ¥
243,77 iekhs respectively. CCPS carry a dividend of 0.001% per annum and the dividend nghts are nen- cumu’anve, On November 20, 2018, the Company has
issued bonus shares of 151,000 1o the shareholders of CCPS in the ratiw of | .87 and the securities premium account was utilised to the extent of T 15 10 lakhs
for the issue of szid bonus snares Tne preference shares to be converted i equal number of equily shares rnking pari-passa with the existing equity shares,
after the end of four years from the date of issue or earlier at the onion of the Board. In the event of liguidation of the Cempany before conversion of preference
shares, the holders of preference shares will have prionty over equity shazes in the repayment of capiial

{n February 7, 2020, the Company has allotied 10,23,350 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS™; of Rs 100 cack, at 8 premium of
Rs 161007 each 10 Mahogany Sinpapore Company Pte, Lid ("CCPS Holder”) on a sreferenual masts, for o consideration of approx. Rs 175 Crore. Bach CUPS
carries a minimum preferential dividend rate of 0.0001% and in addition (o and after payvment of such preferential dividend, the CCPS Holder would be enutied
lo particizate pan-passu in any dividends paid to the holders of shares of any ather class (including equity shares) o senies On @ pro rala, as- f~converted basis
aeh COPS woukl be converied inta fully paid-up equity shares ranking pari-passu with e existing equity shares, in the satio of 11 (subject to sich
adivstments as contamplated n the subscription agreement dated January 22, 2020 executed by and amorgs! inter alia the Company and the CCPS Holder
(“S5A")1, on the earlier of {1} expiry ol a period af 18 (eighween) months frem the closing date (as defined under the 35A) (Febraary 7, 2020); and (i) the date
when & prospective sharehalder (as defined under the 554} (incluching such prospective shareholder’s aifiliates) auquires equity shares ar cquity securities
convertible inta cquity shares representing, in the aggregate, at least 7% ( Seven percent} of the then shere capital of the Company {on a fully diluted basis) (in one
Or more transaclions)

Dividends
Afer the reporting date, the following dividends (excluding dividend distribution tax) were proposed by the directors subject to the approval at the annual general
vave nol been recopnised as liabilines, Dividends would attrac dividend distoibution tax when declared or paid

meeiing, Lhe dividend

& lakhs 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

¥ Nil per equity share (31 March 2019: 2 Nif per cquity share} - -

Other items of OCI

Remeasurements of defined benet liability (asset) 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Opering balance (9823 725
Remeasurements of defined herelin lability {asset) {net of taxes) 121.6% (105 48)
Closing balance 23.46 ('5'3,13!

Remeasurements of defined benefit tiability {asset)
Remeastcements of defined benefit liabiity {2sset) comprises actuarial gans and losses znd return on plan assets (excluding interest income )

Capital management
The Company's policy 1$ 10 maintain a srong capital base so as o maintan investor and creditor confidence and 1o sustain future development of the busingss.

The Company monitors caplial using a ratio of 'debt’ Lo ‘equity” For this purpose, debt 1s defined as total debi, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings
ard ahligations under finance leases. Equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company’s debt te equity rutio 1s as follows:

31 March 2020 3 March 2019

Non-curren! borrowings 166 35 2,784 68
Current barrowings and current maturities of non-current borrowings 68,831 50 13,760.94
Dibht 69,097.85 16,545.62
Total equity §2,55536 63,3132 26

Trelt to equity ratio .84 0.25




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TV Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(AN amowars are in indian rupees (TN lerkhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Z4E Earnings per share
Basic and diluled earnings per share
The calculations of profit attributable 1o equity shareholders and weighted average nember of sguity shares outstandung for purpeses of basic and diluted eamings
per share caleatanon are as lollpws

(1) Profit {loss) attributable to equity sharcholders 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Prefit (loss) for the year, attnibutabie to the equily holders (1,584.11) (116.01)

(i) Weighted average number of equity shares 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Weiphted average number of equity shares 316,47 311 3,16,35133
Add - Number of shares relating 1o compulsortly converlible prefercnce shares 338,190 1,28,395
Weighted averape number of equily shares used in the calculation of basic carnings per share 3,14,85 501 3,17.63,528
Adjustments for dilutive effect
- Mumber of sharss relating to Management Incentive Plan 60,728 10,9496
- Mumber ol shares relating 1o share warranis 1,203 Q925
Weighted averige nuntber of equity shares used in the calgulation of diluted earnings per share 3,2047,432 37,7544

23 Borrowings 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

{a) Non-current borrowings

Secured term loans rom banks 154 07 48 09
Unsecured term loans from banks - 2,160.00
Segured term loans from financial mstitetions 228 636.59

Man-current cblipations from finance lease - -

Total non-current borrowings 166,35 2,784.68

{ky Current borrowings

Term loan from financial institution

Secured 7,020000 4,220.00

Unsecured 5,080.00 -

Term loan lrom banks

Unecured 1,200 00 -

Cash credit from banks

Unsecured 2165 20278

Loans repavable on demand

SeLuies

Linsecured 44,7529 7,563 82

Bills discounting

Unsecured 3125776

Redeemable preference shares (unsecured) 851,60 851 60
63,225.92 12,878.20

Current portien of non-current borrowings

Unsecured term loans fram banks 5,069 23 -

Secured term loans {rom banks/linancial institutions 636.33 88274

Current portion of finance lease obligations (secured} : -

5,705.58 B82.74

68,931.50 13,760.94

ess Amount included under Cither financial liabihities' (5,705,58) [(BH2 74}

Taotal current borrowings 63,225.92 12,878.20

Intormation about Company'’s axposure wonterest rate and liguidity nsks 15 includes i npte 37 e

a8
L0
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25 Borrowings (continued)
A Terms and repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:
Carrving amount as at
I laki of INR Currency Nominal  Year of maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest rate

Secured Term loan from banks

HDEFC Bank Limited NI BA40% -0 35% 2023 23329 67 31
p.a.
233.29 67.31
Unsecured Term loan from banks
Axis Bank Limited INR G 0% 2620 5,000 00 2,100.00
HDFC Bank Limuled INR 7.50%-8 35% 2020 1,200.00 -
6,200.00 2,100.00
Secured ferm loan from Financial institutions
Tata Capital Finarcial Services Limitcd INR 11.50% 2021 7.020.00
Tata Capital Financial Services Linited INR 10.25% 2021 62501 145833
ata Capital Financial Services Limited [N A0% 219 422000
Sundaram Finance Limited ™R 9.75% - 10 56% 2020 13.63 4178
7,658.64 5,720,11
Unsecured term loan from Financial institufions
Tata Captal Financial Services Limited ™R 11.50% 2021 5,080.00 -
5,080.00 -
nyecnred cash eredit facilivies fram banks
HIEC INR §00% - 9.25% - 202.78
s Bark Limued INR 7.5% -7 8% 23.63 -
23.65 202.78

#Bili discounting - Unsecured
Axis Bank limited INR 7.95% 3,257 76 -

Secured loans repuyable on demand

DES MR 9408 100000 -
State Bank of India IR 7 4R%-8.73% 3,000.00 -
4,000.00 -

Unsecured loans repayable on demand
Related party - Drive Indiz Enterprise Solutions INR § 30% 1,392.89 §13.82
Lamuted '
Standard Chartered Bank (133 7.11%-8 20% 14,000.00
HDFC Bark Linuted IR 7.50%=3.33% 12,300.00
DES MR 7.50%:5 00%, 4,000.00
Axis Bank Limuted MR 7.78%-8 06% 2,850.00 6,750.00
Axis Bark Linuted INR I 0% 10,02

41,752.91 7,563.82

Redeesable preference shares | unsecured)

|nsecured MR 00001 % B0 60 #5160
891.60 891,60
69.097.85 16.545.62

B Secured loans

Secured ferm foan from banks

Term loans from HDFC Bank Limited are secured by hypotaecation of vehicles acguired out of 1he lozn

Secured (vans repavable on demand from hanks

I Working capuial boar trom State Bank of India 15 secured against 1ag gebtors of the company

2 Working capital loan from DBE Bank 15 secured upto Rs. 10 crore agains: the deblors of the company.

Secured werm foan from financial institutions

| The Term laan of 11.50% is from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited The total facility i for Rs, 200 crore of which s 80 crore is secured aganst the
company’s plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, computer couipEments and office equipments.

3 Term Loan al 18 25% tnterest rate from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited is secured by an exclusive mortgags of immovable property located at
sumbai and first and exclusive charpe by way of hypothecation on identified mawvable fixed assets.

3 Term loan at @ 80% [rom Tata Capital Financial Services Limited is secured by an exclusive charge on specific movable fixed assets and Yypothecation of
reczivebles ansing oul of redemption amaount of NCD of Prasanna Purple Mobility Selutons Private Limited

4 Term loans fron Sundaram Finanee Limiled are secured by hypoiiseanion af vehicles and equipments acquired out of the ozn.

Secured finance lease obligationy
Finance lease obligations are secured against the respective assets taken on finance lease

¢ Redeemable Preference Shares

The Company has cumulative, redeemable, non-canvertible, articipating preference shares. These preferance shares nave been classified as a liability. For nghts,
pany pating —

pretesencas and resmrictions atlached Lo preference shares attached 1o these preference shanes refes note 24 A
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9

Trade pavables
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 34}

[Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises (refer note 33}
(ther trade pavables (refer nole below)

Nuote:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

297176 2,041.78
2,510.07 508,17
28,191.08 33,823.18
33,672.92 36,473.13

Trade payables mcludes B} discaunting from Axis Bank Limited amounting 0 T N (21 March 2019 2 7,995 33 Lakhs  and s penerally payable within 90

days

Other finanecial liabilities

Non-current portion

Current portion

31 Murch 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Derivatives - Forward contract payables - - 1,205.60 -
Current maturities of long erm borrowings - 570558 88274
[nterest acerued but not due on borrowings - 28961 9547
Payable e factar - - 864 47 99531
Capital creditors - g14.42 150,64
Amount die to cmployees - - 345505 30789]
IFinancial guarantee liability 49 80 4,064 72 &1 14 1,703.34
Jues ta Subsidiaries - 24585 45249
Others - - 030 0,30

42.80 4,064.72 12,6062.02 6,953.20
Provisions Non-current portion Current purtion

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Provisions for emplovee benefits
Laahility for gratuity N

e

you

Lad
T

for compensaed ab

228.40 511.54 T16.85
2 39201 435 22 48678
431.62 620.41 940,76 1,203.63

For detals about the related emplovee benefit expenses, refer note 7
Other current liahilities

Statetory dues others
Advance from customers
Cither current Liabilitics

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1,309 20 2,584 14
§72.93 74951
12.89 .
2.195.02 3.333.85
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30 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, n
Fund (PF) and employees’ state insurance (ESL) scheme which are defined contribution plans. The

Limited)

respect of qualifying employees towards Provident
Company has no ohligauens other than Lo make the

specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as ey accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards
coniribution to Provident Fund and ES1 for the year aggregated 10 3 2778 03 lakhs (31 March 2019 2,463 71 lakhs)

Defined benefit plans

MNon-current

Current

31 March 2020

Provision {or grafuity -

Far detatls about the related employee benefit expenses, see note 7

The Company has 2 defined benelit gratuily plan in India (the Plan), governed by the Payme
wha has readered ar least [ive yvears of continuous service, o gratuity ai the rate of fifteen days wages lor every compl
in excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee al the time af retirement,

These defined henefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks. such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market {investment) risk

A. Funding

I'he gratuity plan of the Company is a partially funded plan with the Company miking periodic coniributions o &

Corporation (L1C) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

31 March 2019

31 March 2020
511.54

31 March 2019
71683

ot of Gratgity Act, 1972, The Plan A entitles an employee,

eted vear of service ar part thereof
death or terminaticn of employment.

fund managed by Life Insurance

Ihe (ullowing lable shows a reconciliation from the opening balances tn the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its

componcnis:

Reconeiliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year
Benefits paid

frEnt sCrvice ¢aet

nterest
Actarial feains) losses recopnised m nlher comprenensive inuome
- changes in demographe assumptions

- changes i Tinancial assumpiions

- experience adjustmenis

Balance at the end of the year

Heconciliation of the fair value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Contrtbutions pad into the plan
Benelis paid

tnieres! ing

me

Actuarial zains  (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Net delined benefit (asset) / liability

C., Expense recognised in profit or loss
Current seryice cosi
Inlerest cost

fnterest ncone

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

2.070.66 1,523.80
(271 21) (158.43)
42185 42793
105 16 8322
(45 56} 2732
(30.92) 106,57
(110,307 47.84

2,189.48 2,070.66

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1.12541 111378
699 9% 74.94
(22121) (158.43)
7148 75.12
028 2000
1,677.94 1,125.41
511.54 94525

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

421.65 42793
10516 95.22
(7348 (7512}
453.33 448.03
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30 Employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gamny/ loss on defined benefit obligation
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assels

E. Plan assets
Plan assets compnise of the Tollowing:
Insurer managed funds

F. Defined benefit obligation

i. Actuarial assumptions

Prinvipal actuarial assamplions @l the reporting daie were!
Lhscount rate

FFuture salary growih

Artrition rate

Lxpected return an plan assets

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonadly pussible changes at the reporting date to one aof the relevant actuanal assumptions, holding other as

the defined benelit obhgation by the amounts shown below:
31 March 2020

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(186.78) 182.14
(0.28) (20.00)
(187.06) 162.14

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1,677.94 1,125.41

1,677.94 1,125.41

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

333% 6% - 8%
B.00% T% - 11%
58.00% 24% - 45%
533% 6% - 7%

sumptions canstant, would have affected

31 March 2019

Increase Dec
[Jiscount Fate (1% movement} (8011}
Future salary growth (1% movement) 7262
Adttrition rate { 1% muvement) (15.68)

Although the analysis does not lake account of the full distribution
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Share based paviiedis
lhe company has Management incentive Plan

sharehelders of the company.

rease
87.58
{6793}
16.78

(MIPY scheme under which share opitons are graied 1o cmployees which has

Increase Decrease
(63.32) 67.54
56,70 (54.25)
{50.90) 993

of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

hich has been approved by the

In accordance with the terms of the plan. ehigible employvees may be granled eptions Lo purchase equily shares of the

company i they are in service on exercisc of the grant. Fach employee share option converts imte one equity share of the company on exercise at the

exarcise price as per the scheme. The option carry neither rights to dividend ner voting rights. Oplions can be

vesting to the date of their expiry.

The fellowing share based payment arrangements were in gxistence during the current year

exercised at any time from the date of

Fair value at

Optien series (Refer note helow) Number Grant date fixercise price

grant date
MIP | 11,59 883 20-Nov-18 95000 964,00
MIP 1L - Pool A & Poul B 8,07 008 20-Now-18 950.00 964,00
MIP [ 178 on 14-Fch-20 G50.00 155150
M1 L - Pool A & Pool 1B 111,984 16-May- 14 B30 1,i93.80
MIP [L- Pool A & Pool B 14768 01-Jul-19 950,00 1.193.80

Note:
Under MIP 1, the vesting of options granted is linked (o tune.

Under MIP 11 - Pool A & Pool B, shares vest as per the lerms of the scheme with an option life of 5 vears after vesting.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
Notes to the standalone financia! statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are i Indian rpees (INR) lakhs except share data and atherwvise staled)

30 Employee henefiits (continued}
Share pased pavments {continued)
Fair value of share options granted during the year
The weighted average Fair value of the stock options granted during the financial year is 2 6309 (MIP 1) & 2 276.0 (MIP 11) (Previous vear: T 80.2 (MIP
I & 2 10736 (MIF 1), Options were priced using a Black Scholes optian valvation model & Monte Carlo stmulation model for MIP I and [l
respectively. Where reievant, the expected life used in the model bas been adjusted based on management's bust estimate for the effects of non-
transterability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations Fxpected volatlity is based on the historical share price volatlity of guideline
companies in developed and developing countries.

Inputs in to the model:

MIPIl-PoolA MIPII-PoolA MIPII-Pool A

vt Mt & Pool B & Pool B & Pool B

Cirant date share price * 964 .00 153150 964 00 1,153 86 1.193.80
Cirant date 20-MNov-18 l4-Feb-20 2=Nov-18 16-May-19 O0l-Jul-19
Exercise price 950,00 450,00 G000 950,00 950.00
Expected volatility 32% 36% 33.10% 36.23% 36.23%
Option lite 236 years 112 vears 3.61 years 3113 years 3 years
Dividend vield 0.15% 0 0 0.15% (r00% 0.00%
Risk free interest rate 7.28% 5. 10% 7.50% 6.44% 6.44%
* Hetore adjustment of lack of marketability
Movements in share options during the year

Year ended - Year ended .

March 31,2020 VORMEd oy han ey Verhred

MIP 1 average exercise ) average exercise

Number of . Number of .

Options price Options price

Opemng at the heginning of the year 11,649,751 95000 - -
Giranted during the year 1,75.000 G30.00 11,69,791 G30.00
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forfeied and expired during the year Y908 950,00 - -
Balanece at the end of the yvear 13,34,883 950.00 11,69,791 950,00

Year ended Wei Year ended Wei d
MIPH-PolA&B March 31, 2020 av:-r;tgfr:::'icisc it a-arugleg:::rcisc

Number of : Number of .

Oplions price Onptions price

Oipening at the beginming of the year 9,109,838 950,00 - -
Giranted during the year 1,29.828 950,00 939,838 950,00
kxercised during the year - - - -
Forfeited and expired during the vear 45906 950.00 - -
Balunee at the end of the year 10,23,7610 950.00 9,39,8348 450.00

Share aptions vested but not exercised during the year - Nil
Share options ouistanding ai the end of the year - MIP 1- 13,34 883 & MIP 11 - 10.23,760
The share options outstanding at the end of the year had 2 weighted average exercise price uf T 650 and a weighte

.35 wears

d average remaming contractual life of



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited}
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
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31 Leases

A Finance leases as lessor

The Compam’s leasing arrangement represents the certain forklifis and other assels given Lo customers which have been classified under Ind AS 116 on
Leases s Finance lease, The lease term covers the substantial period of the assets and all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee.
The Company records disposal of the property concerned and recognizes the finance income as part of Other income

The reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease at the end of the reporting peried, and the present value of minimum lease payments
receivable at the end of the reporting period are as follews:

31 March 2020

31 March 201%

Giross investment 1.962.79 1,732.06
Unearned [inance income (1495.02) {44.37)
Ret investment 1,467.77 1,687.69

Finance leases are recevable as follows:

Gross investment

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Receivable within one year 422 96 623.49
Receivable berween one and five years 1.3699.73 990.65
Receivable after five years 141010 117.92
Tatal 1,962.79 1,732.06
Present value of minimum lease payments

Receivable withim one year 27557 609.60
Keceivable berween one and f1ve vears 1,036.02 U0 64
Receivable alter five years 156,18 11745
Total 1,467.77 1,687.69




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

Notes fo the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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32

33

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of capital
advances) and nol provided Tur

Contingent liabilities!
Emplovee related matters®
Corporate guarantees
Income tax related matters
Bank puarantees issued
Service tax related matters
Sabes tax related matters
GST Related matters
Claims not acknowledged as detit

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

BB3.64

220451
11437
12.51
81546
110,18
285.37
406.44

1,023.52

2.183.59
1,79.480.13

191.96
1,373.86

32339

From tme to time, the Company is mvelved in claims and legal matters arising in the erdinary course of busmess Management is not currently aware of
any matters that will have a material adverse effect on the financial positon, results of operations, or cash flows of the Company.

* The Company has challenged the demand orders from PF authorities amounting o Rs 2,183.59 Lakhs for the periods April 2011 to February 2015 on
the grounds that provident fund on certain allowances need nat be included for calculation of the Provident Fund contribution, as the same s not

universally paid to all the emplovees of the Company.

The Hon’ble Supremy Court of india by their order dated February 28, 2019, sei out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees
sheuld be identified for inclusion for the purpases of computation of the Provident Fund contribution. Consequently, the Company has filed a review

petition o Regional Provident Fund Conwmissioner to review the demand order m the light of the Supreme
obtaired an interim injunction frem Honourable High Court of Madras pendmg disposal of the Company’s petitin.
the Company is ol the view thal no pravision is required for the dispule in the financials as at March 31, 2020

Court decision The Company has also
Based an legal advice oblamned,

# The corporate guarnatee provided by the Company to the lenders, against the term loan availed by the Company's step down subsidiary 15 revoked as

the term loan has keen repaid during the year out of a refinancing arrangenent. The {resh corporate guar
from 24th April 2020, The amounts outstanding as al March 31, 2020 pertamns Lo corporate guarantce
facility availed by Transtar [nternational Freight (Aust) Pty Lid. Australia, step-down subsidiary (Refer note 34}

Duc to micro, small and medium enterprises

antee for the new refinanced Tacility 1s effective
given to ANZ bank for the working capital

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the defin:tion of micro

and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, Accordingly,

the disclosure in respect of the

amounts payable 1o such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in these standalone financial statements based on information received and

avaiable with the Company, 1o the extent identified by the management

The amounis remaining uzpeid o micro and small suppliers as al end of the accounting
vear

Principal

Interest due thereon

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMELD Act, 2006)

The ameunt of payments made to the micro and small suppliers beyond ihe appoirited day
during each accounting year

The amount of merest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but bevond the appeinted day during the year) butl without adding the

nterest specitied under MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ol ¢ach accounting vear

e amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprises
for the purpose of disailowanee as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

[

51007
9231

2,773.41

61,64

179.65

179.63

608,17
10.15



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
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34 Related party disclosures

A. Enterprise having significant influence T % Sundram ivengar & Sons Private Limited
COPG Private Equity Asia PTE LTD

B. Subsidiaries TVS Dynamic Global Frerpht Services Limited
TVS Logistics 3IAM Limited
TWS Logistics Investment UK Limited
TS Logistics Investments USA Tne  USA
Drive India Enterprse Solutions Linited
FLEXOL Packaping (Induz) Limited
TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pre. Limited, Singapore
TVS Packaging Solutons Private Limited
SPC International india Private Limiied, India
White Data Systems India Private Limited, India {from 30 September 2018)
TVS Teyota Tsusho Supply Chan Sobutions Limited {from 01 Aprit 2018}

. Step down subsidiaries TVE Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK
MSys Software Solutions Limited, UK
Multipart Limited, UK
TVS Log:istics [bena 5.1, Spain
TYS Autosery GmbEH, Germany
TWE Supply Chain Sulutions Gmbll, Germany
Peter Thomas & Co (Refurbishingd Limated, UK
Rico Legistics Limated, UK
Ricochet Spain, Spain
Rico Logistique, France
Rico Logistics Pty Lid, Australia
Cirele Express Limited. UK
Tri - Tec Computer Support Limited. Northemn Lreland

Tew Suppert Lunited, [reland
SPC Internanional Limited, UK
TWE S5CS Rico [ahe SRL
Trage Holdmgs Limued
Suheicdiaries of Vriage Healdmgs Limi fed
Triage Service Limited
OrderLogic Limted
Ehec IT Services 5 LU
Swhsidiaries of SPC Internarional Lim
SPCINT Linnted, UK
SPC International (Engineering) Limited, UK
Piteomp 171 Limited, UK
SPC EBT Trustees Limed, LE
SPC International Inc., USA
SPC Internatonzl s.a.s, France
SPC [menatianal 5.0.0., Slovakiz
VS America Inc, UsaA
TVS Supply Chan Solutions North Amenea Ine, USA
{formerly known as Wanwnight Indusisies Inc USA)
Warntrans LLC, USA
TVS Supply Chain Solations De Mexico $.4 de C.V., Mexico

TVS Packaping Sofutons Inc, USA

Snbsiddiaries of FUS Asianies Supply Chan Solfwions Pre L td
Madal iForwarding 5 L, Spam
Suhvicdiories of Nodal Forvardmg S0 Spain
Lingas Repulares XXL S L
Par Asia Logistes International Pre. Lid
Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pre Lid
TWS Asianics, Thaland (from April 2018)
Subsidiaries of TVS Avianses, Uhailund
TLM Logisties Management Co., Ltd



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Furmerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)
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34 Related party disclosures {continued)
(. Step down subsidiaries (continued)
Subsidiares of Pan Asta Logisties Singapore Pre Lid
Pan Asia Logistics Limited, $hang
2an Asia Logistics International (Karea) Lud
Pan Asia Logistics ( Thailand) Ld
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics Hong Kong Ltd
Pan Asia Containgr Line Pte Lid, Hong Koeng
Pan Asia Logistics Deutschland Gmbt]
Pan Asia Logistics Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Pan Asia Logistics Vietnam Company [td
PT Pan Asia Lopistics Indonesia
Pan Asia Logistics Taiwan Lid
Pan Asia Freqght-Forwarding & Logistics India Pve Ld
TWE-Asianics Australia Heldings Py Lid
T1F Holdings Pty. Ltd
Subsichiaries of T1F Holdwgs Pry. Led
Transtar [nternational Freight {Aust) Py Lid, Australa
Transtar Internatenal Freipht Limited, Mew Zeaand
Kahn Nominces Pry Lid, Austraha
Transtar [niermational Freight Limited, Hong Kong
Transtas [nternational Freight (Singapare) Pte Limited. Singapore
Transtar International Frenght (Shanghai) Limited, China
Iranstar Internatonal Fregght Lisnted, Thailand
Transtar International Freight (Malaysia) S0 Bhd, Malaysia
Transtar [nternational Freight {USA) LLC, USA &
TIF Holdings (USA) LLE, USA ##

1. Subsidiaries of T ¥ Sundram [vengar & Sons Private TV Motor Company Limited
Limited
Sundaram Clayton Limited
Lucas-TVS Limated
Sundaram Industries Private Limted
Lucas Indian Service Limited
Sundaram Auto Camponents Limited
TWS Training and Services Limited
Sundraii Precision Compengnts Lunie
TVS L

ron & Services Middle |

PV Electronics Lamiil
Sundram Fasteners Limited

£, Joint Ventures TVS Industrial & Logisties Parks Private Limited {farmerly known as TV
Infrastructure Private Lamited)

Linfox TWS Solutions Pty Lumited, Australia

F. Associates MontaraVerpacken mit System GmiH, Germany
Subgidiaries of MontaraVerpacken mitSysiem Gibld, Germaiy
Montara North America Corporation, USA
Montara India Private Limited, [ndia
## liquidated during the previous year
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34 Related party disclosures (continued)
G. Key management personnel (KMP) Mr R Dinesh, Managing dicecior
M Rawv Viswanathar, Jeint Managing director
M S Ravichandran, Deputy Manapging directin

Il. Entities controlled by KMP or relatives of KMP of the [¥inram Logistics Services LLP
Company
DRSRE advisory Services LLP
TWS Srichakra Limited
Transactions during the vear Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

[ncome from logistics services

Lucas-TVE Limied 1, 282.98 1,775 4

Sundazam Industrics Private Limited 103,62 92,45
TS Maotor Company Limited 744265 981077
Sundaram Claytor Limuted 22112 43345
Sundaram Auo Componerts Limited - 2325
T % Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited Q5429 4370
TWS Toveta Tsushe Supply Chain Solutions Limited 14.40 62.50

¢ (India) Lumited 1419 38,25

FLEXOL Packaging
Dinve India Enterprise Solutions Limited A0 33 04.63

TVS Dwyoamic Global F 1 Services Limited 76l 103
Suncram Fasteners Tinnted 121 56 10600
['VE Traming And Services Limed 42,34 4234
TVE Srichukra Limited 4737 84 200815
Lucas Indian Service Limited 62.95 47.56
Other income
WS Dynamc Global Freight Services Limited 48.00 1017
TW5 Tovota Tsusho Supply Cham Solutens Limited 7332 8470
I'VS Supply Chain bolutions Narth Amernica [ne JIRA B0 &1 56432
TWS Logistees Investment Lk Limied 1,729 37 1,531 13
Rice Lagistes Lamated, UK 211709 220845
IS Supply Chain Selutions Limited, LK 1,329.45 1,.210.G1
Dinve [ndia Enterprise Solutions Limied 6719 6ab
Sundaram Industries Private Linuled - (.35
TVS Training and Services Limited - 033
TWV3s Snchakra Limited - 2500
Lucas TWS Limited B 14 44
FLEKOL Packaging (Indin) Lid - 13 60
Dividend income
TVE Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited 10200
Interest income
TWS Logistics bnvestments USA fne | USA 180 25 17672
TVS Logisties SITAM Limited 3417 3218
TVS Lowsties Investment UK Limned 130609 39.62
8- Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Ple. Limited, Singapoere 46,64 46 39

Expenses incurred on behalf of

Lirive India Enterprise Sotutions Limited - 70.57

Ty Sundram lvengar & Sons Prvae Limited KIREH E

TWS Logistics Investment UK Limite 2278 500
&

r8 Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK 094 518

TVS-Asianics Supp
Iy Charm Solutiens North America Inc, USA .52 25011

ly Chain Selutons Ple. Limited, Singapore 038 -
. Eap

Interest expense
Drive India Enterprise Selutions Lirmited 114 36 5937
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34 Related party disclosures (vontinued)
Transactions during the vear (continued) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Purchase of spares, fuel, athers

T W Sundram lvengar & Sons Private Limited 3.69 3758
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 4519 30.63
Lucas Indian Service Limted - 6.33
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited - 21948
Sundram Fasteners Limited all 783
TVS Dynamic Glabal Freight Services Limited 347 19.32
'S Industnal & Logistics Park Linited (Farmerly known as TVS Inlrastructure Pyt Lid) 0.22 2038

Freight, packing and forwarding expenses

FLEXOL Packaging (India) Lunited 161,39 1333
T W Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 243 -
TVS Dynamic Globa! Freight Services Limited 82 28 077
TWS Electronics Limited 0.69 1.74
White Data Systems India Private Limited 677369 2,352.55
TVE Motor Company Limited - 6.51
Rent

TVS Industnial & Logistics Pack Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructuse P Lid} £O3 4 J0017
IV Sundram Ivengar & Sens Private Limited 17245 146.53
TVE Packaging So'utions Private Limited 200 -
Lucas-TVE Limied |80 1.80
TWE Dynamic Global Freight Services Ld 253 -
Repairs and maintenance

T % Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 4.93 1.50
TWS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS [nfrasiructure Pyt Ltd) 6.25 §70
Papeases incurred by and reimbursed to

TWE-Asianics Supply Chain Selutions Pre. Limited. Stngapere B3.31 216
[ % Sundram lvengar & Sons Prvate Limited - 1650
U5 Logsties lvestment UK Limited - 740
Other expenses

TV Sundram Ivengar & Sons Private Limited 73322 23100
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited - BO.94
WS Dynamic Global Freighi Seivices Limited 1532 -
Montara india Private Limited - 8.36
TVS Industrial & Logistics eark Limicd (Formerly kiown as 1VS Infrastruciure Put Ld) 3

Furchase of Tixed assets

FLEXOL Packaging (Indiat Lumied 12990 778
WS Dynamic Clobal Freight Services Limited - 216
TV Sundeam lyengar & Sons Private Limited - 297.34
v India knterprise Solutions Limuted 26.62 -
Sundaram Fasteners Lintted 7.57 -
TV& Mator Company Limited 14 82 12.09
Lucas India Service Limited 027

Purchase of Leasehold Improvement

TWS [ndustrial & Lopistes Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastruciurs Pt Lid} 40 58 16% 92

Tnvestment in equity shares
Wiite Data Systems Indua Private Lonied - 4,219 84
I'VS-Asiaries Supply Cham Solunons Ple. Limited, Singapore 15,495 17 -
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34 Related party disclesures (continued )

Transactions during the year {continued) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Loans and advances

Given during the year

TV Logistics Investment UK Linited 317,082.99 -

Repayments received during the year

TVS Logistics Investment UK Linuted 1,596 74 -

Taken during the year

Urove Indha Enterprise Solutions Lunited 57904 -

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel

“alaries, wages and bonus 10 depuly managing director (including contribution to provident and other funds) 56526 481.40
Salanies, wages and bonus 1o joint managing director (including contribution to provident and other funds) 4805 -
{w.el 1dth leb 20200

Remuneration io managing director 463 34 426,13

As the future labilitics of gratuity und leave encashment are provided on an acluarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaning 10 the
FOMP 18 not wscenainable separately and therefore not included above

Vear end balances: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Lonns 1o related partics

TWE Logisues Investment UK Limited, UK 37,742.32 83052
TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc | UJSA 344814 4,999 01
TVE Logistics Sjam Limited, Thatland 44821 41126
TW&- Asianics Supply Chaim Soluuons Pre Lid, Singapore 957 61 91837
Receivables

lucas-TVSE Limited 9544 36625
Sundaram Clayton Linuted 3084 6311
Sundaram Industries Private Limied 2027 20,85
TVE Dynamie Global Freght Services Limited 2272 29.56
TVE Lomistics Investment UK Limited 542603 221457
TVE Logistics Investments LSA Ina, USA 286.29 235123
TWS Mator Company Limired 83308 21.92
TV3 Supply Chain Selutions North America, Inc, USA 945 87 62007
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Linited 23.74 26.69
TVS- Asianics Suppiy Chain Solutiens Pz Ltd, Singapore 167 00 6608
[WE Logisies SIAN Linnied 1211 82 28
TWS Toyeta Tsusho Supply Chain Soluttens Limited 2500 1737
TWS Supply Chain Solutions Limined, L& 240635 1,210,797
Rice Lagisties Limited, UK 2,625.04 5.105.41
T Sandiam lyengar & Sons Private Limited 142 63 26,30
T4 Logistics Theria 5.1, Span - 3537
Sundram Fasteners Limied 2574 Y 48
TWS Srichakra Limited 75094 aiks 97
TVE Training And Services Limited 20.37 3319
[inve India Enterpoise Soitions Limited 1,194 51 1,229.42
Lutas Tndian Service Limited 21 89 10 86
Other receivables - Unhilled revenue

Lucas TWE Limited 23.42 5.86
Lucas Indian Service Limited 381 4.53
Sundaram Clayton Limited 00 317
Sundaram Fastners Limited 2155 2123
T % Sundaram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 118 56 34,22
WS Matar Company Limited 19 76 1630
TVS Snichakra Limited 13164 73348
FLEXOL Packaging ([ndia) L 066

Security deposits

TYS Indusinal & Logisties Park Limied (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Lig) Te1ES 73565
Advance for supply of goods & services

TWE Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrustruciure Pve Lid) 28.45 4279
arive India Enterprize Solutions Limited 0.38 -
T Susdaram [vengar & Sons Privawe Limited 21.23 =
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34 Related party disclosures (continued)

Year end balances (continued): 31 March 2020 31 March 2009
Unsecured borrowing repayment on demand from refated party

[rive Indiza Encerprize Solutions Limited |, 39289 #1382
Payables

T Sundram lyengar & Sens Povate Limited 1521 281 24
Sundaram Industries Prevate Limited 14,03 0,77
Lucas Indiae Service Limited | 06 -
FLEXOL Prekagng (India) Limited 6399 T75.86
TVS Dynarmic Global Frewght Senvices Limited 44 29 12 46
TVS Industrial & Lugistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyt Ltd) 10,34 1900
TWS Supply Chain Solutions North America, Inc., USA - 17.74
TWS- Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore 55.00 213
Tws Matar Compary Limited - 768
Lucas-TVS Limited 1Y) 034
Crive Iedia Enterprise Sounons Limited 167 &1 19 65
Sundram Fasteners Limited 118 L1l
TV Packaging Solutions Private Limited 1.C0 1.60
Rico Lagistes Limited, UK o 13 87.35
White Data Systems [ndia Provate Linuted 2,703 48 1,703.00
TS Loegistics Thena 3 L, Spain | 04 -
IS Logistics Investment UK Limited 2891 790
Ceunarantecs

TVE Logistics Investment U Limuted . 171,698 18
FVS. Asiamies Supply Chain Solutions Pte Lid, Smgapoere 211437 778155
Payable to Key Managerial Persunnel

Salanes wages and bunus 1o Deputy managing director 25000 25000

Salaries, wages and bonus 1o Joint managing director 180,60 -
Comimission 1o Managiny dhrecto: 40060 200.00
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35 Transfer pricing
The Company has international transactions with related parties, The management confirms that all such transactions are in compliance with the provisions
of Income-tax Act, 1961, The management alse confirms that it maintains documents as preseribed by the Income Tax Act to prove that the international
and domestic transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the standalone financial statements, particularly on
the amount of tax expense and that of pravision for taxation.

36 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 *“Revenue from Contracts with Customers™:
AL Disnggrega‘to(l revenue information

‘Segment 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

India Crutside India Total India Quitside [ndia Taotal
Tvpe of goods or service
Revenve {rom sale of products 13,130.44 - 1313644 - - -
Revenue {rom supply chain management services 1,25.683.57 - 1,25,683.57 1.28,509,18 - 1,28,509.18
Revenue from lelecom services 10,520.43 - 10,520 .43 13,931.67 - 13,931.67
Total revenne from contracts with customers 1,49,340.44 - 1,49.340.44 1,42,440.85 - 1,42,440.85

B. Summary of confract halances

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Trade Receivahles 43,516.00 32,390.01
Contract assets {Refer nole (a) below) 6,338.54 8.977.16
Advance from Customers 872.93 749,51
Muole:

Contract assets are imtially recognised for revenue carned from supply chain management services as receipl of consideration 15 conditional on successful
completion Upon completion and acceptance by the customer, the amouns recognised as contract assels are reelassilied o trade receivables.

. Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products/services with the contracted price

Particulurs 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Revenue as per contracted price 1.50,204 02 14342126
Less: Trade discounts, volume rebates e 863 58 980 41

Revenue as per statermnent of profil and loss 145,340 44 142,440.85
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and nsk management
A. Accounting classification and Tair values and fair value hierarchy

This section explains the carrying amaunts and lair values of financial assets and hatlities, including judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the standzalene financial instruments that are (2] recogmsed and measured
at faur value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which Fair velues are disclosed in the financial stalemems Te provide an indication aboul the relabiliny of the wputs used i determining fair value, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels as descnbed in note 3,

Carrying amount Fair value
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
FVTPL FVTOCT Amortised FVTPL  FVTOCI Amaortised Tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cost COSE
Financial assets nor measured af fair value
Investments 14 . - 1,319 51 - - 1.288.68 - - - -
Loans 15 - - 44,596.27 - - TIER 16 - - - -
Deposits and other receivables 16 - - 18,963.34 - - 2241862 - - - -
Trade receivables m - - 39 582 80 - - 277713 - - - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 21 . - 801314 - - TRAT AT - - - -
Diher bank balances 2 - - 245 40 - - 264.73 - - - -
Other Onancial assels 17 - - 6,9278.08 - - 9 583 96 - - - -
Tutal - - 1,19,702.58 - - 76,367.00 - - - -
Financial Nabilities not measured af fair value
Borrowings 25 - - 63 392 27 - = 15,662 89 - -
Lease liability 13C - - 2000014 22224 66
Trade payables 26 - - 3367292 - - 3647113 = - - -
Other financial hiabihities 27 1,205 60 - 11,50622 - - LoTaz - 1,205 60 . -
Total 1,205.60 - 1,35,582.56 = . §5,378.60 - 1,205.60 - =

Note: The Company has not dizclosed far values of financial instruments such as loans, deposits and other receivables, trade receivables, cash and cas CquIVa|CH‘|S. ather bank balances, other financial asscts, borrowings, lease hability, trade
5. Y,
p;]\_rablcs_ other financial liabififies becausc ther carrying amadnts are reasonable appraximations af thear far values The i.{’lmpal‘]\' has aleo not disclosed fair values ol invesiments carmed at cost
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37

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

B. Financial risk management

The Corpany has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credin risk;

= laudaty misks and

- markel risk

i. Risk management framewark
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework, The
board of directors along with the senior management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established 10 identily and analyse the risks laced by the Company, to sel appropriale risk limits and
controis and 1o monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes i market
conditions and the Company’s activitics. The Company, through 1is trammg and management standards and procedures, aims 1o mamnlam a
disciphined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligat:ons

ii. Credif risk

Credit risk 1s the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counlerparty (o a financial instrusnent fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers; loans and investments.

The carrving amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk 1s managed through credic approvals, establishing credit limits and continzously monnonng the credinworthiness of customers w which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of husiness The Company establishes an allowance [or doubtful debts and wnpairment that
represents its estimaie ol neurred [osses m respect of the Company's trade recervables, cenamn loans and advances and other financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk tor trade and other receivables are as follows:

Carrying amount

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade receiv: 39,582 86 27.771.38
Investments 1,219.51 1, 28868
Cash wnd cash equivalents %.003.14 784747
Uther bank balanues 249.40 266.73
Loans 44 506 27 7.i88.16
[Jeposis and other recevables 18,963 34 2241862
Chher financial assets 64T U6 U.585.96
Total 1,19,702.58 76,367.00

Trade and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit nsk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer,
mneluding the default nsk of the industry and country in which the customer operates. alse has an iniluence on credit risk assessment

Exposures (o customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company o determine incurred and expected credit
Losses, The impairment 1oss at (he reporting dafes reiates to several customers hat have defauited on their payments o the Company and are not
cxpected 10 be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due 10 economic circumsiances.

The Campany determines credit risk based on a variety of factors including but not limited to the age of the receivables, cash flow projections and
available information about customers from internal/extemal sources The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its
estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables,
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management {continued)
i, Credit risk fcontd.)

The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired as at the reportimg date was:

As at 31 March 2020

Gross carrying Weighted-  Loss allowance
amount average loss rate
Mot due & Past due 1-90 days 3408040 2.3% (797.39)

Past due 91-180 days 3,848 50 22 3% {837 00)
Past due 181-365 days 263029 16 2% 1430 43)
Past due for more than 365 days 293681 62 9% (1.848.32)
Total 43,516.00 (3.933.14)
Asat 31 March 2019

Gross carrying Weighted-  Loss allewance

amount average loss rate
Mot due & Past due 1-80 days 2342574 1.36% (319.71)
Past due 9£-180 davs 250550 4.75% (118,96}
Past due 181-365 days 1,434.12 21.50% {308.34)
Past due for more than 365 days 5,024.65 T7.058% (3,871.62)
Total 32,390.01 (4,615.63)
Mavements in ihe allowance for impawmeni in respect of vade recervables
The movement in the alfowance for impawrment m respect of trade recetvables is as follows.
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year 401863 4.687.67
Add  Provision Tor the year 2.00% 38 127.50
Less Provision withdrawn against bad debts written off (2,6590.87) [1896.54)
Bulance st end of the year __3.933.14 4.618.63

Cash and cash eguivalenis and other bank balances
Lhe Company holds castt and bank balances of INR 8262 54 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: INR 8.114.20 iakhs). The credit
worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management en an cngoing basis and is considered to be good.

Deposus and other recenvables

The Company has Deposits and other receivables of INR 18,963 34 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 INR 22,418 62 lakhs) It consists of
depesit given in relation 1o leasehold premises occupied by the Company for carrying out its operations and receivable from subsidiaries. The
Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties.

Loans, fnvestents and Other financial assets

The Caompany has loans, investments and other financial assets of INR 52,853 82 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 20619 [NR 18,062 80). The
credit worthmess of such parties are evaluated by the management on an angoing basis and are provided wherever necessary and the remaming
balances are considered Lo be good.

ifi. Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meening the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are scitled by
delivering cash or another Nnancial asset. The Company's approach to managing hquidity s W ensure, as far as possible. that it will have sufficient
liguidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company s reputation e
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (confinued)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
Exposure 1o liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and
include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 year or less 1-2 vears 2-5 years More than 5
amount years
31 March 2020
Non derivative financial liabilities
Current and non-current borrowings
Secured term loan from banks 23330 23330 66.95 75.69 90,66 -
Unsecured term loans from banks 6,200.00 £,.200.00 6,200.00 - - -
Secured  term loans  from financial 7.589.40 762252 761865 359 0.28 -
institutions
Unsecured term loans from financial 514923 514923 5149 23 - - -
mstitutions
Secured finance lease obligations 27,011.15 33,152.32 837873 0411.23 12,057.24 850513
Unsecured loans repayable on demand 41,752.91 41,75291 41,752.91 - - -
Secured loans 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000 - - -
repayable on demand
Unsecured Bills discounting 3,257.76 325776 325776 - - .
Unsecured cash eredit from banks 2363 2365 23,65
Redeemable preference shares Bl 60 89160 g91.00 - - -
Uthers
Trade payables 33.672.92 3367292 33,672.92 - - -
Cither financial liabilities 7.006.24 700624 0,956.44 49 80 - -
1,36,788.16 1,45,16245 1,17,968.84 6,540.31 12,148.18 ¥,505.13

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 vear or less 1-2 vears 2-5 vears Muore than 3
a amount VERTS

31 March 2019
Non derivative financial liabilities
Curvent and now-curreni borrowings
Secured term loan from hanks 6730 6730 19.21 2056 27.13 -
Unseeured term loans from banks 2.100.00 247016 149l 10 2.279.06 - -
Secured term loans (rom financial 5720011 (04223 537087 6608 88 248 -
inslitutions
Secured finance lease oblipations 22,224 66 43 58520 [ 295 9] R.344 88 1325109 11,693.32
Linsecured loans repayable on demand 7.563 82 7,705 30 7,705.30 - - -
Unseeured cash credit from banks 20278 204 20 20429 = - -
Redeemable preference shares e W 89160 89l.60 - - -
(Mhers
Trade pavables 3647313 16,610 89 3661080 - - -
Onher financial lLabilitics 1,135 18 10,135 18 6,070 46 3,376 63 GHE 09 -

85,378.58 1,09,712.15 67.359.63 14,690.41 15.968.79 11,693.32

=
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {(continued)
iv Marker risk
Market sk is the risk thar changes in marked pric
markel nsk exposures within accepiable parameters and apanising the recamn

s - such as forein exchange rates and interest rates will aficer the Campany's income or the valus of o's haldings of Gnancial wstruments. The objective af market nsk management 15 to manage and contral

§rrvency sk
TIhe Company = exposed ro currency risk 1o the sxient that there 15 & muismatch berween the curtencies 1 which revenues, loans arven to related parties and oter payabics and recevables are denomumated in @ currency ather than the INE. The cempany does
ot hedee is foreign currenecy risk in pereral excepl in case of cortam payables and receivables denoninated in foreygn currency which are hedeed threugh the use of forward exchange contracts. The Conmpany docs 2ot apply hedee accounting i respect ot

 forward exchange contracts

The Foalluwing table analyzes foreign currency tisk from financial instruments. The amouats disclosed wn the takle below zre i equivelent INR for the veneus eurrencies t which the Company 1s exposed 1o curency risk.

As ar 38 March 2026 Asar 31 March 2019

INR UsD Eura GRP SGD ALED THE INR USD Eura GEBP SGD AED THE
Financial assets:
Investments 1.319.50 - B - - 1,288 68 - - - - - -
l.oans - 5,806.35 - 7.742.32 WSl - - - 540027 - £59.52 918.37 - -
Ceposits and other 699103 232160 - 10,452,112 16704 12103 T280067 2IRTT - 14,150.79 R - R2.28
receivahles
Trade recorvables 32 408 o 174 G0 = - - : - 27.766.23 3189 1.26 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ROI3 14 - - - - - - T.EATAT . - - - - -
Uther bank balances L 24940 - - - - . - 266.73 - . - i - -
ther nnancial asscts 5,578.04 - - - - - - 9,585 96 - . . - -

6195599 7,302.51 - AN, 194 44 1,124.61 - E21.03 54,035.74 6,152.93 1.26 150140310 95448 - R1.2%
Finanvial liabilities:
Horrowings (3,392 27 - - - - . - 15,662 B9 - - - - -
Lcase lability 2701115 - . - - - - 22.224.66 - - - - - -
Teade payables 33,561.95 834 i A% 90 85 225 - 36,375 44 FaL 209 BT35 213 394
Cither Brancial habdlities 12,4959.22 - 2801 18369 - = 10,2072 28 17.74 - 780 - = =

1.36,464.59 8.39 0.45 128.76 185,94 - - 85,255.27 19.%0 .09 9515 115 394 -

Net assets / {liabilities) (73,504.60) T,294.12  (0.48) 4806568 93%.67 - 121.03 (31,219.54) 623303 (0.83) 1491506 98133 (3.94) 8228
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37 Financial mstruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)
iv. Market risk (continued)
Currancy risk (cowmied)
Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the 2 against the respective currencies noted below al 31 March would have affected the

measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equily and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any unpact of forecast sales and purchases,

Profit or (loss) Equity, net of tax
Weakening Strengthening Weakening Strengthening

31 March 2020

United States Doflar { 1% movement) 7294 (72.94) - -
Euro (1% movement) (0.00) (00 - -
Great Britain Pound (1% movement) 480 66 (4B 663 - -
Singapore Dollar | 1% movement) 9.39 (939) - -
Arab Ermirates Dirham (1% movement) - - - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement) 1.21 (121} - -
31 March 2019

United States Daollar (1% movement) a2 33 (62.33) - -
Euro (1% movement) (00u 001 - -
Great Britain Pound 1% movement) 14915 (144915} - -
Tapanese Yen {1 % movement) - - - -
Singapore Dollar { 1% movement) v.82 (%.82) - -
Arab Emirates Dirham (! % movement) (0.04) 0.04 - -
Thailand Bhat {1% movement) 0.82 (0.82) - -

Interesi raie risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-hearing financial instruments s as follows:
31 March 2020 31 March 2012

Variable instruments

Fanancial Labifines

- Loans repavable on demand 39.350.00 -

- Unseeured Bills discounting 3.257.76 -

- Cash eredut (rom banks 23.65 20278
Fixed rate instruments

Frnanowl assets

- Loans 44 59627 TABR 16
- Deposils with banks 36970 670.00
Financwl Lishidines

- Termi loans from banks 643330 2,100.00
- Term loans from financial instmitions 12.738.63 5720001
- Finance lease oblipations 27.011.15 3260511
- Loans repayable on demand 6,402.91 7563 82
- Vender bill discounting - -

- Buver's eredu -

= Unsecured Bills discounting

- Redesmable preference shares 891.60 891.60

v, Market risk (continued)

friterest rate risk (continued)

Faw value sensitvity analvsis for fixed-rate instruments
A rzasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reportg date would not have any impact on the reported prefit or loss or
cquity as these [ixed rate mstrements (loans given. investments made and borrowimngs) ere carricd al amortised cost any changes in interest rates are
not constdered for subsequent measurement.
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38 Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting pertod till the date of this standalone financial statements.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Sixteenth Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 315t March 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Amount INR in crores)
Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Revised Revised
Revenues from operations 1619.29 1509.24 6792.76 6833.75
(including other income)
Profit before tax from continuing

. (21.72) (1.20) (243.45) 25.38
operations
Profitt (Loss) after tax from (249.50) (15.35)
'm . (15.84) (1.16)
continuing operations
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 0.04 (16.86)
from discontinued operations
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 0.02 (17.12)
from discontinued operations
Profit/(Loss) for the year (15.84) (1.16) (249.47) (32.48)
Other comprehensive income, net of (7.54) (8.77)
1.21 (1.05)
tax
Total comprehensive income (14.62) (2.21) (257.01) (41.45)
GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The global economy, already under stress since 2019, has been severely impacted in the last quarter
of FY20 due to the Novel Corona Covid-19 virus related global pandemic. The pandemic which
originated in Wuhan, China in February 2020, has spread across the world impacting most major
markets including the United States, UK and Europe including Germany, Italy, France, Spain, and
most of Asia and Oceania. Lockdowns measures taken to contain the spread of the virus have had
mixed results with severe reduction in economic activity leading to loss of jobs, closure of small
businesses as well as change in consumption patterns in many sectors of the economy.

As per International Monetary Fund and World Bank forecasts as recent as June 2020, the world GDP
is projected to contract by 4.9-5.2 % in 2020. Economic recovery forecasts post-Covid are also lower
than initially forecasted, with global GDP expected to recover and grow at 5 - 5.5 % in 2021 as
compared to prior year. Governments in Europe, USA and parts of South Asia have been providing
financial support and incentives, particularly around furlough support, which have helped industry
weather the storm.



The World Bank has opined that the extra-ordinary conditions due to the pandemic are expected to
result in erosion of human capital through lost work and schooling as well as result in lower investment
appetite. The focus of governments is also shifting towards strengthening public health infrastructure
and systems, inward looking policies on manufacturing and distribution to restrict cross border travel
and policies boosting self-reliance. With ideas like social distancing and Work from Home (WFH) here
to stay, organisations are rapidly rejigging their operating models to operate in this new normal. These
include significant investments in automation, digital adoption and data led management initiatives.

GLOBAL LOGISTICS OUTLOOK

The pandemic is expected to throw up a mixed bag for the Global Logistics Market. The market for
luxury goods, automobiles and non-essential commodities is expected to remain under stress for the
rest of this year. A significant uptick is visible in logistics services for essential commaodities including
Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG), Pharmaceutical supplies, Medical devices, testing kits, and
the like. Supply chains of essential goods which had dried up due to lockdowns over the last few
months are continuing to rebound currently as part of inventory stock replenishment.

Manufacturing organisations have also embarked on de-risking strategies to prevent supply chain
disruptions. This is expected to create additional demand for logistics services following the creation
of new manufacturing zones in parts of South and South East Asia. Asia is, therefore, likely to lead the
recovery and growth of the logistics sector in the aftermath of the pandemic.

While forecasts on the growth of global logistics widely vary, it would be safe to assume that the global
logistics market would mirror similar trends as global GDP. Most logistics players would need to rejig
their strategies to shift focus from luxury goods to essential commodities through 2020, while the
recovery of the auto sector is expected to extend into 2021.

Transportation needs are trending upwards for global freight and inland transport, especially of air
freight or sameday courier services which cater to urgent requirements. Corresponding vield increases
are helping make up the slow volumes through traditional modes of transportation of ocean freight,
shared delivery networks, etc. This trend is expected to continue until the 3™ quarter of this calendar
year.

INDIAN ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

While the impact to the Indian economy has a wide range of forecasts, average contractions expected
this year are in the range of 3.0% - 4.5%, which ties in with forecasts from the World Bank and the
International Monetary Fund. Immediate impacts include high unemployment rates around 20%, and
possible increase in NPAs, which may mute economic growth post Covid-19, with forecasts in the
range of 3-3.5%. The Indian government has been taking economic interventions to givefillip to growth
which include support packages worth Rs. 20 lakh crores as well as reforms announced in the Mining,
Defence Production, Housing, Agriculture and Power Distribution sectors. Additional welfare actions
to support migrant labour and healthcare and insurance benefits are expected to help the economy
get back on track.

The downturn in the Indian auto sector which started in 2019 has continued with Covid 19 especially
in the commercial vehicles segments. With social distancing in place, personal use vehicles are
expected to substitute public transportation like buses, taxis, and auto rickshaws. This is resulting in
a smart recovery in the 2-wheeler segment owing to pent up demand and limited availability of public
transport.



The government also proposes to re-examine the national logistics policy considering the current
environment on account of the Covid-19. Your company has been involved in making contributions
through industry associations towards policy development. The accent would be on ensuring Indian
logistics integrates smoothly into the global logistics ecosystem. In addition, your company is also
participating in skill development programs as part of public-private joint initiatives.

INDIAN LOGISTICS INDUSTRY SCENARIO

Covid-19 is driving rapid changes in the Indian Logistics sector with companies needing to adapt to
the changed environment. While economic activity is expected to remain slow in the first half of the
year, the new opportunities being thrown up will enable the logistics sector to bounce back in the
second half. Online expansion supported by hyper local and intracity services and pivoting into
essential services sectors, all driven through digitization and safety-first are likely to propel the logistics
sector in the rest of the year.

New disruptive business models including Direct?Retail (D2R) are being experimented with, fo
augment the decline of traditional distribution networks due to the pandemic. Significant opportunities
are also opening in the FMCG, Pharma and Medical Devices sectors, with on-demand logistics
services using platform technologies.

The sector continues to be a high involvement sector for product, technology, and process innovation.
While growth may have been temporarily pushed back because of the Covid-19 pandemic, the long-
term story of the logistics sector remains intact.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The impact of external macro-economic variables including slowdown in global trade lanes, downturn
in the global auto sector and onset of Covid-19 in FY20Y has extended into FY21 as well. Your
Company continues to take various initiatives to improve its growth, operating margin, and profitability
in the coming year, with focus on pivoting itself to operate in the changing post Covid environment.

Operations:

Your Company continued to strengthen its offerings in the end-to-end supply chain services. The
capability led strategy of Integrated Supply Chain Solutions, Last Mile Solutions and Freight
Management Solutions were considerably strengthened through new senior management hires,
investments in Business Development, technology interventions and continued process and cost
initiatives driven by the global Centre of Excellence (CoE) at Madurai.

A key initiative along with a global consulting firm was to determine the Economic Profit (EP) of the
various lines of business. The inputs of this exercise are being used to drive various business
transformations across the globe. This has also enabled your company in business planning and re-
setting strategic priorities.

Significant initiatives commenced which would conclude this year include:

Freight Management Solutions (FMS): TVS Asianics undertook some significant programs
across the network which included transformation of the contract logistics business, re-sizing
facilities, Reduction in Force initiatives along with integration of people processes and systems,
and lane level focus on business development.  In addition, TVS Asianics is also migrating
from a legacy IT Service provider onto our global IT systems and integrating all operations into
one global platform to realise operational and cost efficiencies. This takes the organisation into
a very strong position to maximise opportunities being thrown up due to Covid.



Last Mile Solutions (LMS): Your company expanded into new geographies including Indonesia,
New Zealand, Australia, and Thailand on the back of the TVS Asianics network, thereby
increasing the global footprint for last mile solutions. Collaborative efforts with other business
entities enabled renewals of key customer contracts and additional encirclement opportunities.
A new courier exchange platform will roll out during the year, helping to connect couriers and
service lanes seamlessly, within the regulatory framework in the UK.

Integrated Supply Chain Solutions (ISCS): Greater collaboration across business lines enabled
your company to develop new segments including Utilities segment in UK. Rail network services
were also effectively targeted with addition of new accounts. Collaboration across geographies
has helped lead sharing and farming of global accounts. Your company was also able to
leverage capabilities across geographies to penetrate value adding solutions across some
global marquee names. The legacy operating system was also replaced with new operating
system code-named Visibility and is in process of implementation across the global operating
companies.

During the last year, your company set in place strong collaborative processes including joint business
review mechanisms which have enabled significant co-operation towards new business development,
sharing and optimising of resources and joint offerings to customers which have strengthened
customer encirclement. These initiatives will be backed by tech interventions with a new digital
strategy FY21 onwards.

Your company also used this crisis to pivot into new opportunities as below:

Air Freight Movements: Movement of medical supplies, testing kits, ventilator equipment and
PPEs from China into Asian and European markets. Dynamic sourcing of capacity along with
appropriate pricing helped to effectively sustain margins especially on global air freight
movements.

Sameday Courier services: Company has pivoted into opportunities to move testing kits and
medical supplies to address essential needs across the UK. Additionally, steps were taken to
handle volume surges through scaling up same day courier services effectively.

Transportation services : Opportunities thrown up for Full Truck Load (FTL) movements to
support distribution of essential commodities and food products during the Covid lockdowns
were taken forward in India. These services enabled your company to make inroads into FMCG
sector and opened doors to new major blue chip accounts.

New business development:

During the year under review, new initiatives included
Global CRM: Your company decided to implement a common global CRM across all the
businesses. The implementation will complete in the first half of this year.

Global Sales approach: Collaborative efforts were successful in targeting some major blue chip
global corporations by leveraging capabilities and relationships across geographies as part of
the global account strategy.

Your Company added 135 new client accounts with annualised revenues worth INR 881 crores at a
consolidated level. The new customers included market leaders from the Engineering, Automobile,
Electronics, Infrastructure & Construction verticals.

Acquisitions:

During the year under review, no new acquisitions were undertaken by your Company.



Financing Initiatives:

During the year, your Company has initiated certain pro-active finance strategy initiatives like Sale &
Lease back of Chorley Property (INR 2350 Mn), New Refinancing Facility in place of Project Centum
(USD 185 Mn), non- recourse factoring of customer receivables fimit (GBP 15 Mn) to bolster the overall
liquidity position and reduce overall finance charges.

As part of its hedging policy, your Company continues to follow natural hedging as its core policy
whereby the earnings and pay-outs are typically mapped in the same currency by operating entities in
US, UK and rest of Asia. Your Company has also opted for financial derivative instruments to hedge
the open interest rate and cross currency risks.

In this fiscal, your Company has also raised primary equity from Gateway Partners (INR 1750 Mn).

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources of the Company, and to build up reserves and considering the
business plans of the Company, no Dividend was declared for the current financial year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves during the financial year.

PROSPECTS

Your Company had taken various steps to strengthen the business development team. These
measures are expected to enable the Company to achieve higher turnover and profits in the years to
come.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No material changes and commitments have occurred affecting the financial position of the Company
after March 31, 2020 till the date of this report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules, the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company and of all subsidiary and joint venture companies are enclosed.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

A separate statement containing the salient features of the audited financial statements of all the
subsidiary and joint venture companies is attached to this Report.

The Company will make available the Annual Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies and
the related detailed information to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining
the same. The Annual Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies will also be kept open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and that of subsidiary companies concerned. The
Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial results of its
subsidiary companies.

The details of investments made in various subsidiaries are provided as part of the Financial
Statements for the year.
SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the authorised capital of the Company has increased from INR 36 crores to
INR 47 crores.



During the year, the following changes have occurred in the issued, called, subscribed and paid-up
share capital of the Company:
s Issuance of 10,23,350 - Series A 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
{CCPS) having a face value of INR 100/- each at a premium of INR 1610.07/- each on
private placement /preferential basis;
e Conversion of 95000 share warrants into equity shares of INR 10/- each in the ratio of
1:1.
Accordingly, the paid-up capital of the Company is INR 42,20,09,840/-

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, consequent upon the issuance of CCPS to Mahogany Singapore Company Pte. Ltd.
(“Gateway Partners”), based on the nomination from Gateway Partners and as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Sri. Anand Kumar (DIN: 00818724) was co-opted to the
Board as an Additional Director with effect from February 7, 2020. At the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting of the Members of the Company held on February 17,2020, Sri. Anand Kumar was appointed
as Director of the Company.

The Board of your Company based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee co-opted Sri. Ravi Viswanathan (DIN: 08713910) as Joint Managing Director of the
Company for a period of five years with effect from February 29, 2020 designated as Joint Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer from April 01, 2020, subject to the approval of the shareholders.

Based on the nomination by CDPQ Private Equity Asia Pte. Ltd, Singapore, (“CDPQ”) and as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Benoit Raillard (DIN: 08756794)
was co-opted as an Additional Director with effect from August 27, 2020.

Sri. Suresh Krishna (DIN: 00046919) and Sri. S Ram (DIN: 00018309), Directors are liable to retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

Your Directors recommend the appointment and re-appointment of above Directors.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Members at their 14" Annual General Meeting appointed M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the 14 Annual
General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 19" Annual General Meeting. M/s. S.R.
Batliboi & Associates LLP have confirmed their eligibility for appointment under Section 139 read with
Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year, M/s. KPMG (Registered), was appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company to
conduct the Internal Audit of the Company and its subsidiaries.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, the Board of Directors of your Company met six times. The dates of meetings are
06.05.2019, 02.08.2019, 12.09.2019, 02.12.2019, 24.01.2020 and 28.02.2020.
ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return is annexed to this Report.



SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company had appointed Mr. K Venugopalan, Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 315! March, 2020. The Secretarial Audit Report is
attached to this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists Sri. S Mahalingam, Chairman, Sri. V Anantha Nageswaran and
Ms. Anita George as members. During the year under review, the Board has accepted all the
recommendations of the Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In accordance with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a Vigil
Mechanism and has a Whistle Blower Policy for the employees to report genuine concerns in such
manner as prescribed.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Sri. C K Ranganathan, Chairman
Sri. V. Anantha Nageswaran, Sri. S Mahalingam and Ms. Anita George, Members in terms of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has framed a policy on the director’s appointment and
remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, Independence of a director and other
matters provided under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of Sri. C K
Ranganathan, Chairman, Ms. Shobhana Ramachandran, Sri. S Mahalingam and Ms. Anita George,
Members. The Company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy pursuant to
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rule, 2014 and the Report on CSR Activities as required thereunder is attached to this Report.

DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Acceptance of Rules, 2014. No amount on deposits was
outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, investments and guarantees covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
are given in the Notes to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered by the Company during the financial year were during the
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. The details of the transactions with related
parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.



INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Sri. V. Anantha Nageswaran was re-appointed as Independent Director of the Company, for a period
of five years, with effect from March 19, 2016.

Sri. C K Ranganathan and Sri. S Mahalingam were re-appointed as Independent Directors on the
Board of your Company, for a period of five years, with effect from June 29, 2018 and August 30,2018,
respectively.

The Company has received the declarations of Independence from them pursuant to Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

EVALUATION OF BOARD /BOARD COMMITTEES

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out performance
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as evaluation of the working of the
Committees of the Board.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A statement containing the information as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
attached to this Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has well defined and adequate internal financial controls and procedures
commensurate with its size & nature of its operations. This is further strengthened by the internal audit
done concurrently and periodical reporting to the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Periodic risk assessment of business risk environment is carried to identify significant risks to the
achievement of business objectives of the Company. Key risks are reported and evaluated at
appropriate forums and levels within the Company.

ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There has been no order passed by any Regulators or Court or Tribunal impacting the going concern
status and future operations of the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the maintenance of cost records is not applicable
to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm
that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
and that there are no material departures;

(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates that have been made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2020 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;



(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and

(f) proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and such
intemal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption.

The details of the foreign exchange earnings and outgo are:
(INRin crores)

Foreign exchange earnings - 55.79

Foreign exchange outgo - 6.04

MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PLAN

During the year under review, the Company has granted 3,04,828 stock options to the employees
under the Management Incentive Plan. The disclosures in compliance with Rule 12(8) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 are set out in Annexure and forms part of this
Report.

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
RDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an anti-sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of the
captioned Act and Rules made thereunder. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to
redress complaints regarding sexual harassment. The Company has not received any complaint
during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Company's activities
during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the promoter company, the
members and the subsidiary/ joint venture companies for their support and confidence reposed on
your Company.

Your Directors would also like to place on record their appreciation of the dedicated, individual and
collective contribution of all the employees in the overall growth and progress of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Chennai
Date: 31.08.2020

Suresh Krishna
(DIN: 00046919)
Chairman
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FORM AQOC-1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub section 3 of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014}

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES / JOINT VENTURE

(All amounts are in Indian rupees () except share data and otherwise stated)

PART B - JOINT VENTURE

Sl.no

Name of the Joint venture

TVS Industrial & Logistics
Parks Private Limited
(formerly known as TVS
Infrastructure Private
Limited)

Latest audited / unaudited Balance Sheet Date

31 March 2020

2 Share of Joint venture held by the Company on the year end date
No.
Amount of Investment in Joint Venture 2,75,00,000
Extent of Holding 50%
3 Description of how there is significant influence No significant influence
4 Reason why the joint venture is not consolidated Not applicable
5 Net worth attributable to Sharcholding as per latest andited Balance Sheet 1,73,70,18,744
6 Profit for the year 4,37.96,322
i Considered in consolidation 2,18,98,161
it Not considered in consolidation -
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Suresh Krishna R Dinesh
Chairman Managing Director
Ravi Viswanathan S Ravichandran
Joint Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
Ravi Prakash Bhagavathula P D Krishna Prasad
Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place:

Date:

Chennai
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. [CIN

U63011TN2004PLC054655

2 | Registration Date

16.11.2004

3. | Name of the Company

(formerly known
Limited)

TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED

as TVS Logistics Services

Category/Sub-category of the
4. | Company

Public Company

Address of the Registered office &
5. | contact details

10, Jawahar Road, Chokkikulam, Madurai-
625002, Ph no. 044- 66857777

6. | Whether listed company

No

Name, Address & contact details of the
7. | Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

NIL

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or
more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated):

S. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company
1. | Logistics Services 492 92.26

Il.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

HOLDING/ % OF
SINo | hame & Address of the CIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ | SHARES | APPLICHELE
pany ASSOCIATE | HELD

TVS Dynamic Global Freight .

1. Services Ltd, India U63010TN2007PLC064282 Subsidiary 85 2(87)
FLEXOL Packaging (India) -

2, Limited, India. U74990TN2010PLC076131 Subsidiary 67.55 2(87)
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply -

3. Chain Solutions Ltd, India. U74999TN2014PLC098233 Subsidiary 60 2(87)

4. | phve India Enterprise Solutions | 175900TN2000PLC104165 |  Subsidiary 100 2(87)
SPC International (India) Private -

5. Limited, India. U72501KA2008PTC048570 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Packaging Solutions -

6. | private Limite 4. India. U74999TN2017PTC116321 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Industrial & Logistics Parks
Private Limited (formerly known Associate

7. as TVS Infrastructure Private USS200IHE00SPTC 15028 (Joint Venture) 50 2(6)
Limited), India
White Data Systems India -

8. | private Limite d. India U72200TN2015PTC129978 Subsidiary 51 2(87)




TVS Logistics Investment UK

9. Ltd, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Logistics Siam Limited, -

10. Thailand NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS- Asianics Supply Chain -

. Solutions Pte. Lid., Singapore NA Subsidiary 2881 2(87)
TVS Logistics Investments USA -

12. Inc.. USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions -

13. North America Inc., USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

14. E\Iis Supply Chain Solutions Ltd, NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

15. | TVS Autoserv GmbH, Germany NA Subsidiary 51 2(87)

16. | RICO Logistics Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 97.47 2(87)

17. | TVS Logistics Iberia S.L, Spain NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions -

18. GmbH, Germany NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS- Asianics Australia Pty. Ltd, -

19. Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions de -

20- | Mexico S.A. de C.V., Mexico NA Subsidiary ad 2(87)
TVS Transport Solutions

21. | (formerly known as Waintrans NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
LLC), USA

22. | T.I.F Holding Pty. Ltd, Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

23. | Ricochet Spain S.L., Spain NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

24. | Rico Logistique, France NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

25. | SPC International Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 63.06 2(87)

26. | Rico Logistics Limited, Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

27. | Circle Express Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 95 2(87)
Tri- Tec Computer Support Ltd, -

28. NIETRET o) Ehe NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Tri-Tech Support Limited, -

29. Ireland NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

30. (Aust) Pty Ltd, Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
KAHN Nominees Pty Ltd, -

31. Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

32. Limited, New Zealand NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
SPC International (Engineering) o

33. Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

34. | PITCOMP 171 Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

35. | SPC EBT Trustees Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

36. | SPCINT Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)




37. | SPC International INC., USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

38. | SPC International s.a.s, France NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
SPC International s.r.o., -

39. Slovakia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

40. Limited, Hong Kong NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

41. (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

42 | (Thailand) Limited, Thailand NA Subsidiany 49 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

43. | (shanghai) Limited, China NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -

44. (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Peter Thomas & Co -

45. | (Refurbishing) Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

46. | MSys Software Solutions Ltd,UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

47. | Multipart Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

48. | Nadal Forwarding S.L NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

49. | Lineas Regulares XXI, S.L NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics International -

50. Pte. Ltd NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics Singapore -

51. Pte. Ltd NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics Limited, -

52. Shangai NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics International -

53. (Korea) Ltd NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

54. Et?jn Asia Logistics (Thailand) NA Subsidiary 49 2(87)
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & -

55, Logistics Hong Kong Ltd NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Container Line Pte o

56. Ltd, Hong Kong NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics -

57. Deutscheland, GmbH NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics Malaysia _—

8. | i Bhd gist y NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Logistics Vietham o

59. Company Ltd NA Subsidiary 95 2(87)
PT Pan Asia Logistics -

60. Indonesia NA Subsidiary 90 2(87)

61. ft-rrj Pan Asia Logistics Taiwan NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & -

62. Logistics India Pvt Ltd U63040MH2011FTC213986 Subsidiary 99.99 2(87)

63. | TVS America INC. NA Subsidiary 51 2(87)

64. :’J\SlS Packaging Solutions Inc., NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

65. | TVS SCS Rico Italia SRL NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

66. | Eltec IT Services, S.L.U NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

67. | Triage Holdings Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)




68. | Triage Services Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
68. | Order Logic Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TLM Logistics Management Co. -
70. Ltd, Thailand NA Subsidiary 51 2(87)
71. | TVS-Asianics Thailand NA Subsidiary 49 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -
72. | Holdings (Thailand) Limited NA Subsidiary 49 2(87)
. . Associate
73. | Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Lid NA (Joint Venture) 50 2(87)
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
i) Category of Share Holding:
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As 4
Shareholders | year[As on 1-April-2019] on 31-March-2020] Chan
ge
durin
2]
the
ear
Demat Physical | Total % of Demat Physical | Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ - _ _ _ _ - - - -
HUF
b) Central _ ) _ _ } _ _ _ )
Govt
c) State _ _ _ ) ) : _ } )
Govt(s)
g)o?d'es 1,07,27,343 1,07,27,343 | 33.91 | 1,07,27,343 - 1,07,27,343 | 33.81 ((0.10)
e) Banks / FI - - : - - - -
f) Any other ) S - B ) ) )
(51‘;""0‘3' A) | 407,27,343 . 1,07,27,343 | 33.91 [1,07,27,343 - 1,07,27,343 | 33.81 ((0.10)
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - } R _ . B _ _
Individuals
b) Other - _ _ _ _ ) R R
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - '
e) Any other - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) _ ) } ) } : }
(2)
Total
shareholding
of Promoter | 1 97,27 343 - 1,07,27,343 | 33.91 [1,07,27,343 - | 1,07,27,343 | 33.81 |(0.10)
A=A M+
(A)2)
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions




a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / Fi

¢) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i} Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(BX(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

36,00,539

11,664

36,12,203

11.42

39,84,203

39,84,203

12.56

1.14

ii) Overseas

1,45,05,757

1,45,05,757

45.85

1,45,05,757

16,000

1,45,21,757

45.77

(0.08)

b) Individuals

i} Individual
shareholders
holiding
nominal share
capital up to
Rs. 1 lakh

9,643

1,63,994

1,73,637

0.55

42,416

1,34,994

1,77,410

0.56

0.01

ii) Individuat
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs.
1 lakh

6,09,328

16,99,195

23,08,523

7.40

11,96,680

8,17,228

20,13,908

6.35

(1.05)

¢) Others
(specify)

Non Resident
Indians

38,395

38,395

0.12

20,000

33,395

53,395

0.17

0.05

Overseas
Corporate
bodies

Foreign
Nationals

1,89,000

1,89,000

0.60

2,38,000

2,38,000

0.75

0.15

Clearing
Members

Trusts

80,275

0.25

14,117

14,117

0.04

(0.21)




Foreign
Bodies - - - - - - - -
Corporate’s
SubJots 1,88,05,542 | 21,02,248 | 2,09,07,790 | 66.09 |1 2,39,617 | 2,10,02,790 | 66.19 | 0.10
(B)(2)- 88,05, 02, ,09,07,790 | 66.09 (1,97,63,173 | 12,39,617 | 2,10,02, ) )
Total Public
(sr;‘)a__"(g';a';’:"g 1,88,05,542 | 21,02,248 | 2,09,07,790 | 66.09 [1,97,63,173 | 12,39,617 | 2,10,02,790 | 66.19 | 0.10
(B)(2)
C. Shares
held by
Custodian for - - - . . . - .
GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total | ; o5 35 885 | 21,02,248 | 3,16,35,133 | 100 |3,04,90,516 | 12,390,617 | 3,47,30,133 | 100 | -
(A+B+C)
ii) Shareholding of Promoter:
S | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year %
N | Name year change
No. of % of total | %of No. of % of total | % of in
Shares Shares of | Shares Shares Shares of | Shares sharehol
the Pledged / the Pledged / | ding
company | encumbe company | encumber | during
red to ed to total | the year
total shares
shares
1| Mis. T.V.
chinint 1,07,27,343 | 3391 - 1,07,27,343 | 33.81 (0.10)
lyengar & Sons
Private Limited

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify. if there is no chanae): No change

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Othe

r than Directors, Promoters and holders of

GDRs and ADRs):
SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the Year
No. of % of No. of % of total
shares total shares shares of
shares the
of the company
company
At the beginning of the year 1,87,51,606 59.27 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. 2'74'36?’ 0.69 1,90,25,969 59.96
(change in
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat .
. . shareholding)
equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1,90,25,969 59.96 1,90,25,969 59.96




v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN

Shareholding of each Directors and
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the Year

No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares | % of total
shares of shares of
the the
company company

At the beginning of the year 8,85,245 2.80 8,85,245 2.80
Date wise Increase / Decrease in -83,186 (0.26) 8,02,059 254
Shareholding during the year specifying (Transfer on
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. 06/02/20)
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.): 30,000 (0.09) 8,32,059 2.63
(conversion of
share
warrants on
24/01/20)

At the end of the year 8,32,059 2.63 8,32,059 2.63

V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not diie
for payment (Rupees in lakhs):

Secured Loans

. . Unsecured . Total
Particulars exclud'mg Loans Deposits Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 5,787 10,758 - 16,545
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - 95 - 95
Total (i+ii+iii) 5,787 10,853 16,640
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 19,036 1,36,278 - 1,565,314
* Reduction (12,931) (89,831) - (1,02,762)
Net Change 6,105 46,447 - 52,552
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 11,892 57,206 - 69,098
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - 290 - 290
Total (i+ii+iil) 11,892 57,496 - 69,387
VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director. Whole-Time Directors/ Manager*:(Rs. in crores)

SN | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Remuneration Amount
Sri. R Dinesh, Sri. S. Sri Ravi
Managing Ravichandran, Viswanathan,
Director Deputy Joint




Managing
Director

Managing
Director #

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

3.18

0.10

3.28

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

0.52

0.09

0.61

{c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

N

Stock Option

0.63

1.08

1.27

2,98

w

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

2.00

2.00

Others, please specify
-Contribution to Provident
fund

- Others

0.08
0.79

0.01
0.20

0.09
0.99

Total (A)

2.63

5.65

1.67

9.95

Ceiling as per the Act

*Minimum remuneration.

# Appointed w.e.f.29" February, 2020

B. Remuneration to Other Directors: (Rs. In lakhs)

SN

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Independent
Directors

Sri. C. K. Ranganathan

Sri. V. Anantha
Nageswaran

Sri. S Mahalingam

Fee for attending
board/ committee
meetings

3.00

4.50

3.75

11.25

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (1)

3.00

4.50

3.75

11.25

Other Non-
Executive Directors

Sri. Gopal
Srinivasan

Sri. S. Ram

Ms. Shobhana
Ramachandhran

Sri. Suresh
Krishna

Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

1.50

2.00

1.00

2.00

6.50

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (2)

1.50

2.00

1.00

2.00

6.50

Total (B)=(1+2)

17.75

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD: (Rs. in crores)

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Gross salary 0.86 0.18
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 0.34 0.11
1 section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 ’ )
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- i
tax Act, 1961 )
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 i )
2 Stock Option 0.28 0.10
3 Sweat Equity N -
4 Commission
- as % of profit - -
- others, specify
5 Other§, plgase specnfy 0.05 0.01
-Contribution to Provident Fund
1.22 0.19
-Others
Total 2,75 0.59

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL




Form — MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
M/s TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
(formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March, 2020 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under so far as they are made applicable;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there under; (not applicable to
the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to the extent of the equity
shares held in dematerialized form;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;(not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;(not
applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)
¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;(not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock



Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 to the extent applicable; (not applicable to the Company during
audit period since the Company is unlisted)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (not applicable to the Company
during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (not
applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (not applicable
to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted);

(vi) Other Applicable Laws —

a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Rules, Regulations, guidelines, circulars, directions, notifications made
thereunder.

b) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

c) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

d) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

e} Payment of Bonus Act, 1968

f) Carriage by Road Act, 2007

g) Motor Vehicles Act, 1988

h) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and such other labour laws
applicable to the Company.

With respect to Fiscal laws such as Income Tax Act, Central Sales Tax Act & Local Sales Tax Act, Goods and
Service Tax Act based on the information and explanation provided to me by the management and officers of
the Company and also on verification of reports of professionals including reports of Internal Audit, | report that
adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance of fiscal laws as mentioned above.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The Secretarial Standards on General and Board Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (ICSl) as prescribed under Section 118 (10) of the Act have been complied with.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) (not applicable to the
Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted);

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.



Adequate notice was given to all directors before schedule of the Board/ Committee Meeting(s), agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting(s).

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the consent of majority
of the Board of Directors / Committee Members and there were no dissenting members view recorded in the
minutes.

During the year under review the Company has:
- increased its authorized capital from INR 36 crores to INR 47 crores and amended the Capital clause
of the Memorandum of Association;
- issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares on a private placement / preferential basis
aggregating to INR 175 crores.
- passed a special resolution in pursuance to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

and have complied with the applicable provisions of the Act and its Rules made thereunder.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and nature of operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.08.2020 K. Venugopalan
Company Secretary in Practice
CP No. 6015
FCS No. 2526



CSR Annual Report — 2019-20

Annexure to the Board’s Report

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

As an integral part of contribution to the society, the Company believes in actively assisting in the
improvement of the quality of life of communities around through its CSR endeavours. The Company
undertakes CSR projects/activities as per its CSR Policy, which is aligned with Schedule VIl under
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Company’s CSR initiatives are being carried out under
the CSR Policy adopted by Company. The Board based on the recommendation of CSR Committee,
development to the economically
weaker/underprivileged sections of the society during the year ended on March 31, 2020.

approved to spend for providing education and skill

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

The CSR Commitiee comprises of Sri. C. K. Ranganathan, Chairman, Sri. S. Mahalingam, Ms.
Shobhana Ramachandran and Ms. Anita George, as the members of the Committee.

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: : INR 2,133.81 Lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 42.68 lakhs
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: INR 42.68 lakhs;
(b) Amount unspent , if any : NIL ;
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
(1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (6) ) (8)
S. | CSR Sector in which | Projects or | Amount outlay | Amount spent on | Cumul | Amount
No | project or|the project is | programs (budget) project | the projects or | ative spent:
activity covered (1) Local | or programs | programs expen | Direct or
identified Area or | wise Sub Heads: diture | through
other (1) Direct | up to | implemen
(2)Specify Expenditure  on | the ting
the State projects or | reporti | agency
and district programs ng
where (2) Overheads: period
projects or
programs
was
undertaken
1 | Training Sector (ii) Chennai, INR 42.68 lakhs INR 46.95 lakhs | Same | Direct
school Tamil Nadu as (6)
Total INR 46.95 lakhs

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount
in its Board report: Not Applicable




7. We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy (“Policy”) of the Company as approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company is monitored by the CSR Committee and the CSR activities have been implemented in
accordance with the Policy.

R. Dinesh C K Ranganathan
Managing Director Chairman - CSR Committee
(DIN: 00363300) (DIN: 00550501)

Place: Chennai
Date: 21.08.2020



Disclosure pursuant to Employee Stock Option Scheme:

Details for the FY 2019-20

(a) options granted ; 3,04,828

(b) options vested +Nil

(c) options exercised  : Nil

(d) the total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option : Nil
(e) options lapsed - Nit

(f) the exercise price  : NA

{(g) variation of terms of options : Nil

{h) money realized by exercise of options : Nil
(i) total number of options in force : 24,14,457
(j) employee wise details of options granted to;-
(i) Key Managerial Personnel:

R Dinesh, Managing Director (186,000), Ravi Vishwanathan, Joint Managing Director (175,000)
S Ravichandran, Deputy Managing Director (316,000), Ravi Prakash Baghavathula, CFO (83,019) and P D
Krishna Prasad, Company Secretary (30,000)

(it} any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to five percent or
more of options granted during that year: Nil

(iii) identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of
the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of grant; Nil
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